
               
PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431 THE GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS WILL HOLD AN OPEN MEETING IN THE
SUPERVISORS’ AUDITORIUM, 1400 EAST ASH STREET, GLOBE, ARIZONA. ONE OR MORE BOARD MEMBERS MAY PARTICIPATE IN THE
MEETING BY TELEPHONE CONFERENCE CALL OR BY INTERACTIVE TELEVISION VIDEO (ITV). ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC IS

WELCOME TO ATTEND THE MEETING VIA ITV WHICH IS HELD AT 610 E. HIGHWAY 260, BOARD OF SUPERVISORS’ CONFERENCE

ROOM, PAYSON, ARIZONA. THE AGENDA IS AS FOLLOWS:

REGULAR MEETING - TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 16, 2010 - 10 A.M.

               

 
1 Call to Order - Pledge of Allegiance – Invocation  
 

2 PRESENTATIONS:  
 

A Introduction of Brian Tapp, the new Executive Director of Central Arizona Association of

Governments (CAAG), and to present an overview of CAAG activities.  (Maxine Brown)

 

 

B Presentation by Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs Group, regarding recent

lobbying efforts to secure federal funding for Gila County projects.

 

 

3 PUBLIC HEARINGS:  
 

A Public Hearing  - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL 10-07, an

application submitted by Michael R. Jelinek for a person to person transfer of a Series 9 liquor

store license with an interim permit to operate for Tall Pines Market located in Payson.

(Marian Sheppard)

 

 

4 REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS:  
 

A Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results contained in the Official

Canvass of the General Election held November 2, 2010, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare

the results official.  (Linda Eastlick)

 

 

B Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Consulting Services Contract No.

2010/100 between Gila County and Federal Compliance Consulting LLC in the amount of

$105,000 whereby the supplier will provide Redistricting and Bailout consulting services for

Gila County and affected jurisdictions through June 30, 2012.  (Linda Eastlick)

 

 

C Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between the

Arizona Game and Fish Commission and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of

$110,000 to provide adequate law enforcement and boating safety on Roosevelt Lake. 

(Claudia DalMolin)

 

 

D Information/Discussion/Action to approve General Support Agreement No. 1025-002 between

Gila County and Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions, LLC, begininng November 16,

2010, through June 30, 2011, not to exceed 80 billable hours and/or $14,000.  State Contract

number EPS 060043-16-A1. (Kaycee Stratton)

 

 

E Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Telecommunications Services Agreement  



E Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Telecommunications Services Agreement

between Gila County and NPG Cable, Inc. for the period November 16, 2010, through

November 15, 2013, which will provide point-to-point connection between the Gila County

Payson Administration Building and the Gila County Sheriff's Office Payson Sub-Station for

a one-time installation cost of $7,500 and a monthly recurring cost of $825.

(Kaycee Stratton)

 

 

F Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Commercial Service Agreement  between Gila

County and Cable One Commercial Services for the period November 16, 2010, through

November 15, 2013, to provide metro-fiber communications for the Gila County Courthouse,

Guerrero Complex, Central Heights Facility, County Attorney's Office (downtown location),

and the new Public Works Complex for a one-time installation cost of $1,500 and a

monthly recurring cost of $3,455.  (Kaycee Stratton)  

 

 

G Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of three (3) New World financial

system computer software modules and associated hardware totalling $54,311.

(Joe Heatherly)

 

 

H Information/Discussion/Action for the Board of Supervisors to retroactively authorize Steve

Stratton, Public Works Division Director, the authority to sign various utility easements, bills

of sale, and developer's affidavit that all liens have been paid, with Arizona Water Company

and Arizona Public Service Company, all of which pertain to construction of the new Gila

County facilities.  (Steve Stratton)

 

 

I Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on the Utility Easement

between Gila County and Arizona Public Service in order for Arizona Public Service to

conduct the work necessary for construction completion of the new Gila County Jail. 

(Steve Stratton)

 

 

J Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids

No. 040108-1 for the Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement Project. 

(Steve Stratton)

 

 

K Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids

No. 092210-1 for the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project, Globe, Arizona.

(Steve Stratton)

 

 

L Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No.

060110-1 to provide janitorial services at the Globe County facilities; award to the lowest,

responsible, and qualified bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award

Contract for the winning bidder.  (John Nelson)

 

 

M Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.

DE111165001) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security to provide Title IV-D

child support services in Gila County for federal fiscal years 2011-2015.

(Bryan Chambers)

 

 

N Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's tax

parcel number 206-09-123.  (Marian Sheppard)

 

 



O Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County members serving on the Gila/Pinal

Workforce Investment Board to be submitted for recertification to the Governor's Council on

Workforce Policy.   (Barbara Valencia)

 

 

5 CONSENT AGENDA ACTION ITEMS:  
 

A Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Federal Financial Assistance Award of Domestic

Grant 11-DG-11030121-005 between Gila County Public Works Division and the USDA,

Forest Service, Apache-Sitgreaves National Forest in the amount of $601,065 to pave the FDR

512, Young Road.

 

 

B Approval of Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-01

between the Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona Department of

Homeland Security in the amount of $14,000 to purchase 2 mobile storage units with

supporting generators for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011.

 

 

C Approval of a Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee Agreement No.

777304-02 between the Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona

Department of Homeland Security in the amount of $5,484 to provide training and exercises

for the Gila County Community Emergency Response Team members under the Citizen Corp

Program for the period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 

 

 

D Approval of Amendment No. 1 - Subgrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP- 555300-01

between the Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona Department

of Homeland Security for FFY09 Homeland Security Grant Program Award for the

period October 1, 2009 through December 31, 2010.

 

 

E Approval of Amendment No. 2 to existing Contract No. C051-09-02 between the State of

Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office and the Gila County Community

Action/Housing Services Department to provide additional funding in the amount of $27,039

for the period of July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, to continue providing weatherization

services to income-eligible residents of Gila County.

 

 

F Approval of Amendment  No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG854246)

between the Gila County Office of Health and the Arizona Department of Health Services in

the amount of $30,000 to provide Reproductive Health/Family Planning Services under Title

V for the period of January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2012.

 

 

G Approval of Agreement #634280 between Gila County and Great America Leasing

Corporation to lease a Konica Minolta Bizhub C552 copier system and a Bizhub 423 copier

system for a period of 36 months at a cost of $571.11 per month for use at the Globe and

Payson Clerk of the Superior Court Offices. 

 

 

H Approval of a Document Conversion Services Contract between the Gila County Board of

Supervisors and Lin-Cum, Inc. to meet Arizona Revised Statutes' requirement that all official

minutes of the Board of Supervisors be scanned and microfilmed to rollfilm for archival

purposes at an off-County site for the period September 15, 2010, through September 14,

2011. 

 

 

I Approval to appoint Supervisor Tommie Martin to serve as a representative of Gila County on  



I Approval to appoint Supervisor Tommie Martin to serve as a representative of Gila County on

the County Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee for calendar year 2011.

 

 

J Approval of the August and September 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted

by the Clerk of the Superior Court.

 

 

K Approval of the August 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's

Office.

 

 

L Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the

Recorder's Office.

 

 

M Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson

Regional Justice of the Peace.

 

 

N Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of November 2, 2010, November 9, 2010, and

November 16, 2010.

 

 

O Approval of finance reports/demands/transfers for the weeks of November 2, 2010, November

9, 2010, and November 16, 2010.

 

 

6 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:  Call to the Public is held for public benefit to allow individuals

to address issue(s) within the Board’s jurisdiction. Board members may not discuss items that

are not specifically identified on the agenda. Therefore, pursuant to Arizona Revised Statute

§38-431.01(G), action taken as a result of public comment will be limited to directing staff to

study the matter, responding to criticism, or scheduling the matter for further discussion and

decision at a future date.

 

 

7 At any time during this meeting pursuant to A.R.S. §38-431.02(K), members of the Board of

Supervisors and the Chief Administrator may present a brief summary of current events. No

action may be taken on issues presented.

 

 

IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE NEEDED, PLEASE CONTACT THE RECEPTIONIST AT (928) 425-3231 AS EARLY AS POSSIBLE TO
ARRANGE THE ACCOMMODATIONS. FOR TTY, PLEASE DIAL 7-1-1 TO REACH THE ARIZONA RELAY SERVICE AND ASK THE OPERATOR
TO CONNECT YOU TO (928) 425-3231.

THE BOARD MAY VOTE TO HOLD AN EXECUTIVE SESSION FOR THE PURPOSE OF OBTAINING LEGAL ADVICE FROM THE BOARD’S
ATTORNEY ON ANY MATTER LISTED ON THE AGENDA PURSUANT TO A.R.S. SECTION 38-431.03(A)((3)

THE ORDER OR DELETION OF ANY ITEM ON THIS AGENDA IS SUBJECT TO MODIFICATION AT THE MEETING



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Maxine Brown 

Information

Request/Subject

Introduction of the new Executive Director for Central Arizona Association of Governments with a brief overview of CAAG

activities.

Background Information

The Central Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG) is a Council of Governments that serves as the regional planning

agency for Pinal and Gila Counties. CAAG provides a regional forum for analysis, discussion, and resolution of issues

including areas of transportation, environmental quality, community and economic development, job training, and social

services. 

The Central Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG) was formed in 1970 and incorporated in 1975. CAAG is one of six

regional planning districts, or Councils of Governments (COGs), established by Executive Order 70-2 by the Governor of

Arizona

Maxine Brown has served as the Executive Director of CAAG for many years and she recently retired from her position.    

Evaluation

Ms. Brown has requested an opportunity to introduce Brian Tapp, the new Executive Director of CAAG, to the Board of

Supervisors and provide an overview of CAAG activities.

Conclusion

CAAG and Gila County have worked closely together for many years and it would be advantageous for the Board of

Supervisors and the public to meet the new Executive Director of CAAG and receive an overview of CAAG activities.

Recommendation

It is recommended that Ms. Brown be provided an opportunity to introduce Brian Tapp, the new Executive Director of CAAG,

to the Board of Supervisors and to receive an update on CAAG activities.

Suggested Motion

Introduction of Brian Tapp, the new Executive Director of Central Arizona Association of Governments (CAAG), and to

present an overview of CAAG activities.  (Maxine Brown)



    Presentation Agenda Item   Item #:  2- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Patricia A. Power 

Information

Request/Subject

Presentation by Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs Group, regarding recent lobbying efforts to secure

federal funding for Gila County projects.

Background Information

Since 2006, Patricia A. Power has provided consultant/lobbyist services to Gila County with the objective of searching out and

securing federal funding for Gila County projects.  Initially the County entered into an agreement with Jefferson Government

Relations, LLC, which at that time was Ms. Power's employer.  At the time that contract was up for renewal with the County, it

was learned that company's focus had changed to the area of health care.  At that time Ms. Power changed her employment to

Bose Public Affairs Group, of which the County entered into an agreement with that company through June 30, 2011.  

Evaluation

While Ms. Power maintains contact with Gila County and communicates with the Board members and staff electronically,

regular face to face presentations to the Board are necessary.  The Board can expect a full report of the status of activities

completed over the last year and a projection of activities and actions to be undertaken between now and June 2011.

Conclusion

It is beneficial for the Board of Supervisors and the public to receive an update from Ms. Power regarding her recent lobbying

efforts to search out and secure federal funding for Gila County projects.  

Recommendation

It is recommended that Ms. Power be allowed an opportunity to present an overview of recent activities of Bose Public Affairs

Group.

Suggested Motion

Presentation by Patricia Power, Vice President of Bose Public Affairs Group, regarding recent lobbying efforts to secure

federal funding for Gila County projects.



    Public Hearing   Item #:  3- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk, BOS

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

Gila County Order No. LL-10-07, a Liquor License Application submitted by Michael R. Jelinek for Tall

Pines Market.

Background Information

Michael R. Jelinek has submitted an application to the State Department of Liquor Licenses and Control

(Department) for a person to person transfer of a Series 9 liquor store license with an interim permit to

operate for Tall Pines Market located in Christopher Creek.  The current license owner is Deborrah Davis

Aschbrenner.  Part of the statutory process is once the Department accepts and processes the license, it is

sent to the local governing body in which city, town or county the establishment is located.  Upon the

local governing body's review of the application, a recommendation is then issued by the local

governing, which in Gila County it is the Board of Supervisors (Board), to the Department to either

approve, deny or issue a "no recommendation" decision.

Per statutory requirements, a notice of hearing by the Board was posted at the establishment for a period

of 20 days, specifically to inform any person residing or owning or leasing property within a one-mile

radius of the establishment regarding this application.  To date, the Clerk of the Board's Department has

not received any objections to this application.

Evaluation

This application has been forwarded to the Gila County Clerk of the Board of Supervisors' Department

for submission to the Board.  An internal review has been conducted by both the Gila County Planning

and Zoning Department and the Health Department.  Both departments have submitted paperwork

stating there are no issues related to this application with regard to their departmental policies/procedures. 

Conclusion

All of Gila County's requirements have been met with regard to this application; no one has submitted a

written objection to this application; therefore, a public hearing should be held by the Board to entertain

any comments from the public with regard to this application before the Board takes an action to issue a

recommendation to the Department.

Recommendation

The Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board of Supervisors recommends that the Board issue an approval

recommendation to the Department.  

Suggested Motion

Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL 10-07, an application



Public Hearing - Information/Discussion/Action to approve Order No. LL 10-07, an application

submitted by Michael R. Jelinek for a person to person transfer of a Series 9 liquor store license with an

interim permit to operate for Tall Pines Market located in Payson.

(Marian Sheppard)

Attachments

Link: Tall Pines Market Liq Lic App









































































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Presenter's Name: Linda

Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Presentation of Official Canvass of the November 2, 2010 election results.

Background Information

ARS 16.642 (A) provides that the governing body holding an election shall meet and canvass the

election not less than six days nor more than twenty days following the election.

ARS 16.646 (B) provides that a certified permanent copy of the official canvass be mailed immediately

to the Secretary of State.

The Secretary of State Election Procedures Manual provides the Board of Supervisors shall:

- Meet to canvass the returns not less than six days nor more than 20 days after the general election,

- Provide a certified permanent copy of the county's official canvass to the Secretary of State

Evaluation

The Board of Supervisors is required by law to canvass the returns of the each election and send a

certified copy of the canvass to the Secretary of State.

Conclusion

The Board of Supervisors is required by law to canvass the returns of the each election and send a

certified copy of the canvass to the Secretary of State.

Recommendation

Review the canvass and declare the results of the election final

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to canvass the election results contained in the Official Canvass of the

General Election held November 2, 2010, in Gila County, Arizona, and declare the results official.  (Linda Eastlick)

(Linda Eastlick)

Attachments

Link: Nov 2010 Election Results Certification Letter



November 16, 2010 
 
 
 
Honorable Ken Bennett 
Arizona Secretary of State 
1700 West Washington Street 
Phoenix, AZ  85007 
 
 
Dear Secretary Bennett: 
 
 I, the undersigned, being the Chairman of the Gila County Board of Supervisors do 
hereby certify that on Tuesday, November 16, 2010, the Gila County Board of Supervisors did 
canvass the returns of the November 2, 2010, Primary Election held within Gila County, 
Arizona, and do testify that the tabulation of votes attached hereto is a true and correct copy of 
all votes cast at said election. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have affixed my signature and the Great Seal of Gila 
County at Globe, Arizona, this 16th  day of November, 2010.   

 
      Gila County Board of Supervisors   
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Linda

Eastlick,

Elections

Director

Submitted By: Linda Eastlick, Elections

Department: Elections

Fiscal Year: 2010-2012  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 11/16/10 - 6/30/12 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Linda Eastlick 

Information

Request/Subject

Professional Consulting Services Contract for Redistricting of Gila County and Proceeding with an

Application to Bailout from  Section 5 Obligations Pursuant to the Voting Rights Act of 1965.

Background Information

Redistricting:  ARS 11-212 provides "The board of supervisors shall meet at the county seat on or before

December 1 following the release of the United States decennial census data and divide the county into

three or five supervisorial districts ..., which shall be numbered, respectively, districts one, two and three

or districts one, two, three, four and five. The board shall define the boundaries and limits of each district

and make the division equal or with not more than ten percent difference in population." 

Bailout:  The entire State of Arizona entered into a Consent Decree with the United States Department of

Justice (DOJ) on November 1, 1972 due to prior discriminatory voting practices.  This consent decree

was to last for 25 years, however, due to continuing discriminatory voting practices in certain Arizona

counties, the consent decree was renewed for another 25 years.  Being under this consent decrees

mandates every single jurisdiction which holds elections to pre-clear with the DOJ anything that impacts

voters including every form, polling site, type of election, etc.  This is a very expensive and

time-consuming process for all the affected jurisdictions and elected officials involved.

Evaluation

Gila County must, by statute, review the decennial census data and redistrict as appropriate. 

Additionally, since Gila County has not had any complaints nor investigations surrounding

discriminatory voting practices and, therefore, may be eligible for "Bailout" from its Section 5

obligations pursuant to The Voting Rights Act of 1965, we intend to seek Bailout to lesson the costly

administrative burden of continuing to preclear every single change that affects voters in Gila County

jurisdictions

The two main consultants supporting this contract are Bruce L. Adelson, Esq. and R. Anthony Sissons.



The two main consultants supporting this contract are Bruce L. Adelson, Esq. and R. Anthony Sissons.

Mr. Adelson is a former DOJ, Civil Rights Division Senior Attorney. During his DOJ career he had

national enforcement responsibility for all federal voting laws. He is a nationally recognized expert

concerning DOJ federal voting laws, Section 5 of the Voting Rights Act, redistricting, and federal

mandates for non-English language assistance. To our knowledge, he is the only private practice attorney

in the US with DOJ legal redistricting experience from the 2000 redistricting cycle who is now advising

jurisdictions.  Mr. Sissons has a strong professional background in research methods, evaluation

techniques, quantitative analysis, statistical inquiry, Census demographics and project management. All

previous seventeen redistricting plans he helped draw (including Gila County's) were precleared on their

first submission to the DOJ and no plans were challenged in court.

Conclusion

In order to proceed with these two very large and complex projects, we require significant assistance

from outside consultants who have the expertise to ensure success.  Gila County has worked with both

consultants in the past.  Mr. Sissons provided consulting services to Gila County when redistricting was

undertaken for the 2000 Census and Mr. Adelson was Gila County's contact in the Department of Justice

for a number of years during which we submitted numerous preclearance requests for review and

approval.  Their intimate knowledge of Gila County will enable these projects to move forward quickly,

and efficiently, thus saving the County significant time and money.   

Recommendation

Since the County must consider redistricting and since it is in the County's best interests to pursue bailout

from Section 5 Voting  Rights Act Consent Decree coverage, it is recommended that the services of

Federal Compliance Consulting be engaged.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve Professional Consulting Services Contract No. 2010/100

between Gila County and Federal Compliance Consulting LLC in the amount of $105,000 whereby the

supplier will provide Redistricting and Bailout consulting services for Gila County and affected

jurisdictions through June 30, 2012.  (Linda Eastlick)

Attachments

Link: Federal Compliance Consulting Services Contract No. 2010/100

Link: Consultant Background and Experience

Link: Exec Summary-Federal Compliance Consulting LLC



 

 

 
 

 

 
 
Tommie C. Martin, District I 
P.O. Box 2297  Payson, AZ.  85547 
(928) 474-2029 
 
Michael A. Pastor, District II 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753 
 
Shirley L. Dawson, District III 
1400 E. Ash St.  Globe, AZ.  85501 
(928) 425-3231 Ext. 8753 

 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY 

www.gilacountyaz.gov 

 

 
 

Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext.8761 

 
Joe Heatherly, Finance Director 
Phone (928) 425-3231 Ext. 8743 

 
 

                                                FAX (928) 425-0319 
                        TTY:  7-1-1          

 

 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 2010/100 

GILA COUNTY DIVISION OF ELECTIONS 
GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 

 THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 16th day of November, 2010, by and between the Gila 

County Board of Supervisors, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, hereinafter designated the 

COUNTY, and Federal Compliance Consulting LLC, of the City of Potomac, County of Montgomery, State of 

Maryland, hereinafter designated the CONSULTANT. 

 

 WITNESSETH:  That the Consultant, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid him by the County, 

in the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other covenants and agreements herein 

contained, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as follows: 

 

ARTICLE I – SCOPE OF SERVICES:   Consultant shall perform or cause to be performed Redistricting 

and Department of Justice Bailout services in a timely and professional manner.  In coordination with County 

staff and a possible redistricting committee, Consultant shall develop a precise calendar of events for all 

phases of Redistricting and Bailout services in order to complete the following activities: 

 

REDISTRICTING SERVICES: 

 

Preliminary Research and Reporting.  Start date - November, 2010: 

1. Create a detailed demographic atlas; examine the physical and demographic makeup of the entire 

jurisdiction. 

2. Identify communities of interest 

3. Create and digitize boundary maps of supervisory districts, precincts, school districts, and other 

jurisdictional subdivisions 

4. Develop voting model of Gila County electorate 

http://www.gilacountyaz.gov/


          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 2 

5. Identify and analyze minority voting and all candidates who ran for office whether they were elected 

or not.  Examine the magnitude and geographic extent of any racially polarized voting. 

6. Examine recent state, county and city elections, at the voting precinct level – voter turnout, numbers 

of candidates, race or ethnicity of candidates, winners’ vote margins. 

7. Assemble a directory of contacts 

8. Develop a process plan 

9. Utilize statistical regression to assess racially polarized voting 

10. Document all pre-Redistricting activities 

11. Conduct a preclearance hazards review 

12. Provide summary and report to Board of Supervisors and staff 

 

Outreach to Community Leaders.  Start date - January, 2011 

13. Meet with key community leaders in business and civic organizations to explain the process 

14. Determine community leaders’ expectations and seek suggestions about the process 

15. Develop a mailing list of people and organizations suggested by key community leaders to notify and 

invite to participate in the process 

 

Preparation of Materials for Meetings.  Start date - January 2011 

16. Prepare all  materials for Public Meetings 

17. Prepare maps illustrating topics examined in preliminary studies including: thematic maps of Census 

data and past election results; GIS boundary maps and legal descriptions of supervisory districts, 

precincts, school districts, and other jurisdictional subdivisions; maps identifying neighborhoods, 

homeowners’ associations and civic ‘blockwatch’ areas; maps of natural and man-made barriers. 

18. Prepare public information handouts on various representation and process options 

 

Meetings with Elected Officials and staff.  Start date - May, 2011 

19. Conduct work-study session(s) for the Board, staff, and other elected officials and district 

representatives.  Consultant will describe the process including the legal setting, redistricting 

principles, district design criteria, redistricting committee creation, etc.  Consultant shall assist 

stakeholders in identifying the jurisdictional priorities. 

20. The consultant team will meet individually with elected officials and their staffs to seek input on 

possible or preferred configurations of districts. 

 

First Series of Open House Meetings.  Start date - May, 2011 

21. Consultant and County staff will coordinate a process to widely advertise the times, locations, 

purpose and importance of a series of public meetings to be held on the topic of 

districting/redistricting.  Consultant will conduct and facilitate the public meetings.  Consultant shall 

provide appropriate presentations on the scope, purpose, process, timelines, and legal issues 

involved in redistricting.  Consultant shall request input from the public at these meetings and 

consultant shall document such input.   

22. Distill input from Public, Key Community Leaders, and Elected Officials and prepare appropriate 

reports which summarize the data and which will satisfy Department of Justice requirements. 

23. Analyze partial and whole plans submitted by residents 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 3 

 

First Summary Report and Plan Preparation.  Start Date - June, 2011 

24. Prepare alternate plans based on combinations of recurrent themes heard from participants or 

observed on resident-submitted plans. 

25. Publish Alternate Plans including newspaper ads showing alternate plans to be considered at public 

meetings.  Include a public comment form in the advertisement.  Ensure ads are published in 

minority race or language newspapers as applicable. 

26. Invite and compile public comments 

 

Publish Alternate Plans.  Start date - June, 2011 

27. Widely advertise the times, locations, and purpose of public meetings to be held to display proposed 

alternate districting plans being considered 

 

Second Series of Open House Meetings.  Start date - July, 2011 

28. Conduct public meetings in an open house setting and present the process up to that point, the 

features of each alternate plan, and the extent to which the plans incorporate ideas gathered in the 

various public input settings. 

 

Prepare Final Plans.  Start date - August, 2011 

29. Prepare proposed Final Plan(s) for consideration by Elected Officials 

30. Prepare a second report summarizing the process to that point and containing an analysis of public 

reaction to the alternate plans 

31. Prepare a Final Plan with one or two possible variations for consideration 

 

Publish Final Plans.  Start date - September, 2011 

32. Publish the Final Plan in newspaper ads which show the final districting plan(s) being considered by 

the jurisdiction.  Invite public comment through letters, email, telephone, or by attendance and 

testimony at the adoption hearing. 

 

Adoption of Plan and Assistance with Preclearance Application - Start date - September, 2011 

33. Coordinate a special meeting at which time the Board will consider adoption of the Final Plan 

34. Coordinate preparation of required  submission(s) 

 

Additional Redistricting Services 

35. Provide County officials with specialized, individual briefing about redistricting.  Start Date - 

December, 2010 

36. Conduct specialized review of County records to determine the existence of any unprecleared 

Section 5 voting changes that could negatively impact the County’s efforts to preclear its 2010 Board 

of Supervisors redistricting plan.  Start Date - January, 2011 

37. Assist the County in preparing Section 5 submissions to Department of Justice concerning any 

unprecleared voting changes discovered and assist County in further communicating with 

Department of Justice to discuss any such unprecleared voting changes.  Start Date - Ongoing as 

necessary 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 4 

38. Assist the County with any redistricting related communications or meetings with Department of 

Justice.  Start Date - Ongoing as necessary 

 

Redistricting deliverables will include: 

1. Provide detailed requirements for Gila County to successfully prepare and implement the 

redistricting process 

2. Provide detailed timeline for all requirements of the project 

3. Identify all legal requirements and the means in which to accomplish each step in the process 

4. Coordinate all public meetings 

5. Prepare all redistricting plans and media to advertise meetings and final adoption of the plan 

6. Assist in preparation of submissions to Department of Justice concerning any unprecleared voting 

changes  

7. Coordinate the creation of final GIS boundary maps and legal descriptions for all supervisory districts, 

precincts, school districts, and other jurisdictional subdivisions 

8. Provide best efforts to ensure successful approval of the plan from the Department of Justice. 

 

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE BAILOUT 

 

Stage 1   Start Date - January, 2011 

1. Conduct investigation concerning Gila County’s prospects for bailing out of its Section 5 Voting Rights 

Act obligations.  This stage entails review of all relevant County documents, meeting minutes, and 

records for approximately ten years prior to the start of the new year. 

2. Review similar records of all County political subdivisions, such as municipalities, school districts, and 

special districts that hold elections. 

3. Evaluate previous Section 5 compliance by all affected jurisdictions. 

 

Deliverable 

Report explaining the status of Gila County’s Section 5 compliance and recommendations for 

proceeding with a bailout application to the  

 

Stage 2   Start date dependent upon whether County wishes to proceed with bailout in 2011 

1. Prepare bailout application and assist the County with Department of Justice’s investigation of its 

application 

2. Assist the county in communicating with Department of Justice and meet with Department of Justice 

as necessary 

 

Deliverable 

 U.S.  bailout application 

 

Stage 3   Start Date dependent upon Department of Justice approval of County’s bailout application) 

1. Assist the County with preparing and filing a joint, consensual bailout lawsuit with the U.S. District 

Court for the District of Columbia. 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 5 

2. If Department of Justice does not approve the County’s bailout application, discuss options with the 

County 

 

Deliverable 

Consensual bailout lawsuit documents 

 

 ARTICLE II – INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:  Consultant shall indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless 

the County of Gila and its officers, officials, agents, and employees (hereinafter referred to as “Indemnitee”) 

from and against any and all claims, actions, liabilities, damages, losses, or expenses (including court costs, 

attorneys’ fees, and costs of claim processing, investigation and litigation) (hereinafter referred to as 

“Claims”) for bodily injury or personal injury (including death), or loss or damage to tangible or intangible 

property caused, or alleged to be caused, in whole or in part, by the negligent or willful acts or omissions of 

Consultant or any of its owners, officers, directors, agents, employees or subcontractors.  This indemnity 

includes any claim or amount arising out of, or recovered under, the Workers’ Compensation Law or arising 

out of the failure of such Consultant to conform to any federal, state or local law, statute, ordinance, rule, 

regulation or court decree.  It is the specific intention of the parties that the Indemnitee shall, in all instances, 

except for Claims arising solely from the negligent or willful acts or omissions of the Indemnitee, be 

indemnified by Consultant from and against any and all claims.  It is agreed that the Consultant will be 

responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment costs where this indemnification is 

applicable.  In consideration of the award of this contract, the Consultant agrees to waive all rights of 

subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, agents and employees for losses arising from the work 

performed by the Consultant for the County. 

 

ARTICLE III - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  Consultant and subcontractors shall procure and 

maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods under this 

Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to property which may arise 

from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, his agents, 

representatives, employees or subcontractors.   

 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way limit the 

indemnity covenants contained in this Contract.  The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits 

contained herein are sufficient to protect the Consultant from liabilities that might arise out of the 

performance of the work under this contract by the Consultant, his agents, representatives, employees or 

subcontractors and Consultant is free to purchase additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 

A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE:  Consultant shall provide coverage with limits of 

liability not less than those stated below. 

 
1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 

Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage and broad form contractual liability coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 6 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: "The County 

of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to liability arising out of the 

activities performed by, or on behalf of the Consultant". 

2. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 

 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 

 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 

 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 

 

3. Professional Liability (Errors and Omissions Liability) 

 Each Claim $1,000,000 

 Annual Aggregate $2,000,000 

a. In the event that the professional liability insurance required by this Contract is written on a 

claims-made basis, Consultant warrants that any retroactive date under the policy shall 

precede the effective date of this Contract; and that either continuous coverage will be 

maintained or an extended discovery period will be exercised for a period of two (2) years 

beginning at the time work under this Contract is completed. 

 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to include, the 

following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the County of 

Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by the Consultant even if 

those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this Contract. 

2 The Consultant's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory with respect 

to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Consultant shall not be limited to the liability assumed under the 

indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION: Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of this Contract 

shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, canceled, reduced in coverage 

or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the 

County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Birdie DeNero, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 and shall 

be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or approved 

unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of not less than B+ VI.  The 

County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum insurer rating is sufficient to protect the 

Consultant from potential insurer insolvency. 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 7 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Consultant shall furnish the County with certificates of insurance 

(ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  The certificates for 

each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 

behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work 

commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or prior to 

commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration of the project.  

Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to provide evidence of 

renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Birdie DeNero, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 

AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and project description shall be noted on the 

certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of all 

insurance policies required by this Contract at any time.   

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Consultants’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional insured’s 

under its policies or Consultant shall furnish to the County separate certificates and endorsements for 

each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be subject to the minimum requirements 

identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract shall be 

made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not require a formal 

Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 

ARTICLE IV – LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Contractor hereby warrants that it will at 

all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Consultant’s 

employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the “State and 

Federal Immigration Laws”).  Consultant shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs any work 

for Consultant under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 

  
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Consultant and any subcontractor 

in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration Laws.   

  
Any breach of Consultant’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and Federal 

Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a material breach of this 

Contract subjecting Consultant to penalties up to and including suspension or termination of this Contract. If 

the breach is by a subcontractor, and the subcontractor is suspended or terminated as a result, Consultant 

shall be required to take such steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have 

been provided under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, as soon as possible so as not to 

delay project completion.   

  
Consultant shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s obligations, under this 

Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the following form: 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 8 

  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply with all 

federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-

214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to 

insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by 

Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties 

up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”  

  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall be the 

responsibility of Consultant.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in delay to one or 

more tasks on the critical path of Consultant’s approved construction or critical milestones schedule, such 

period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which Consultant shall be entitled to an extension of 

time, but not costs. 

 

 ARTICLE V – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State 

of Arizona.  Consultant shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local licenses and permits 

required for the operation of the business conducted by the Consultant.  The Consultant shall comply with 

the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) 

and applicable federal regulations under the Act. 

 

ARTICLE VI – A.R.S.§35-397:  Pursuant to A.R.S.§35-397 the Contractor certifies that it does not have 

scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan. 

 

ARTICLE VII – CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-511.  

If this Agreement is terminated, the County shall be liable only for payment for services rendered and 

accepted material received by the County before the effective date of termination.  The Consultant shall be 

considered in default of this contract and such default will be considered as cause to terminate the contract 

for any of the following reasons if the Consultant: 

 

a. Fails to perform the work under the contract within the time specified in the “Notice to Proceed”; 

or 

b. Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or data to assure 

completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 

c. Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to follow the Scope of Work; or 

d. Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 

e. Fails to resume work which as been discontinued within a reasonable time after notice to do so; or 

f. Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or insolvency; or 

g. Makes assignment for the benefit or creditors. 

h. If it is found that gratuities were offered or given by the Consultant or any agent or representative 

of the Consultant, to any officer or employee of the County. 

 

ARTICLE VIII – TERM:  Contract shall begin immediately upon approval by the Gila County Board of 

Supervisors. The term of this contract shall be for twenty months, November 16, 2011 through June 30, 2012. 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 9 

ARTICLE IX – PAYMENT:  The Scope of Services as outlined above will be performed on a lump sum 

basis with a not-to-exceed without written authorization budget of $105,000.  Additional work, as authorized, 

will be performed on a Time and Materials basis per a mutually agreed upon fee between the County and the 

Consultant.  Compensation shall follow the guidelines of A.R.S. §34-221.  Each invoice must include itemized 

tasks and dollar figure for each task completed.  Each invoice must show a signature by the County 

representative confirming services rendered and authorizing payment.   

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each which shall include 

original signatures and for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the 

parties hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written. 

 



          

Professional Consulting Contract xxx/xx 10 

PROFESSIONAL CONSULTING SERVICES CONTRACT NO. 2010/100 

GILA COUNTY DIVISION OF ELECTIONS 
GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 

 
 

GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS   FEDERAL COMPLIANCE CONSULTINIG LLC 
        
 
        
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________  
Michael A. Pastor     Bruce L. Adelson 
Chairman      CEO/Attorney at Law 
        
 
        
       
ATTEST:       
 
 
_________________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard 
Deputy Clerk of the Board 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers 
Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 











    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Claudia DalMolin, Chief Administrative Officer

Submitted By: Claudia DalMolin, Sheriff's Office

Department: Sheriff's Office

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Oct. 2, 2010 begin 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Claudia DalMolin 

Information

Request/Subject

Intergovernmental Agreement between the Arizona Game and Fish Commission and the Gila County

Sheriff's Office to provide recreational boating safety and related enforcement on Roosevelt Lake.

Background Information

The Arizona Game and Fish Commission has statewide responsibilty for administering the watercraft

and law enforcement and boating safety programs on a state level.  The Gila County Sheriff's Office has

primary responsibility for recreational boating safety and related enforcement on Roosevelt Lake. In past

years, the Sheriff's Office was awarded funding from the Arizona State Parks Board; however, due to a

state budget deficit, funding is no longer being offered by the Arizona State Parks Board.

Evaluation

The Arizona Game and Fish Commission has offered to provide funding in the amount of $110,000

(with no cash-match requirement) to the Gila County Sheriff's Office in order to continue to provide law

enforcement and boating safety at Roosevelt Lake.  For many year this funding was previously provided

by the Arizona State Parks Commission (Law Enforcement and Boating Safety Fund) to the Gila County

Sheriff's Office to support Law Enforcement-Boating Deputies' salaries.  Funding was not allocated for

2010-2011. This funding in the amount of $110,000 will defer cost to support these salaries.

Conclusion

The Gila County Sheriff's Office is in need of this funding in order to provide adequate law enforcement

and boating safety on Roosevelt Lake.

Recommendation

The Gila County Sheirff's Office requests the Board of Supervisors' approval of the Intergovernmental

Agreement between the Arizona Game and Fish Commission and the Gila County Sheriff's Office.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement between the Arizona Game

and Fish Commission and the Gila County Sheriff's Office in the amount of $110,000 to provide

adequate law enforcement and boating safety on Roosevelt Lake. 

(Claudia DalMolin)

Attachments



Link: IGA Game and Fish











    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Darryl Griffin, IT

Director

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Information Technology

Fiscal Year: FY2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Nov. 16, 2010 - June, 30, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Darryl Griffin 

Information

Request/Subject

Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions, LLC General Support Agreement No. 1025-002

Background Information

For several years the Gila County I.T. Department has used Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions,

LLC to provide network services, troubleshooting and implementation of new network equipment.  Due

to upcoming County departmental relocation of offices and upgrade of the County's network security

system, the I.T. Department decided that it would be best to have a Professional Services Agreement in

place with this provider. 

Evaluation

Professional Services Agreement to provide technical expertise for Gila County technology

infrastructure. The Agreement dates are November 16, 2010, through June 30, 2011, not to exceed 80

billable hours and/or $14,000. State contract pricing of $175 per hour. State Contract number EPS

060043-16-A1.

Conclusion

By entering into this Agreement, it will help the Information Technology Department with upcoming

facility relocations/expansion in addition to implementing new and existing security infrastructure.

Recommendation

The I.T. Department recommends the approval of this Agreement to assist in the continuation of securing

the County's network and to assist the department during upcoming county departmental relocations. 

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve General Support Agreement No. 1025-002 between Gila

County and Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions, LLC, begininng November 16, 2010, through June

30, 2011, not to exceed 80 billable hours and/or $14,000.  State Contract number EPS 060043-16-A1.

(Kaycee Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Hye Tech Executive Summary Form

Link: Hye Teh General Support Agreement

Link: State of AZ Cooperative Purchasing Agreement

























    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Darryl Griffin, IT

Director

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Deputy County Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Information Technology

Fiscal Year: FY2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Nov. 16, 2010 - Nov. 15, 2013 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Darryl Griffin 

Information

Request/Subject

Telecommunications Services Agreement with NPG Cable. Inc.

Background Information

This agreement will allow the Gila County I.T. Department to replace older T1 line technology with

newer upgraded technology.

Evaluation

This three-year contract between Gila County and NPG Cable, Inc. will increase bandwidth, speed, and

reduce network interruptions during lightening storms (Fiber is not susceptible to electrical surges).

Bandwidth will increase from 3mbps to 5mbps. There will be a one-time installation charge of $7,500

and a monthly recurring cost of $825. The fiber installation and connection will replace two existing

Qwest T1 lines at the monthy cost of $580. The additional $245 per month and the one-time installation

charge will be absorbed by the Information Technology Department budget.

Conclusion

By entering into this Agreement, the overall network performance will be enhanced within Gila County

government.

Recommendation

The I.T. Department recommends the approval of this Agreeement to provide point-to-point connection

from County's Payson Administration Building to the Payson Sheriff's Office Sub-Station. 

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Telecommunications Services Agreement between Gila

County and NPG Cable, Inc. for the period November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013, which will

provide point-to-point connection between the Gila County Payson Administration Building and the

Gila County Sheriff's Office Payson Sub-Station for a one-time installation cost of $7,500 and a monthly

recurring cost of $825.

(Kaycee Stratton)

Attachments

Link: NPG Cable Agreement





















    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Darryl Griffin, IT

Director

Submitted By: Kaycee Stratton, Deputy County

Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Information Technology

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Nov. 16, 2010 - Nov. 15, 2013 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Darryl Griffin 

Information

Request/Subject

Cable One Commercial Service Agreement

Background Information

The agreement will allow the Gila County I.T. Department to extend the existing Cable One Commercial

Service Agreement dated Nov. 13, 2007; Addendum #1 dated July 9, 2008; and Addendum #2 dated July

9, 2009.  This will also include a new service connection to the Public Works Facilities located at 745 N.

Rose Mofford Way. 

Evaluation

The three-year contract between Gila County and Cable One Commercial Services will extend the

existing contract that provides metro-fiber communications to the Gila County Courthouse, Guerrero

Complex, County Attorney's Office (downtown location), and the Central Heights Facility.  It will also

provide metro-fiber communications for the new Public Works Facility.  Bandwidth will increase from

40mbps to 50mbps.  There will be a one-time installation charge of $1,500 and a monthly recurring cost

of $3,455.  This will be an additional $540 per month that will be absorbed by the Information

Technology Department. 

Conclusion

By entering into this Agreement, the overall network performance will be enhanced within Gila County

government.

Recommendation

The I.T. Department recommends the approval of this Agreement in order to allow Cable One

Commercial Services to provide continued metro-fiber communications to Gila County.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve a Commercial Service Agreement  between Gila County

and Cable One Commercial Services for the period November 16, 2010, through November 15, 2013,

to provide metro-fiber communications for the Gila County Courthouse, Guerrero Complex, Central

Heights Facility, County Attorney's Office (downtown location), and the new Public Works Complex

for a one-time installation cost of $1,500 and a monthly recurring cost of $3,455.  (Kaycee Stratton) 

Attachments



Link: Cable One Commerical Service Agreement



















    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Joseph Heatherly,

Finance Director

Submitted By: Joseph Heatherly, Deputy County

Manager

Department: Deputy County Manager Division: Finance

Fiscal Year: 2010  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: NA 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Approval to purchase three New World software modules and associated IT hardware required to process

- operate the system.  The cost of the New World software is $29,760 and the hardware is $24,571 for a

total of $54,331.

Background Information

In order to facilitate the implementation of the administrative functional enhancements including

procedural changes in the contract management, purchasing, invoicing, cash management, and grant

management Gila County must acquire new computer software and hardware. The requested new

software modules include the following units: Grants Module, Miscellaneous Billings & Receivables

Module, and Requisition Processing Module. In addition to the software, the direct support functions of

implementation, training, and prorated software maintenance fees must also be included. 

To support the operating software the County must also acquire an additional server and associated

software to allow for “virtualization” of the new and current servers. 

Evaluation

Two months ago the Finance Division undertook a project to evaluate the existing internal work

functions and internal control finance/administrative activities with all departments. Upon the initial

review and after reviewing audit report findings for the past 3 years we have indentified numerous

deficiency findings that will require changes to past operating procedures and policies. In the past month

we conducted one-on-one meetings with elected officials and directors of each department to review

areas needing improvements and possible specific enhancements. We have also established project

review teams to analyze the cause and effect of specific possible changes to procedures and policies. The

major project teams are involved in these areas: supplier invoices, purchasing, audits, cash, payroll &

timekeeping, New World systems, grants, and budgets.

The major focus of the administrative changes is to increase the overall effectiveness and efficiency of

the counties employees. In order to accomplish this task we must centralize two functions; first, the

functions of receiving and processing of supplier invoices, and second the issuing of purchase orders.

The final step is to establish the ability of generating of grant financial reports via the new world system

that is accurate and timely.

The funds for this request have been included in the current fiscal year budget of the finance department.

Past audit findings (2008 / 2009) will be resolved with the purchase of software and implementation of



Past audit findings (2008 / 2009) will be resolved with the purchase of software and implementation of

our revised procedures and policies. They are identified as; subsidiary grant accounting ledgers

maintained by the programs are not reconciled to country’s general ledger, grant reporting not submitted

timely, payroll payments to individuals either as employees or contractors with voluntary deductions not

properly completed, recording of capital assets and physical inventory not completed, and bank

reconciliations not completed timely. The audits for 2008 highlighted 22 findings of these 10 were repeat

and 10 new issues. The 2009 audit found 18 findings, with 14 repeat and 4 new. 

Conclusion

At this time any cost savings or improvements are difficult to estimate but numerous internal

improvements will be realized having both an efficiency and cost impact in the following areas:

• Improved efficiency and financial control in purchasing and monitoring all departmental expenditures

• Improved cash management included tracking AP and AR aging

• Improve timing and accurate payments to suppliers

• Allow for improved control on preparing and releasing of most external billing requirements

• Significantly improve internal audit controls via enhanced internal processes and procedures

• Improved the ability to timely track and submit reimbursement of grant projects

• Establish consistent procedures throughout all departments within Gila County

• Allow the ability to become proactive in reviewing and modifying ineffective practices. 

Recommendation

Grant the approval to purchase both the New World software and hardware to enable the progess of the

current improvement project to proceed.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve the purchase of three (3) New World financial system

computer software modules and associated hardware totalling $54,311.

(Joe Heatherly)

Attachments

Link: software modules























    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Public Works Facilities Utilities Easements.

Background Information

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the issuance of an Obligation Bond in September 2009

to construct various new Gila County facilities.  Construction began in September 2009 and is ongoing.

Evaluation

In order to meet deadlines for the construction of the new Gila County Facilities, certain documents must

be signed between Gila County and other companies.

Conclusion

In order for the work to commence and meet the deadlines, it was imperative that Mr. Stratton, who has

oversight of all the projects, sign the documents.

Recommendation

Public Works Division recommends retroactively authorizing Mr. Stratton to sign all related documents.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action for the Board of Supervisors to retroactively authorize Steve Stratton,

Public Works Division Director, the authority to sign various utility easements, bills of sale, and

developer's affidavit that all liens have been paid, with Arizona Water Company and Arizona Public

Service Company, all of which pertain to construction of the new Gila County facilities.  (Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: APS Admin Bldg Utility Easement

Link: APS Facilities & Sign Shop Bldg Utility Easement

Link: APS Roads/Shop Bldg Utility Easement

Link: AWC Admin Bldg Easement

Link: AWC Public Works Complex Bldgs Easement





















































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Shannon Boyer, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Administration

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Utility Easement for the new Gila County Jail.

Background Information

The Gila County Board of Supervisors approved the issuance of an Obligation Bond in September 2009

to construct various new Gila County facilities.  Construction began in September 2009 and is ongoing.

Evaluation

In order to meet deadlines for the construction of the new Gila County Jail, certain documents must be

signed between Gila County and other companies.

Conclusion

In order for the work to commence and meet the deadlines, the signature of the Chairman of the Board of

Supervisors is required on the Utility Easement.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends that the Chairman of the Board of Supervisors sign the Utility

Easement between Gila County and Arizona Public Service Company.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the Chairman's signature on the Utility Easement between

Gila County and Arizona Public Service in order for Arizona Public Service to conduct the work

necessary for construction completion of the new Gila County Jail. 

(Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: GC Jail Utility Easement















    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Undetermined until bid award. 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to advertise Bid Call 040108-1 - Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement Project,

Globe, AZ.

Background Information

May 2007 the Gila County Elections Department received a grant to improve ADA access to the Gila

County Courthouse. The original limits were from the outside edge of the upper landing into the main

Courthouse access located at the northern edge of the main building. This would include the existing

wall/planter, sidewalk, main concrete stairs, existing access ramp removal, and improvements. The

original project plans and engineering were 90% complete but put on hold due to other priorities. 

Since then, other developments in security and drainage issues have modified the design. The

construction will begin at the Board of Supervisors entrance from the old UPS room on the western side

toward the northern side and the front steps. The planter and ramp on the north east side will be

removed.  Water leaking in the basement and first floor offices from the outside planters should be

eliminated with these changes. The new ADA ramp, sidewalks and new stairway will make the entrance

more appealing and accessible.

Evaluation

In order to alleviate the drainage problem, completion of this project will save Gila County the cost of

future repairs and remodels. The new ADA access will improve the overall flow of traffic into the

Courthouse for all citizens.

Conclusion

This project is a priority to complete.  Due to the depressed economy, it is advantageous for Gila County

to advertise this project at this time which will optimize County expenditures.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the advertisement of Bid

Call 040108-1 to be published in the newspaper on November 17 and 24, 2010.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 040108-1



Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 040108-1

for the Gila County Courthouse ADA/Access Improvement Project. 

(Steve Stratton)

Attachments

Link: Bid 040108-1

Link: Request to Advertise



 
 
 
 
 

GILA COUNTY 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

 
GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE 

ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
BID CALL 040108-1 

 
 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION  
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

*BOARD OF SUPERVISORS* 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman 

Tommie C. Martin, Vice Chairman 
Shirley L. Dawson, Member 

 
 

*COUNTY MANAGER* 
Don E. McDaniel Jr. 

 
 

*PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR* 

Steve Stratton 
 

OCTOBER 2010 
 
 



 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 

GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
 
 

GLOBE, ARIZONA 
 
 
 
 

BIDDER'S INFORMATION 
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND SPECIFICATIONS 

 
 

BID NO. 040108-1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

C.L. Williams Consulting, Incorporated 
621 South Hillside Lane 
Pinetop, Arizona 85935 

(928) 367-2248 
 



  

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION 0I 
 
 

INVITATION FOR BIDS 
 
 
 
 

IFB-1 
 



                                             INVITATION FOR BIDS 
       BID CALL NO.   040108-1  

Sealed bids will be received by Gila County Engineering Services, Guerrero Complex, 1400 East Ash St., 
Globe, AZ 85501, until 11:00 A.M. (AZ Time), Monday, December 6th, 2010 for the GILA COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA, BID NO. 040108-1 in 
strict accordance with the rules and regulations of the Gila County Procurement Code on file in the 
office of the Gila County Clerk of the Board, Globe, Arizona.  No bids will be accepted after 11:00 AM.  
The Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud at 11:00 AM, Arizona time, at the location and date 
listed above. 

   
All Bids shall be made on the Invitation for Bids forms included in the Contract Documents and shall 
include all applicable taxes.  
 

There is a mandatory site walk through scheduled for Monday, November 29th, 2010 at 10:00 A.M. 
Meeting shall be on-site at the North side of the County Courthouse, 1400 E. Ash. St., Globe, AZ. Only 
those companies signed in on the walk through sign-in sheet will be permitted to bid. Plans, 
Specifications and Contract documents are available and may be obtained from the office of Engineering 
Services, 928-402-8612, Gila County Public Works Division, Guerrero Complex, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 
AZ. 
 

Each Bid submitted, either by hand, United States Postal Service, or other carrier, shall be sealed and 
plainly marked "GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GILA COUNTY, 
ARIZONA BID CALL NO. 040108-1”.  All Bids shall be mailed or delivered to the Gila County Engineering 
Services, Guerrero Complex, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, Arizona  85501. Gila County Engineering Services 
and Board of Supervisors of Gila County will not be responsible for those bids submitted that are not 
marked appropriately and/or sent to the wrong address.  The prevailing clock shall be the atomic clock 
in the reception area of the Guerrero Complex. 
 

Contractors are invited to be present at the opening of bids but absence will not be considered cause for 
disqualification. 
 

Contractors shall be responsible for any licenses or permits required by the regulatory agency of the 
State of Arizona that apply to the performance of this contract. 
 

After the Contractor who is determined to be most Advantageous to the county has been selected 
through the source selection process, negotiations may be conducted for the purpose of developing a 
recommended Contract for Award. 
 

The Gila County Board of Supervisors reserves the right to reject any or all bids, or to accept any bids, or 
to waive any informality in any bid, or to withhold the award if deemed in the best interest of Gila 
County. 
 

Dates advertised in Arizona Silver Belt:   November 17th and 24th, 2010 
 
Signed:_____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
 for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 

 
Signed: _____________________________________________  Date:  _____/_____/_____ 
 Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager 
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
GENERAL PROVISIONS 

SECTION 01 ..................................................................................................................................... 1 

NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS ........................................................................................................... 1 

 

SECTION 10 ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

DEFINITION OF TERMS ................................................................................................................... 3 

 

SECTION 20 ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS ............................................................................ 9 

20-03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS .................................................................................... 9 

20-04 ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS...................................................................................... 9 

20-05 INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES .............................................. 9 

20-06 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE..................................................... 9 

20-07  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL ........................................................................................ 10 

20-08 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS.................................................................................................. 10 

20-09 PROPOSAL GUARANTY .................................................................................................... 11 

20-10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL ................................................................................................ 11 

20-11 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS ................................................................. 11 

20-12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................... 11 

20-13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS ..................................................................................... 11 

20-14 PROTESTS ........................................................................................................................ 12 

 

SECTION 30 ................................................................................................................................... 13 

AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT .................................................................................... 13 

30-01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS ................................................................................... 13 

30-02 AWARD OF CONTRACT ................................................................................................... 13 

30-03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD ............................................................................................ 13 

30-04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY ................................................................................ 13 

30-05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS ......................................................................... 14 

30-06 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................. 14 

30-07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................... 14 

30-08 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT ................................................................................... 14 

30-09  DISPUTE & RESOLUTION. ............................................................................................... 14 

 

SECTION 40 ................................................................................................................................... 16 

SCOPE OF WORK ........................................................................................................................... 16 

40-01 INTENT OF CONTRACT .................................................................................................... 16 

40-02 ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES ...................................................................... 16 

40-03 OMITTED ITEMS .............................................................................................................. 16 

40-04 EXTRA WORK .................................................................................................................. 17 

40-05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC ............................................................................................ 17 

40-06 RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK ........................................... 18 

40-07 FINAL CLEANING UP ........................................................................................................ 19 



 

SECTION 50 ................................................................................................................................... 20 

CONTROL OF WORK ..................................................................................................................... 20 

50-01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER ...................................................................... 20 

50-02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ......................................................... 20 

50-03 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS ...................................... 21 

50-04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR ................................................................................... 21 

50-05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS ...................................................................... 21 

50-06 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES ........................................................................... 22 

50-07 AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT ................................................................ 22 

50-08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS ...................................................................... 22 

50-09 INSPECTION OF THE WORK ............................................................................................ 22 

50-10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK ......................................... 23 

50-11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS ....................................................................................................... 24 

50-12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION ...................................................................... 24 

50-13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK ................................................................................ 24 

50-14 PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE .................................................................................................... 25 

50-15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE ........................................................................................................ 25 

50-17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL) ........................................................................... 26 

50-18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE ............................................................................................ 26 

50-19 NEGOTIATIONS WITH INDIVIDUAL CONTRACTORS ........................................................ 26 

 

SECTION 60 ................................................................................................................................... 28 

CONTROL OF MATERIAL ............................................................................................................... 28 

60-01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS ...................................................... 28 

60-02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS ............................................................... 28 

60-03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE ................................................................................... 29 

60-04 PLANT INSPECTION ......................................................................................................... 29 

60-05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY ................................................................... 30 

60-06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS ................................................................................................ 30 

60-07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS ........................................................................................... 30 

60-08 OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS .................................................................................... 30 

 

SECTION 70 ................................................................................................................................... 32 

LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC .................................................................. 32 

70-01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED .................................................................................................. 32 

70-02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES ..................................................................................... 32 

70-03 PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES ....................................................... 32 

70-04 RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS .................................................... 32 

70-05 SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS .............................................................. 33 

70-06 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY ............................................................................... 34 

70-07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS ............................................. 34 

70-08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE ............................... 34 

70-09 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS .......................................................................... 35 

70-10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE ........................................................................................... 35 

70-11 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE ............................................................................... 36 

70-12 OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK TO TRAFFIC ............................................................ 36 



70-13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK ................................................................. 36 

70-14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS .... 37 

70-15 FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY ........................................................................................ 38 

70-16 PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS .................................................................... 38 

70-17 NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS........................................................................................ 38 

70-18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ..................................................................................... 39 

 

SECTION 80 ................................................................................................................................... 40 

PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ................................................................................................... 40 

80-01 SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................ 40 

80-02 NOTICE TO PROCEED ...................................................................................................... 40 

80-03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS ...................................................................................... 41 

80-04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS .................................................................................................. 41 

80-05 CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT .............................................. 41 

80-06 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK ...................................................................... 42 

80-07 DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME ............................................... 43 

80-08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME ................................................................................... 44 

80-09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT ................................................................. 45 

80-10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES ............................................................... 46 

 

SECTION 90 ................................................................................................................................... 47 

MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT .................................................................................................. 47 

90-01 MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES .................................................................................... 47 

90-02 SCOPE OF PAYMENT ....................................................................................................... 50 

90-03 COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES ................................................................. 50 

90-04 PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS ..................................................................................... 50 

90-05 PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK ..................................................... 51 

90-06 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT ............................................................................... 52 

 
 
SPECIAL PROVISIONS 

PROPOSED WORK……………………………………………………………………………………………………….....….SP-1 
GENERAL REQUIREMENTS…………………………………………………………………………………………….…...SP-1 
POINTS AND INSTRUCTION AND AS-BUILTS .……………………………………………………………..………SP-1 
CONSTRUCTION LIMITS …………………………………………………………………………………………………….SP-2 
OPERATION AND TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS……………………………………………………………………….SP-3 
QUALITY CONTROL PLAN …………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP-3 
SAMPLING AND TESTING …………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP-3 
MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT ………………………………………………………………………………………..SP-4 
HAUL ROUTE ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….….SP-5 
DUST CONTROL……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….…SP-5 
TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS …………………………………………………………………….…SP-5 
OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE……………………………………………………………………………………………………...SP-5 
BLASTING NOTIFICATION……………………………………………………………………………………………………SP-6 
UTILITY SYSTEMS………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..SP-6 
UTILITY RELOCATION/REMOVAL………………………………………………………………………………………..SP-6 



DISPOSAL OF REMOVED VEGETATION OR UNSUITABLE MATERIALS ………………………………….SP-6 
KEYSTONE WALLS ………………………………………………………………………….………………………………….SP-6 
 
 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

201-CLEARNING AND GRUBBING ………………………………………………………………………………….…….T-1 
202-REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS ………………………………………………….…….T-1 
203-EARTH WORK ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….T-1 
206-STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL ……………………………………………………………………..T-2 
206-FURNISH WATER SUPPLY ……………………………………………………………………………………………..T-2 
301-SUBGRADE PREPARATION  …………………………………………………………………………………………..T-2 
303-AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES  ………………………………………………………..T-2 
321-ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVEMENT  ……………………………………………………………………………..T-2 
340-CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, SIDEWALK RAMPS, DRIVEWAY AND ALLEY 
ENTRANCE………………………………………………………………………………………………….………………………..T-3 
520-STEEL AND ALUMINUM HANDRIALS……………………………………………………………………………..T-3 
701-MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC ……………………………………………………………T-3 
810-EROSION CONTROL AND POLLUTION PREVENTION (SWPPP) ……………………………………….T-4 
901-MOBILIZATION ………………………………………………………………………………………………………..…..T-4 
909-SURVEY MARKER  …………………………………………………………………………………………………………T-4 
925-CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING AND LAYOUT AND AS-BUILT DRAWINGS …………………………T-4 
 
 

CONTRACT FORMS 

PROPOSAL …………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..P-1 
BIDDING SCHEDULE …………………………………………………………………………………..………………………BS-1 
SURETY (BID) BOND ………………………………………………………………………………………………………….BB-1 
QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION ……………………………………………………………………………….QC-1 
REFERENCE LIST ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..RL-1 
AFFIDAVIT OF NON-COLLUSION ………………………………………………………………………………..……ANC-1 
SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFICATION …………………………………………………………………………………….SC-1 
CHECKLIST AND ADDENDA ACKNOWLEDGMENT ……………………………….……………………………..CK-1 
CONTRACT ………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………….C-1 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE BOND …………………………………………………………………………………..CPB-1 
LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND ………………………………………….……………………………….………....LMB-1 
CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY ……………………………………………………………………..…CWP-1 



 GP-1 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
Bid No. 040108-1 

 

 SECTION 01 
 
 NOTIFICATION TO BIDDERS 
 
 
BIDDERS ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED: 
 
1. The bidder must supply all the information required by the bidding documents or 

specifications.  All proposals shall be made on the bid proposal forms prepared by Gila 
County as part of the Contract Documents.  No forms shall be detached from the bid 
packet.  The proposal must include the entire bid packet and the following forms, all 
with original signatures, must accompany the bidders proposal: 

 
 Bid Proposal (pages P-1 to P-3) 
 Qualification & Certification Form (pages QC-1 to QC-2) 
 Reference List (RL1) 
 Bid Schedule (pages BS-1 to BS-2) 
 Surety (Bid) Bond (page BB-1) 
 Affidavit of Non-Collusion (page ANC-1) 
 Subcontracting Certification (page SC-1) 
 Check List & Addenda Acknowledgment (CK-1) 
 Contract (C1-C7) 

 
Failure to include all required documents, all with original signatures, may invalidate 
the bid.  Prices shall include all applicable taxes.   

 
2. Proposal Guaranty -Proposals shall be accompanied by a certified check, cashier's check 

or bid bond for 10 percent (10%) of the total contract price bid. 
 
3. Delivery of Proposal - Each bid shall be sealed and plainly marked "Bid No. 040108-1 

GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT", on the outer 
most envelope or label.  If courier is used, bidder shall instruct the courier to deliver the 
package by Monday, December 6th, 2010, 11:00 a.m. on the date specified herein, to 
the Public Works Division, Gila County, in the Guerrero Complex at 1400 East Ash, 
Globe, Arizona 85501.  No bids will be accepted after 11:00 A.M. AZ Time, Monday, 
December 6th, 2010.  Bids will be opened at 11:00 A.M. , Monday, December 6th, 2010.  

  
4. Rejection of Bids -The Owner reserves the right to reject any and all bids, waive all or 

any informalities in the bids. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-2 

 
Notification to Bidders continued… 
 
 

5. Plans and Specifications -Plans, specifications and all other documents required by 
bidders may be obtained at the address shown below.  A deposit of $20 per set, and 
$10 for mailing, $20 of which will be refunded upon return of the documents in good, 
usable order within seven (7) days of bid award.  Payment shall be by check or money 
order only.  No cash will be accepted.  

   
Gila County  

Guerrero Complex 
1400 East Ash 

Globe, Arizona 85501 
 
6. Arizona Contractor's License -Prior to submission of bids, bidders must have a valid 

Arizona Contractor's License of a type which meets all criteria and requirements to 
perform the work as specified in the contract documents in accordance with the Arizona 
State Registrar of Contractors. 

 
7. Bid Opening Information - Information regarding the bid award will not be available 

until after the Gila County Board of Supervisors has issued a decision regarding the 
submitted project bids. This will be the only time, until bid award, this information will 
be revealed.  

 
8. Mandatory Pre-Bid Walk Through 

There is a mandatory site walk through scheduled for Monday, November 29th, 2010 at 
10:00 A.M..  Meeting shall be on-site at the North side of the Gila County Courthouse at 
1400 East Ash Street, Globe, Arizona. Only those companies signed in on the walk 
through sign-in sheet will be permitted to bid.  

 
9. Request for Clarifications 

Requests for clarification shall be made to Ms. Valrie Bejarano (vbejarano@co.gila.az.us) 
in writing (phone: 928-402-8612 fax: 928-425-8104) submitted no later than Tuesday, 
November 30th, 2010 at 12:00 Noon.  A response will be issued to all plan holders no 
later than Wednesday, December 1st, 2010 at 2:00 P.M. 
 

 

 

 

 

mailto:vbejarano@co.gila.az.us


 GP-3 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 

 

 SECTION 10 
 
 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
Whenever the following terms are used in these specifications, in the contract, in any 
documents or other instruments pertaining to construction where these specifications govern, 
the intent and meaning shall be interpreted as follows: 
 
10-00 M.A.G.  Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Latest Edition 
and Revisions).  Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 
10-01 ACCESS ROAD.  The right-of-way, the roadway and all improvements constructed 
thereon. 
 
10-02 ADOT.  Arizona Department of Transportation 
 
10-03 ADOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS.  "Arizona Department of Transportation Standard 
Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Revised Edition 2000", and all revisions. 
 
10-04 ADVERTISEMENT.  A public announcement, as required by local law, inviting bids for 
work to be performed and materials to be furnished. 
 
10-05 ASTM.  The American Society for Testing and Materials. 
 
10-05a AASHTO.  The American Association of State Highway and Transportation Officials. 
 
10-06 AWARD.  The acceptance, by the Owner, of the successful bidder's proposal. 
 
10-07 BIDDER.  Any individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, acting directly or through a 
duly authorized representative, who submits a proposal for the work contemplated. 
 
10-08 BUILDING AREA.  An area to be used, considered, or intended to be used for a building or 
other facilities or rights-of-way together with all buildings and facilities located thereon. 
 
10-09 CALENDAR DAY.  Every day shown on the calendar. 
 
10-09a CERTIFIED FLAGGER.  An individual who has been trained and certified by the Arizona 
Department of Transportation, an Arizona County or Municipal agency, the Federal Highway 
Administration, or the Highway agency of another state, to control traffic in a construction 
zone.  Individuals certified outside Arizona must also exhibit familiarity with Arizona laws. 
 
10-10 CHANGE ORDER.  A written order by the Engineer or Owner to the Contractor covering 
changes in the plans, specifications, or proposal quantities and establishing the basis of 
payment and contract time adjustment, if any, for the work affected by such changes.  The 
work, covered by a change order, shall be within the scope of the contract. 



 GP-4 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 

10-11 CONTRACT.  The written agreement covering the work to be performed.  The awarded 
contract shall include, but is not limited to:  the Advertisement; the Contract form; the 
Proposal; the Performance Bond; the Payment Bond; any required insurance certificates; the 
Specifications; the Plans; and any addenda issued to bidders. 
 
10-12 CONTRACT ITEM (PAY ITEM).  A specific unit of work for which a price is provided in the 
contract.  All pay items on this contract will be measured in English units. 
 
10-13 CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar days or working days, stated in the proposal, 
allowed for completion of the contract, including authorized time extensions.  If a calendar date 
of completion is stated in the proposal, in lieu of a number of calendar or working days, the 
contract shall be completed by that date. 
 
10-14 CONTRACTOR.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation primarily liable for the 
acceptable performance of the work contracted and for the payment of all legal debts 
pertaining to the work who acts directly or through lawful agents or employees to complete the 
contract work. 
 
10-15 CONTRACTOR'S ENGINEER.  The Arizona Registered Professional Civil Engineer, 
individual, partnership, firm, or corporation, duly authorized by Contractor to be responsible for 
engineering supervision, quality control and certification of the Contract work. 
 
10-15a DEPARTMENT.   The term Department in the ADOT Standard Specifications and 
supplements references the Arizona Department of Transportation.  Department shall 
reference OWNER for this contract work.   
 
10-16 ENGINEER.   See OWNER. 
 
10-17 EQUIPMENT.  All machinery, together with the necessary fuel and supplies for upkeep 
and maintenance including, but not limited to, all tools and apparatus necessary for the proper 
construction and acceptable completion of the work. 
 
10-18 EXTRA WORK.  An item of work not provided for in the awarded contract as previously 
modified by change order or supplemental agreement, but which is found by the Owner's 
Engineer to be necessary to complete the work within the intended scope of the contract as 
previously modified. 
 
10-19 INSPECTOR.  An authorized representative of the Owner's Engineer assigned to make all 
necessary quality assurance inspections and/or tests of the work performed or being 
performed, or of the materials furnished or being furnished by the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-5 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 

10-20 INTENTION OF TERMS.  Whenever, in these specifications or on the plans, the words 
"directed," "required," "permitted," "ordered," "designated," "prescribed," or words of the like 
import are used, it shall be understood that the direction, requirement, permission, order, 
designation, or prescription of the Owner's Engineer is intended; and similarly, the words, 
"approved," "acceptable," "satisfactory," or words of like import, shall mean approved by, or 
acceptable to, or satisfactory to the Owner's Engineer, subject in each case to the final 
determination of the Owner. 
 
Any reference to a specific requirement of a numbered paragraph of the contract specifications 
or a cited standard shall be interpreted to include all general requirements of the entire 
section, specification item, or cited standard that may be pertinent to such specific reference. 
 
10-21 LABORATORY.  A testing laboratory as may be designated or approved by the Owner’s 
Engineer to test construction materials and products. 
 
10-22 LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the 
Contractor and his surety as a guaranty that he will pay in full all bills and accounts for materials 
and labor used in the construction of the work.  Also known as Payment Bond. 
 
10-23 MAJOR AND MINOR CONTRACT ITEMS.  A major contract item shall be any item that is 
listed in the proposal, the total cost of which is equal to or greater than 10 percent of the total 
amount of the awarded contract.  All other items shall be considered minor contract items. 
 
10-24 MATERIALS.  Any substance specified for use in the construction of the contract work. 
 
10-24a MUTCD.  The Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways, U.S. 
Department of Transportation, Federal Highway Administration, Millennium Edition, with 
current revisions. 
 
10-25 NOTICE TO PROCEED.  A written notice to the Contractor to begin the actual contract 
work on a previously agreed to date.  If applicable, the Notice to Proceed shall state the date on 
which the contract time begins. 
 
10-26 OWNER (SPONSOR).  The term Owner shall mean the party of the first part or the 
contracting agency signatory to the contract. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-6 

 
Definition of Terms continued. 
 
 

10-27 OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The individual, partnership, firm, or corporation duly authorized by 
the Owner (sponsor) to be responsible for engineering supervision of the contract work and 
acting directly or through an authorized representative.  The Owner's Engineer is: 
 

C.L. Williams Consulting Inc. 
621 South Hillside Lane 
Pinetop, Arizona 85935 
(928) 367-2248 

 
 Contacts: Joseph M. Alwin, P.E. (joe@clwilliams.net) 
 
10-28 PAVEMENT.  The combined surface, base course, and sub base course, if any, considered 
as a single unit. 
 
10-29 PERFORMANCE BOND.  The approved form of security furnished by the Contractor and 
his surety as a guaranty that the Contractor will complete the work in accordance with the 
terms of the contract. 
 
10-30 PLANS.  The official drawings or exact reproductions, approved by the Owner's Engineer, 
which show the location, character, dimensions and details of the work to be done and which 
are to be considered as a part of the contract, supplementary to the specifications. 
 
10-31 PROJECT.  The agreed scope of work for accomplishing specific tasks. 
 
10-32 PROPOSAL.  The written offer of the bidder (when submitted on the approved proposal 
form) to perform the contemplated work and furnish the necessary materials in accordance 
with the provisions of the plans and specifications. 
 
10-33 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  The security furnished with a proposal to guarantee that the 
bidder will enter into a contract if his proposal is accepted by the Owner. 
 
10-34 SPECIFICATIONS.  A part of the contract containing the written directions and 
requirements for completing the contract work.  Standards for specifying materials or testing 
which are cited in the contract specifications by reference shall have the same force and effect 
as if included in the contract physically. 
 
10-35 STRUCTURES.  Facilities such as bridges, culverts, catch basins, inlets, retaining walls, 
cribbing, storm and sanitary sewer lines, water lines, underdrains, electrical ducts, manholes, 
handholes, lighting fixtures and bases, transformers, flexible and rigid pavements, navigational 
aids, buildings, vaults, and other manmade features that may be encountered in the work and 
not otherwise classified herein. 
 
 
 



 GP-7 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 

10-36 SUBGRADE.  The soil that forms the pavement foundation. 
 
10-37 SUPERINTENDENT.  The Contractor's authorized representative who is present on the 
work site during progress, and is authorized to receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner's 
Engineer, and who shall supervise and direct the construction. 
 
10-38 SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT.  A written agreement between the Contractor and the 
Owner covering: 1) work that would increase or decrease the total dollar amount of the 
awarded contract, or any major contract item, by more than 25 percent, such increased or 
decreased work being within the scope of the originally awarded contract, or 2) work that is not 
within the scope of the originally awarded contract. 
 
10-39 SURETY.  The corporation, partnership, or individual, other than the Contractor, 
executing payment or performance bonds which are furnished to the Owner by the Contractor. 
 
10-40 WORK.  The furnishing of all labor, materials, tools, equipment and incidentals necessary 
or convenient to the Contractor's performance of all duties and obligations imposed by the 
contract, plans, and specifications. 
 
10-41 WORK DAY, WORKING DAY.  A work day shall be any day other than a legal holiday, 
Saturday, or Sunday on which the normal working forces of the Contractor may proceed with 
regular work for at least 6 hours toward completion of the contract, unless work is suspended 
for causes beyond the Contractor's control.  Saturdays, Sundays and holidays on which the 
Contractor's forces engage in regular work, after obtaining written permission from the Public 
Works Director, or his authorized representative, which requires the presence of an inspector, 
will be considered and applied as working days.   
 
10-42 WORK WEEK.  A work week shall consist of forty (40) hours beginning on Sunday and 
ending on Saturday.  Should the Contractor engage in work exceeding the forty (40) hour work 
week which requires the presence of an inspector, as determined by the County Public Works 
Director or his authorized representative, the Contractor shall reimburse the County for all 
overtime hours as 10-43. 
 
10-43 OVERTIME HOURS.  Any and all hours worked which are other than a normal work week 
as defined under 10-42.  Contractor must give prior written notification to the Public Works 
Director or his authorized representative, for any and all overtime hours to be worked.  It shall 
be at the Owner's discretion to provide an inspector at the worksite to ensure compliance 
during any and all overtime hours worked.  
 
10-44 OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay resulting from overtime hours worked.  
 
 
 
 



 GP-8 

 
Definition of Terms continued… 
 
 

10-45 OWNER'S INSPECTOR'S OVERTIME PAY.  Any and all pay to the Owner's Inspector for 
overtime hours worked resulting from the Contractor having received approval for overtime 
hours.  The inspector's overtime pay shall be the actual monies paid by the County and shall be 
reimbursed by the Contractor to the County.  Certified payrolls for the Owner's Inspector's 
Overtime will be submitted to the Contractor.  The cost for the Owner's Inspector's Overtime 
Pay will be deducted from the Contractor's billing. 
   
10-46 SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.  See the ADOT Standard Specification Section 105.19 



 GP-9 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 20 
 
 PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND CONDITIONS 
 
20-03 CONTENTS OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner shall furnish bidders with proposal forms.  
All papers bound with or attached to the proposal forms are necessary parts of the proposal. 
The proposal submitted by the bidder must include the entire bid packet. 
 
The plans, specifications, and other documents designated in the proposal whether attached or 
not to the proposal are considered as a part of and included with the proposal. 
 
20-04 ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS.  The Owner reserves the right to refuse to issue a 
proposal form to a prospective bidder should such bidder be in default for any of the following 
reasons:  
 

(a) Failure to comply with any prequalification regulations of the Owner, if such 
regulations are cited, or otherwise included, in the proposal as a requirement for 
bidding. 

(b) Failure to pay, or satisfactorily settle, all bills due for labor and materials on former 
contracts in force (with the Owner) at the time the Owner issues the proposal to a 
prospective bidder. 

(c) Contractor default under previous contracts with the Owner. 
(d) Unsatisfactory work on previous contracts with the Owner. 

 
20-05 INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED PROPOSAL QUANTITIES.  An estimate of quantities of 
work to be done and materials to be furnished under these specifications is given in the 
proposal.  It is the result of careful calculations and is believed to be correct.  It is given only as a 
basis for comparison of proposals and the award of the contract.  The Owner does not expressly 
or by implication agree that the actual quantities involved will correspond exactly therewith; 
nor shall the bidder plead misunderstanding or deception because of such estimates of 
quantities, or of the character, location, or other conditions pertaining to the work.  Payment 
to the Contractor will be made only for the actual quantities of work performed or materials 
furnished in accordance with the plans and specifications.  It is understood that the quantities 
may be increased or decreased as hereinafter provided in the subsection titled ALTERATION OF 
WORK AND QUANTITIES of Section 40-02 without in any way invalidating the unit bid prices. 
 
20-06 EXAMINATION OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND SITE.  The bidder is expected to 
carefully examine the site of the proposed work, the proposal, plans, specifications, and 
contract forms.  He shall satisfy himself as to the character, quality, and quantities of work to be 
performed, materials to be furnished, and as to the requirements of the proposed contract.  
The submission of a proposal shall be prima facie evidence that the bidder has made such 
examination and is satisfied as to the conditions to be encountered in performing the work and 
as to the requirements of the proposed contract, plans and specifications. 
 
 



 GP-10 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 

If any person contemplating submitting a bid for the proposed contract is in doubt as to the 
true meaning of any part of the plans, specifications, or other proposed contract documents, or 
finds discrepancies in, or omissions from the drawings or specifications, he may submit to the 
Owner's Engineer a written request for an interpretation or correction thereof.  The person 
submitting the request will be responsible for its prompt delivery.  Any interpretation or 
correction of the contract documents will be made only by addendum duly issued and a copy of 
such addendum will be made or delivered to each person having received a set of such 
documents.  The Owner will not be responsible for any other explanations or interpretations of 
the contract documents. 
 
Any addenda or bulletins issued during the time of bid preparations, forming a part of the 
contract documents furnished the bidder for the preparation of his bid, shall be covered in the 
bid, and shall be made a part of the contract. 
 
20-07  PREPARATION OF PROPOSAL  The bidder shall submit his proposal on the forms 
furnished by the Owner.  No forms shall be detached from the bid packet.  The proposal must 
include the entire bid packet.  All blank spaces in the proposal forms must be correctly filled in 
where indicated for each and every item for which a quantity is given.  The bidder shall state 
the price (written in ink or typed) in NUMERALS for which he proposes to do each pay item 
furnished in the proposal.  The TOTAL AGGREGATE AMOUNT bid shall be stated in both WORDS 
and NUMERALS.  A minimum of one (1) original and two (2) copies all with original signatures 
shall be submitted. 
 
The bidder shall sign his proposal correctly and in ink.  If the proposal is made by an individual, 
his name and mailing address must be shown.  If made by a partnership, the name and mailing 
address of each member of the partnership must be shown.  If made by a corporation, the 
person signing the proposal shall give the name of the state under which the laws of the 
corporation were chartered and the name, titles, and business address of the president, 
secretary, and the treasurer.  Anyone signing a proposal as an agent shall file evidence of his 
authority to do so and that the signature is binding upon the firm or corporation. 
 
20-08 IRREGULAR PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be considered irregular for the following 
reasons: 
 

(a) If the proposal is on a form other than that furnished by the Owner, or if the Owner's 
form is altered, or if any part of the proposal form is detached. 

(b) If there are unauthorized additions, conditional or alternate pay items, or irregularities 
of any kind which make the proposal incomplete, indefinite, or otherwise ambiguous. 

(c) If the proposal does not contain a unit price for each pay item listed in the proposal, 
except in the case of authorized alternate pay items, for which the bidder is not 
required to furnish a unit price. 

(d) If the proposal contains unit prices that are obviously unbalanced. 
(e) If the proposal is not accompanied by the proposal guaranty specified by the Owner. 

 
 



 GP-11 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 

The Owner reserves the right to reject any irregular proposal and the right to waive 
technicalities if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and conforms to local laws and 
ordinances pertaining to the letting of construction contracts. 
 
20-09 PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  Each proposal shall be accompanied by a certified check, 
cashier’s check or surety bond for ten percent (10%) of the amount of the bid included in the 
proposal as a guarantee that the Contractor will enter into a contract to perform the proposed 
work in accordance with the plans and specifications. 
 
20-10  DELIVERY OF PROPOSAL.  Each proposal submitted shall be placed in a sealed envelope 
plainly marked with the project number, name of project, and name and business address of 
the bidder on the outside.  When sent by mail, preferably registered, or courier, the sealed 
proposal, marked as indicated above, should be enclosed in an additional envelope.  No 
proposal will be considered unless received at the place specified in the advertisement before 
the time specified.  Proposals received after the specified time shall be returned to the bidder 
unopened. 
 
20-11 WITHDRAWAL OR REVISION OF PROPOSALS.  A bidder may withdraw or revise (by 
withdrawal of one proposal and submission of another) a proposal provided that the bidder's 
request for withdrawal is received by the Owner in writing or by telegram before the time 
specified for receipt of bids.  Revised proposals must be received at the place specified in the 
advertisement before the time specified for receipt of bids.   
 
20-12 PUBLIC OPENING OF PROPOSALS.  Proposals shall be opened and read publicly at the 
time and place specified in the advertisement.  Bidders, their authorized agents, and other 
interested persons are invited to attend. 
 
Proposals that have been withdrawn (by written or telegraphic request) or received after the 
time specified shall be returned to the bidder unopened. 
 
This will be the only time, until bid award, this information will be revealed. 
 
20-13 DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS.  A bidder shall be considered disqualified for any of the 
following reasons: 
 

(a) Submitting more than one proposal from the same partnership, firm, or corporation 
under the same or different name. 

(b) Evidence of collusion among bidders.  Bidders participating in such collusion shall be 
disqualified as bidders for any future work of the Owner until any such participating 
bidder has been reinstated by the Owner as a qualified bidder. 

(c) If the bidder is considered to be in "default" for any reason specified in the subsection 
titled ISSUANCE OF PROPOSAL FORMS of Section 20-04. 

(d)  Failure to submit all required official bid forms. 
 
 



 GP-12 

Proposal Requirements & Conditions continued… 
 
 

20-14 PROTESTS.  Only other bidders have the right to protest.  A protest of a proposed award 
or of an award must be filed within ten (10) days after the bid award by the Gila County Board 
of Supervisors and must be sent to the Board of Supervisors.  A protest must be in writing and 
must include: 
 

(a) Name, address and telephone number of the protester. 
(b) Signature of the protester or its representative, and evidence of authority to sign. 
(c) Identification of the contract and the solicitation or contract number. 
(d) Detailed statement of the legal and factual grounds of protest including copies of 

relevant documents. 
(e) The form of relief requested. 

 
All protests shall be sent to the attention of the Gila County Board of Supervisors, 1400 E. Ash 
Street, Globe, Arizona  85501 

 



 GP-13 

GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 30 
 
 AWARD AND EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
 
30-01 CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS.  After the proposals are publicly opened and read, they 
will be compared on the basis of the summation of the products obtained by multiplying the 
estimated quantities shown in the proposal by the unit bid prices.  If a bidder's proposal 
contains a discrepancy between unit bid prices written in words and unit bid prices written in 
numbers, the unit price written in words, unless obviously incorrect, shall govern. 
 
Until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject a bidder's proposal 
for any of the following reasons: 
 

(a) If the proposal is irregular as specified in the subsection titled IRREGULAR PROPOSALS of 
Section 20-08. 

(b) If the bidder is disqualified for any of the reasons specified in the subsection titled 
DISQUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS of Section 20-13. 

 
In addition, until the award of a contract is made, the Owner reserves the right to reject any or 
all proposals; waive technicalities, if such waiver is in the best interest of the Owner and is in 
conformance with applicable state and local laws or regulations pertaining to the letting of 
construction contracts; advertise for new proposals; or proceed with the work otherwise.  All 
such actions shall promote the Owner's best interests. 
 
30-02 AWARD OF CONTRACT.  The award of contract, if it is to be awarded, shall be made 
within sixty (60) calendar days of the date specified for publicly opening proposals, unless 
otherwise specified herein. 
 
This contract will be awarded to the responsible bidder whose bid conforms to the invitation 
and whose bid is the most advantageous to the Owner concerning price, conformity to the 
specifications and other factors. 
 
30-03 CANCELLATION OF AWARD.  The Owner reserves the right to cancel the award without 
liability to the bidder, except return of proposal guaranty, at any time before a contract has 
been fully executed by all parties and is approved by the Owner in accordance with the 
subsection titled APPROVAL OF CONTRACT of Section 30-07. 
 
30-04 RETURN OF PROPOSAL GUARANTY.  All proposal guaranties, except those of the two (2) 
lowest bidders, will be returned immediately after the Owner has made a comparison of bids as 
hereinbefore specified in the subsection titled CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSALS of Section 30-
01.  Proposal guaranties of the two lowest bidders will be retained by the Owner until such time 
as an award is made, at which time the unsuccessful bidder's proposal guaranty will be 
returned as soon as the Owner receives the contract bonds as specified in the subsection titled 
REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05. 
 
 



 GP-14 

Award & Execution of Contract continued… 
 
 

30-05 REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS.  At the time of the execution of the contract, the 
successful bidder shall furnish the Owner surety bond or bonds which have been fully executed 
by the bidder and his surety guaranteeing the performance of the work and the payment of all 
legal debts that may be incurred by reason of the Contractor's performance of the work.  The 
surety and the form of the bond or bonds shall be acceptable to the Owner.  Unless otherwise 
specified in this subsection, the surety bond or bonds shall be in a sum equal to the full amount 
of the contract.  All bonds shall conform to the requirements of A.R.S. §34-222 and §34-223. § 
 
30-06 EXECUTION OF CONTRACT. The successful bidder shall sign (execute) the necessary 
agreements for entering into the contract and return such signed contract to the Owner, along 
with the fully executed surety bond or bonds specified in the subsection titled REQUIREMENTS 
OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05, the Contractor’s Statement of Insurance and an original 
Certificate of Insurance conforming with the requirements of Section 70-10, within 10 calendar 
days from the date mailed or otherwise delivered to the successful bidder.  If the contract is 
mailed, special handling is recommended. 
 
30-07 APPROVAL OF CONTRACT.  Upon receipt of the contract and contract bond or bonds that 
have been executed by the successful bidder, the Owner shall complete the execution of the 
contract in accordance with local laws or ordinances, and return the fully executed contract to 
the Contractor.  Delivery of the fully executed contract to the Contractor shall constitute the 
Owner's approval to be bound by the successful bidder's proposal and the terms of the 
contract.  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511.   
 
30-08 FAILURE TO EXECUTE CONTRACT.  Failure of the successful bidder to execute the 
contract as specified in the subsection titled EXECUTION OF CONTRACT of Section 30-06 and 
furnish an acceptable surety bond or bonds within the 10-calendar-day period specified in the 
subsection titled REQUIREMENTS OF CONTRACT BONDS of Section 30-05 shall be just cause for 
cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the proposal guaranty, not as a penalty, but as 
liquidation of damages to the Owner. 

30-09  DISPUTE & RESOLUTION. 

 Initial Notification & Dispute of Resolution:  As required by these Specifications or any 
time the Contractor believes the action or decision of the County, lack of action by the 
County, or for some other reason will result in or necessitate the revision of the 
Contract, the County Engineer must be notified immediately.  If within two (2) working 
days the identified issue has not been resolved between the Contractor and the County, 
the Contractor shall provide a written notice.  At a minimum, the written notice shall 
provide a description of the nature of the issue, the time and date the problem was 
discovered, and if appropriate, the location of the issue.  After initial written notice has 
been provided, the County Engineer will proceed in accordance with MAG Uniform 
Standard Specifications Subsection 104.2.  In addition to proceeding in accordance with 
Subsection 104.2, the Contractor and the County must make every effort to resolve the 
issue identified in the initial notice. Only if the issue cannot be quickly resolved will it be 
necessary to proceed to the next step in accordance with MAG Specs Subsection 110.2.2 
Dispute Resolution. 



 GP-15 

 Process for Dispute Resolution:  If the Contractor rejects the decision of the County 
according to Subsection 110.2.2(B), the Contractor may begin the Administration 
Process to resolve the dispute.  All dispute resolutions shall be handled in accordance 
with MAG Spec’s Subsection 110.3, Administrative Process for Dispute Resolution. 

 
The administrative process for the resolution of disputes is sequential in nature and is 
composed of the following levels:  Level I (County Project Manager), Level II (County Engineer, 
Level III (Public Works Director). 
 
The provision set forth in Subsection 110.2 is a contractual obligation assumed by the 
Contractor in executing the Contract.  It is understood that the Contractor will be forever 
barred from recovering against the County if the Contractor fails to give notice of any act or 
failure to act, by the County, or the happening of any event, thing, or occurrence, in accordance 
with Subsection 104.2, Alteration of Work. 
 

 Dispute Review Board:   If the Dispute Review Board is utilized as prescribed in 
Subsection 110.3.3, the County Engineer shall be notified within thirty (30) days after 
the Level III Representative decision.  The Dispute Review Board is a three (3) member 
board independent of the parties involved in the issue.  The County and Contractor shall 
each select a member for this board.  The third (3rd) member shall be a mutually agreed 
upon independent member.  This Review Board must be selected within fourteen (14) 
calendar days after notice to the Level III Representative.  Each member shall agree to 
impartially serve the County and Contractor.  Fees and expenses of the Board Members 
are to be shared equally by the County and the Contractor.  The Dispute Review Board 
shall meet within thirty (30) days of the selection of the board, unless, by mutual 
agreement, another date is selected.  The scope of the Dispute Review Board shall be 
restricted and limited to the matters originally presented to the Level III Representative 
for decision or determination and shall include no other matters.  The Board shall 
consider and evaluate the dispute and render a written decision that assigns financial 
responsibilities and allocates adjustments in the contact time, if applicable, within seven 
(7) calendar days after the meeting.  The decision of the Dispute Review Board will be 
final. 

 



 GP-16 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 40 
 
 SCOPE OF WORK 
 
40-01 INTENT OF CONTRACT.  The intent of the contract is to provide for construction and 
completion, in every detail, of the work described.  It is further intended that the Contractor 
shall furnish all labor, materials, equipment, tools, and supplies required to complete the work 
in accordance with the plans, specifications, and terms of the contract. 
 
40-02 ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES.  The Owner reserves and shall have the right 
to make such alterations in the work as may be necessary or desirable to complete the work 
originally intended in an acceptable manner.  Unless otherwise specified herein, the Owner's 
Engineer shall be and is hereby authorized to make such alterations in the work as may increase 
or decrease the originally awarded contract quantities, provided that the aggregate of such 
alterations does not change the total contract cost or the total cost of any major contract item 
by more than twenty-five percent (25%) (total cost being based on the unit prices and 
estimated quantities in the awarded contract). Alterations which do not exceed the twenty-five 
percent (25%) limitation shall not invalidate the contract nor release the surety, and the 
Contractor agrees to accept payment for such alterations as if the altered work had been a part 
of the original contract.  These alterations which are for work within the general scope of the 
contract shall be covered by "Change Orders" issued by the Owner's Engineer.  Change order 
for altered work shall include extensions of contract time where, in the Owner's Engineer's 
opinion, such extensions are commensurate with the amount and difficulty of added work. 
 
Should the aggregate amount of altered work exceed the twenty-five percent (25%) limitation 
hereinbefore specified, such excess altered work shall be covered by supplemental agreement.  
If the Owner and the Contractor are unable to agree on a unit adjustment for any contract item 
that requires a supplemental agreement, the Owner reserves the right to terminate the 
contract with respect to the item and make other arrangements for its completion. 
 
All supplemental agreements shall require consent of the Contractor's surety and separate 
performance and payment bonds. 
 
40-03 OMITTED ITEMS.  The Owner's Engineer may, in the Owner's best interest, omit from the 
work any contract item, except major contract items.  Major contract items may be omitted by 
a supplemental agreement.  Such omission of contract items shall not invalidate any other 
contract provision or requirement. 
 
Should a contract item be omitted or otherwise ordered to be non-performed, the Contractor 
shall be paid for all work performed toward completion of such item prior to the date of the 
order to omit such item.  Payment for work performed shall be in accordance with the 
subsection titled PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS of Section 90-04. 
 
 
 



 GP-17 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 

40-04 EXTRA WORK.  Should acceptable completion of the contract require the Contractor to 
perform an item of work for which no basis of payment has been provided in the original 
contract or previously issued change orders or supplemental agreements, the same shall be 
called EXTRA WORK.  Extra work that is within the general scope of the contract shall be 
covered by written change order.  Change orders for such extra work shall contain agreed unit 
prices for performing the change order work in accordance with the requirements specified in 
the order, and shall contain any adjustment to the contract time that, in the Owner's Engineer's 
opinion, is necessary for completion of such extra work. 
 
When determined by the Owner's Engineer to be in the Owner's best interest, he may order the 
Contractor to proceed with extra work by force account as provided in the subsection titled 
PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK of Section 90-05. 
 
Extra work that is necessary for acceptable completion of the project, but is not within the 
general scope of the work covered by the original contract, shall be covered by an agreement 
as hereinbefore defined in the subsection titled SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT of Section 10-38. 
 
Any claim for payment of extra work that is not covered by written agreement (change order or 
supplemental agreement) shall be rejected by the Owner. 
 
40-05 MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC.  It is the explicit intention of the contract that the safety of 
all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian, as well as the Contractor's equipment and personnel, is the 
most important consideration. 
 
With respect to his own operations and the operations of all his subcontractors, the Contractor 
shall provide marking, lighting, and other acceptable means of identifying personnel, 
equipment, vehicles, storage areas, and any work area or condition that may be hazardous to 
the operation of all traffic, vehicular and pedestrian. 
 
When the contract requires the maintenance of vehicular traffic on an existing road, street, or 
highway during the Contractor's performance of work that is otherwise provided for in the 
contract, plans, and specifications, the Contractor shall keep such road, street, or highway open 
to all traffic and shall provide such maintenance as may be required to accommodate traffic.  
The Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, warning signs, flaggers, and other 
traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the Manual of Uniform Traffic Control 
Devices for Streets and Highways (MUTCD) PART VI, (published by the United States 
Government Printing Office), unless otherwise specified herein.  The Contractor shall also 
construct and maintain in a safe condition any temporary connections necessary for ingress to 
and egress from abutting property or intersecting roads, streets or highways.  Unless otherwise 
specified herein, the Contractor will not be required to furnish snow removal for such existing 
road, street, or highway. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-18 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 

The Contractor shall make his own estimate of all labor, materials, equipment, and incidentals 
necessary for providing the maintenance of pedestrian and vehicular traffic as specified in this 
subsection. 
 
40-06 RIGHTS IN AND USE OF MATERIALS FOUND IN THE WORK.  Should the Contractor 
encounter any materials such as (but not restricted to) sand, stone, gravel, slag, or concrete 
slabs within the established lines, grades, or grading sections, the use of which is intended by 
the terms of the contract to be either embankment or waste, he may at his option either: 
 

(a) Use such material in another contract item, providing such use is approved by the 
Owner's Engineer and is in conformance with the contract specifications applicable to 
such use; or,  

(b) Remove such material from the site, upon written approval of the Owner's Engineer; 
or,  

(c) Use such material for his own temporary construction on site; or,  
(d) Use such material as intended by the terms of the contract. 

 
Should the Contractor wish to exercise option (a), (b), or (c), he shall request the Owner's 
Engineer's approval in advance of such use.  Should the Owner's Engineer approve the 
Contractor's request to exercise option (a), (b), or (c), the Contractor shall be paid for the 
excavation or removal of such material at the applicable contract price.  The Contractor shall 
replace, at his own expense, such removed or excavated material with an agreed equal volume 
of material that is acceptable for use in constructing embankment, backfills, or otherwise to the 
extent that such replacement material is needed to complete the contract work.  The 
Contractor shall not be charged for his use of such material so used in the work or removed 
from the site. 
 
Should the Owner's Engineer approve the Contractor's exercise of option (a), the Contractor 
shall be paid, at the applicable contract price, for furnishing and installing such material in 
accordance with requirements of the contract item in which the material is used. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall make no claim for delays by reason of his 
exercise of option (a), (b), or (c). 
 
The Contractor shall not excavate, remove, or otherwise disturb any materials, structure, or 
part of a structure which is located outside the lines, grades, or grading sections established for 
the work, except where such excavation or removal is provided for in the contract, plans, or 
specifications. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-19 

Scope of Work continued… 
 
 

40-07 FINAL CLEANING UP.  Upon completion of the work and before acceptance and final 
payment will be made, the Contractor shall remove from the site all machinery, equipment, 
surplus and discarded materials, rubbish, temporary structures, and stumps or portions of 
trees.  He shall cut all brush and woods within the limits indicated and shall leave the site in a 
neat and presentable condition.  Material cleared from the site and deposited on adjacent 
property will not be considered as having been disposed of satisfactorily, unless the Contractor 
has obtained the written permission of such property owner and furnished a copy to the 
Owner's Engineer. 



 GP-20 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 50 
 
 CONTROL OF WORK 
 
50-01 AUTHORITY OF THE OWNER'S ENGINEER.  The Owner shall decide any and all questions 
which may arise as to the quality and acceptability of materials furnished, based upon the 
Contractor's Engineer's certification for the quality and acceptability work performed, and as to 
the manner of performance and rate of progress of the work.  He shall decide all questions 
which may arise as to the interpretation of the specifications or plans relating to the work, the 
fulfillment of the contract on the part of the Contractor, and the rights of different contractors 
on the project.  The Owner shall review and determine, based upon the Contractor's Engineer's 
certifications on amounts, quality of work and materials furnished, the amount and quality of 
the several kinds of work performed and materials furnished which are to be paid for under 
contract. 
 
50-02 CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  All work and materials furnished shall 
be the full responsibility of the Contractor and shall be in reasonably close conformity with the 
lines, grades, grading section, cross sections, dimensions, material requirements, and testing 
requirements that are specified (including specified tolerances) in the contract, plans, or 
specifications, and shall be certified by the Contractor's Engineer. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product not within 
reasonably close conformity with the plans and specifications, but that the portion of the work 
affected will, in his opinion, result in a finished product having a level of safety, economy, 
durability and workmanship acceptable to the Owner, he will advise the Owner of his 
determination that the affected work be accepted and remain in place.  In this event, the 
Owner will document his determination and recommend to the Owner a basis of acceptance 
which will provide for an adjustment in the contract price for the affected portion of the work.  
The Owner's determination and recommended contract price adjustments will be based on 
good engineering judgment and on such tests or retests by the Contractor's Engineer, and at 
the Contractor's expense, of the affected work as are, in his opinion, needed.  Changes in the 
contract price shall be covered by contract modifications (change order or supplemental 
agreement) as applicable. 
 
If the Owner finds the materials furnished, work performed, or the finished product are not in 
reasonably close conformity with the plans and specifications and have resulted in an 
unacceptable finished product, the affected work or materials shall be removed and replaced or 
otherwise corrected by and at the expense of the Contractor in accordance with the Owner 
written orders. 
 
For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" shall not be 
construed as waiving the Contractor's responsibility to complete the work in accordance with 
the contract, plans and specifications.  The terms shall not be construed as waiving the Owner's 
right to insist on strict compliance with the requirements of the contract, plans, and 
specifications during the Contractor's prosecution of the work, when, in the Owner's opinion, 
such compliance is essential to provide an acceptable finished portion of the work. 
 



 GP-21 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 

For the purpose of this subsection, the term "reasonably close conformity" is also intended to 
provide the Owner with the authority to use good engineering judgment in his determinations 
as to acceptance of work that is not in strict conformity but will provide a finished product 
equal to or better than that intended by the requirements of the contract, plans and 
specifications. 
 
50-03 COORDINATION OF CONTRACT, PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS.  The contract, plans, 
specifications, and all referenced standards cited are essential parts of the contract 
requirements.  A requirement occurring in one is as binding as though occurring in all.  They are 
intended to be complementary and to describe and provide for a complete work.  In case of 
discrepancy, calculated dimensions will govern over scaled dimensions; contract technical 
specifications shall govern over contract general provisions, plans, cited standards for materials 
or testing; contract general provisions shall govern over plans, cited standards for materials or 
testing; plans shall govern over County standards for materials or testing. 
 
The Contractor shall not take advantage of any apparent error or omission on the plans or 
specifications.  In the event the Contractor discovers any apparent error or discrepancy, he shall 
immediately call upon the Owner for his interpretation and decision, and such decision shall be 
final. 
 
50-04 COOPERATION OF CONTRACTOR.  The Contractor will be supplied with two copies each 
of the plans and specifications.  He shall have available on the job at all times one copy each of 
the plans and specifications.  Additional copies of plans and specifications may be obtained by 
the Contractor for the cost of reproduction. 
 
The Contractor shall give constant attention to the work to facilitate the progress thereof, and 
he shall cooperate with the Owner and his inspectors and with other contractors in every way 
possible.  The Owner shall allocate the work and designate the sequence of construction in case 
of controversy between contractors.  The Contractor shall have a competent superintendent on 
the job at all times who is fully authorized as his agent for the work.  The superintendent shall 
be capable of reading and thoroughly understanding the plans and specifications and shall 
receive and fulfill instructions from the Owner or his authorized representative. 
 
50-05 COOPERATION BETWEEN CONTRACTORS.  The Owner reserves the right to contract for 
and perform other or additional work on or near the work covered by this contract. 
 
When separate contracts are let within the limits of any one project, each contractor shall 
conduct his work so as not to interfere with or hinder the progress of completion of the work 
being performed by other contractors.  Contractors working on the same project shall 
cooperate with each other as directed. 
 
Each contractor involved shall assume all liability, financial or otherwise, in connection with his 
contract and shall protect and save harmless the Owner from any and all damages or claims 
that may arise because of inconvenience, delays, or loss experienced by him because of the 
presence and operations of other contractors working within the limits of the same project. 
 



 GP-22 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 

The Contractor shall arrange his work and shall place and dispose of the materials being used so 
as not to interfere with the operations of the other contractors within the limits of the same 
project.  He shall join his work with that of the others in an acceptable manner and shall 
perform it in proper sequence to that of the others. 
 
50-06 CONSTRUCTION LAYOUT AND STAKES.  The Contractor and the Contractor's Engineer 
will establish lines, grades, and measurements necessary to the proper prosecution and control 
of the work contracted for under these specifications.  The Contractor shall satisfy himself as to 
the accuracy of all measurements before constructing any permanent structure.  Any question 
raised relative to the accuracy of construction shall not be raised unless all survey stakes remain 
intact.  Should such stakes not be present and verified as to their origin, no claim for addition 
compensation for correction shall be submitted for payment and such shall be corrected by the 
Contractor at his expense.  
 
50-07 AUTOMATICALLY CONTROLLED EQUIPMENT.  Whenever batching or mixing plant 
equipment is required to be operated automatically under the contract and a breakdown or 
malfunction of the automatic controls occurs, the equipment may be operated manually or by 
other methods for a period of 48 hours following the breakdown or malfunction, provided this 
method of operations will produce results which conform to all other requirements of the 
contract. 
 
50-08 AUTHORITY AND DUTIES OF INSPECTORS.  Inspectors employed by the Owner shall be 
authorized to inspect all work done and all material furnished.  Such inspection may extend to 
all or any part of the work and to the preparation, fabrication, or manufacture of the materials 
to be used.  Inspectors are not authorized to revoke, alter, or waive any provision of the 
contract.  Inspectors are not authorized to issue instructions contrary to the plans and 
specifications or to act as foreman for the Contractor. 
 
Inspectors employed by the Owner are authorized to notify the Contractor or his representative 
of any failure of the work or materials to conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, or 
specifications and to reject such nonconforming materials in question until such issues can be 
referred to the Owner's Engineer for his decision. 
 
50-09 INSPECTION OF THE WORK.  All materials and each part or detail of the work shall be 
subject to inspection by the Owner.  The Owner shall be allowed access to all parts of the work 
and shall be furnished with such information and assistance by the Contractor as is required to 
make a complete and detailed inspection. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-23 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 

If the Owner requests it, the Contractor, at any time before acceptance of the work, shall 
remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed.  After examination, 
the Contractor shall restore said portions of the work to the standard required by the 
specifications.  Should the work thus exposed or examined prove acceptable, the uncovering, or 
removing and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed will be paid 
for as extra work; but should the work so exposed or examined prove unacceptable, the 
uncovering, or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts 
removed will be at the Contractor's expense. 
 
Any work done or materials used without supervision or inspection by an authorized 
representative of the Owner may be ordered removed and replaced at the Contractor's 
expense unless the Owner's representative failed to inspect after having been given reasonable 
notice in writing that the work was to be performed. 
 
Should the contract work include relocation, adjustment, or any other modification to existing 
facilities, not the property of the (contract) Owner, authorized representatives of the owners of 
such facilities shall have the right to inspect such work.  Such inspection shall in no way make 
any facility owner a party to the contract, and shall in no way interfere with the rights of the 
parties to this contract. 
 
50-10 REMOVAL OF UNACCEPTABLE AND UNAUTHORIZED WORK.  All work which does not 
conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications will be considered 
unacceptable, unless otherwise determined acceptable by the Owner as provided in the 
subsection titled CONFORMITY WITH PLANS AND SPECIFICATIONS of Section 50-02. 
 
Unacceptable work, whether the result of poor workmanship, use of defective materials, 
damage through carelessness, or any other cause found to exist prior to the final acceptance of 
the work, shall be removed immediately and replaced in an acceptable manner in accordance 
with the provisions of the subsection titled CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK of 
Section 70-13. 
 
No work shall be done without lines and grades having been given by the Contractor's Engineer 
and authorized by the Owner.  Work done contrary to the instructions of the Owner, work done 
beyond the lines shown on the plans or as given, except as herein specified, or any extra work 
done without authority will be considered as unauthorized and will not be paid for under the 
provisions of the contract.  Work so done may be ordered removed or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense. 
 
Upon failure on the part of the Contractor to comply as soon as possible with any order of the 
Owner made under the provisions of this subsection, the Owner will have authority to cause 
unacceptable work to be remedied or removed and replaced and unauthorized work to be 
removed and to deduct the costs (incurred by the Owner) from any monies due or to become 
due the Contractor. 
 
 



 GP-24 

 
Control of Work continued… 
 
 

50-11 LOAD RESTRICTIONS.  The Contractor shall comply with all legal load restrictions in the 
hauling of materials on public roads beyond the limits of the work.  A special permit will not 
relieve the Contractor of liability for damage that may result from the moving of material or 
equipment. 
 
The operation of equipment of such weight or so loaded as to cause damage to structures or to 
any other type of construction will not be permitted.  Hauling of materials over the base course 
or surface course under construction shall be limited as directed.  No loads will be permitted on 
a concrete pavement, base, or structure before the expiration of the curing period.  The 
Contractor shall be responsible for all damage done by his hauling equipment and shall correct 
such damage at this own expense. 
 
50-12 MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION.  The Contractor shall maintain the work during 
construction and until the work is accepted.  This maintenance shall constitute continuous and 
effective work prosecuted day by day, with adequate equipment and forces so that the work is 
maintained in satisfactory condition at all times. 
 
In the case of a contract for the placing of a course upon a course or subgrade previously 
constructed, the Contractor shall maintain the previous course or subgrade during all 
construction operations. 
 
All costs of maintenance work during construction and before the project is accepted shall be 
included in the unit prices bid on the various contract items, and the Contractor will not be paid 
an additional amount for such work. 
 
50-13 FAILURE TO MAINTAIN THE WORK.  Should the Contractor at any time fail to maintain 
the work as provided in the subsection titled MAINTENANCE DURING CONSTRUCTION of 
Section 50-12, the Owner shall immediately notify the Contractor of such noncompliance.  Such 
notification shall specify a reasonable time within which the Contractor shall be required to 
remedy such unsatisfactory maintenance conditions.  The time specified will give due 
consideration to the emergency that exists. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to respond to the Owner notification, the Owner may suspend any 
work necessary for the Owner to correct such unsatisfactory maintenance condition, depending 
on the emergency that exists.  Any maintenance cost incurred by the Owner shall be deducted 
from monies due or to become due the Contractor. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-25 

 
Control of Work continued… 
 
 

50-14 PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE.  If at any time during the prosecution of the project the 
Contractor substantially completes a usable unit or portion of the work, the occupancy of which 
will benefit the Owner, he may request the Owner to make final inspection of that unit.  If the 
Owner finds upon inspection that the unit has been satisfactorily completed in compliance with 
the contract, and certified to be in compliance by the Contractor's Engineer, he may accept it as 
being completed, and the Contractor may be relieved of further responsibility for that unit, 
subject to stated guarantees.  Such partial acceptance and beneficial occupancy by the Owner 
shall not void or alter any provision of the contract. 
 
50-15 FINAL ACCEPTANCE.  Upon due notice from the Contractor of presumptive completion of 
the entire project, and certification of completion and compliance to the approved plans by the 
Contractor's Engineer, Owner will make an inspection.  If all construction provided for and 
contemplated by the contract is found to be completed in accordance with the contract, plans, 
and specifications, such inspection shall constitute the final inspection.  The Owner shall notify 
the Contractor in writing of final acceptance as of the date of the final inspection. 
 
If, however, the inspection discloses any work, in whole or in part, as being unsatisfactory, the 
Owner will give the Contractor the necessary instructions for correction of same, and the 
Contractor shall immediately comply with and execute such instructions.  Upon correction of 
the work, and recertification by the Contractor's Engineer, another inspection will be made 
which shall constitute the final inspection, provided the work has been satisfactorily completed.  
In such event, the Owner will make the final acceptance and notify the Contractor in writing of 
this acceptance as of the date of final inspection. 
 
50-16 CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES.  If for any reason the Contractor deems that 
additional compensation is due him for work or materials not clearly provided for in the 
contract, plans, or specifications or previously authorized as extra work, he shall notify the 
Owner in writing of his intention to claim such additional compensation before he begins the 
work on which he bases the claim.  If such notification is not given or the Owner is not afforded 
proper opportunity by the Contractor for keeping strict account of actual cost as required, then 
the Contractor hereby agrees to waive any claim for such additional compensation.  Such notice 
by the Contractor and the fact that the Owner has kept account of the cost of the work shall 
not in any way be construed as proving or substantiating the validity of the claim.  When the 
work on which the claim for additional compensation is based has been completed, the 
Contractor shall, within 10 calendar days, submit his written claim, along with certification by 
the Contractor's Engineer, to the Owner for consideration in accordance with local laws or 
ordinances. 
 
Nothing in this subsection shall be construed as a waiver of the Contractor's right to dispute 
final payment based on differences in measurements or computations. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-26 

Control of Work continued… 
 
 

50-17 GUARANTEE OF WORK (ADDITIONAL).  The Contractor shall guarantee all work against 
any defects due to faulty materials or workmanship for a period of two years from the date of 
final inspection and acceptance.  The Owner shall give notice of observed defects with 
reasonable promptness.  Any omission on the part of the Owner to condemn defective work at 
the time of construction or final inspection shall not be deemed an acceptance.  The Contractor 
shall be required to correct defective work or material at any time before final inspection and 
acceptance and within two years thereafter. 
 
50-18 CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE.  Prior to commencement of the work the Contractor shall 
prepare and submit to the Owner for review, a written schedule covering the general sequence 
of the work to be performed on a bi-weekly basis.  The work schedule, after review and 
acceptance by the Owner, shall not be changed without the written consent of the Owner.  The 
Contractor shall assume the full responsibility for performing the work in an orderly procedure 
under the Contract. 
 
50-19 NEGOTIATIONS.  It is the intent of the County to award a Contract to the lowest 
responsible Bidder provided the Bid has been submitted in accordance with the requirements 
of the Bid Documents, is judged reasonable, and does not exceed the funds available. 
 

(a)    The County shall have the authority to negotiate with the lowest bidder to reduce the 
scope of the Project in the event that all responsive bids exceed the Project budget. 

 
Bids shall be made available for public inspection by appointment only after the award has 
been made by the Board of Supervisors.  The Board of Supervisors has the sole authority to 
award bids and any statement by any employee of the County is not binding on the Board. 
 
The following criteria will be considered a part of the evaluation process: 
 

(a)   Competence and responsibility of Bidder. 
(b)   Qualifications and experience of Bidder. 
(c)   Past performance of Bidder. 
(d)   Conformity with bidding requirements and general considerations. 
(e)   Record of timely completion of punch lists on past projects. 

 
 
Negotiations With Individual Contractors:  Gila County Public Works Division shall establish 
procedures and schedules for conducting Negotiations.  Disclosure of one (1) Contractor’s Price 
or any information derived from competing Bid Prices or any information derived from 
competing Bids is prohibited. 
 

(a)    Any response to a request for clarification of a bid shall be in writing. 
(b)    The Public Works Division shall keep a record of all negotiations. 

 
For the purpose of conducting Negotiations with Contractors, Gila County may use any of the 
following methods that, in their judgment, best meets the unique requirements. 



 GP-27 

 
 

(a) Concurrent Negotiations:  Negotiations may be conducted concurrently with 
responsible Contractors for the purpose of determining source selection and/or 
Contract Award. 

(b) Exclusive Negotiations:  A determination may be made by the Public Works Director to 
enter into exclusive negotiations with the responsible Contractor whose bid is 
determined in the selection process to be the most Advantageous to Gila County. 

 
Exclusive Negotiations may be conducted subsequent to concurrent Negotiations or may be 
conducted without requiring previous concurrent Negotiations. 
 

(a) A determination to conduct exclusive Negotiations shall not constitute a Contract 
Award nor shall it confer any property rights to the successful bidder. 

(b) If exclusive Negotiations are conducted and an agreement is not reached, the County 
may enter into exclusive Negotiations with the next highest ranked Contractor without 
the need to repeat the formal Solicitation process. 

 



 GP-28 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 60 
 
 CONTROL OF MATERIAL 
 
60-01 SOURCE OF SUPPLY AND QUALITY REQUIREMENTS .  The materials used on the work 
shall conform to the requirements of the contract, plans, and specifications.  Unless otherwise 
specified, such materials that are manufactured or processed shall be new (as compared to 
used or reprocessed). 
 
In order to expedite the inspection and testing of materials, the Contractor's Engineer shall 
furnish complete statements to the Owner as to the origin, composition, and manufacture of all 
materials to be used in the work.  Such statements shall be furnished promptly after execution 
of the contract but, in all cases, prior to delivery of such materials. 
 
At the Owner’s option, materials may be approved at the source of supply before delivery is 
started.  If it is found after trial that sources of supply for previously approved materials do not 
produce specified products, the Contractor shall furnish materials from other sources. 
 
It shall be the responsibility of the Contractor to provide sources of aggregates to complete the 
work specified in the specifications and on the plans.  The Contractor shall so inform the Owner 
of the location of his proposed sources in sufficient time to allow for the necessary preliminary 
sampling and testing.  The Owner shall sample the aggregate source(s) and test those samples 
to determine the source's suitability for use, based upon the specifications of the Contract.  Any 
materials information provided by the Owner shall not be considered as a part of the contract, 
and should be used at the discretion of each prospective contractor in formulating his bids and 
plan of operation. 
 
Any construction, building addition or alteration project which is financed by monies of this 
state or its political subdivisions shall not use endangered wood species unless an exemption is 
granted by the director of the Department of Administration.  The director shall only grant an 
exemption if the use of endangered wood species is deemed necessary for historical 
restoration or to repair existing facilities and the use of any substitute material is not practical.  
Any lease-purchase agreement entered into by this state or its political subdivisions for 
construction shall specify that no endangered wood species may be used in the construction 
unless an exemption is granted by the director.  As used in this subsection, an endangered 
wood species includes those listed in Appendix I of the Convention on International Trade in 
Endangered Species of Wild Flora and Fauna.  
 
60-02 SAMPLES, TESTS, AND CITED SPECIFICATIONS.  All materials used in the work shall be 
inspected, tested and certified by the Owner before incorporation in the work.  Any work in 
which untested materials are used without approved or written permission of the Owner shall 
be performed at the Contractor's risk. Materials found to be unacceptable and unauthorized 
will not be paid for and, if directed by the Owner, shall be removed at the Contractor's expense.  
Unless otherwise designated, tests in accordance with the cited standard methods of ADOT,  
AASHTO or ASTM which are current on the date of advertisement for bids will be made by and 
at the expense of the Owner; samples will be taken by a qualified representative of the Owner.   



 GP-29 

Control of Material continued… 
 
 

All materials being used are subject to inspection, test, or rejection at any time prior to or 
during incorporation into the work.   
 
60-03 CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE.  The Owner' may permit the use, prior to sampling and 
testing, of certain materials or assemblies when accompanied by manufacturer's certificates of 
compliance stating that such materials or assemblies fully comply with the requirements of the 
contract.   
 
The certificate shall be signed by the manufacturer.  Each lot of such materials or assemblies 
delivered to the work must be accompanied by a certificate of compliance in which the lot is 
clearly identified. 
 
Materials or assemblies used on the basis of certificates of compliance may be sampled and 
tested at any time and if found not to be in conformity with contract requirements will be 
subject to rejection whether in place or not. 
 
The form and distribution of certificates of compliance shall be as approved by the Owner. 
 
When a material or assembly is specified by "brand name or equal" and the Contractor elects to 
furnish the specified "brand name," the Contractor shall be required to furnish the 
manufacturer's certificate of compliance for each lot of such material or assembly delivered to 
the work.  Such certificate of compliance shall clearly identify each lot delivered and shall certify 
as to: 
 

(a) Conformance to the specified performance, testing, quality or dimensional 
requirements; and, 

(b) Suitability of the material or assembly for the use intended in the contract work. 
 
Should the Contractor propose to furnish an "or equal" material or assembly, he shall furnish 
the manufacturer's certificates of compliance as hereinbefore described for the specified brand 
name material or assembly.  However, the Owner shall be the sole judge as to whether the 
proposed "or equal" is suitable for use in the work. 
 
The Owner reserves the right to refuse permission for use of materials or assemblies on the 
basis of certificates of compliance. 
 
60-04 PLANT INSPECTION.  The Owner or his authorized representative may inspect, at its 
source, any specified material or assembly to be used in the work.  Manufacturing plants may 
be inspected from time to time for the purpose of determining compliance with specified 
manufacturing methods or materials to be used in the work and to obtain samples required for 
his acceptance of the material or assembly. 
 
Should the Owner conduct plant inspections, the following conditions shall exist: 
 
 



 GP-30 

 
Control of Material continued… 
 
 

(a) The Owner shall have the cooperation and assistance of the Contractor and the 
producer with whom he has contracted for materials. 

(b) The Owner shall have full entry at all reasonable times to such parts of the plant that 
concern the manufacture or production of the materials being furnished. 

(c) If required by the Owner, the Contractor shall arrange for adequate office or working 
space that may be reasonably needed for conducting plant inspections.  Office or 
working space should be conveniently located with respect to the plant. 

 
It is understood and agreed that the Owner shall have the right to retest any material which has 
been tested and approved at the source of supply after it has been delivered to the site.  The 
Owner shall have the right to reject only material which, when retested, does not meet the 
requirements of the contract, plans, or specifications. 
 
60-05 OWNER'S FIELD OFFICE AND LABORATORY.  The Owner’s field office and laboratory shall 
be the responsibility of the Contractor or his authorized representative as determined by need 
by the Owner. 
 
60-06 STORAGE OF MATERIALS.  Materials shall be so stored as to assure the preservation of 
their quality and fitness for the work.  Stored materials, even though approved before storage, 
may again be inspected prior to their use in the work.  Stored materials shall be located so as to 
facilitate their prompt inspection.  The Contractor shall coordinate the storage of all materials 
with the Owner.  Private property shall not be used for storage purposes without written 
permission of the owner or lessee of such property.  The Contractor shall make all 
arrangements and bear all expenses for the storage of materials on private property.  Upon 
request, the Contractor shall furnish the Owner a copy of the property owner's permission. 
 
All storage sites on private property shall be restored to their original condition by the 
Contractor at his entire expense, except as otherwise agreed to (in writing) by the owner or 
lessee of the property. 
 
60-07 UNACCEPTABLE MATERIALS.  Any material or assembly that does not conform to the 
requirements of the contract, plans or specifications shall be considered unacceptable and shall 
be rejected.  The Contractor shall remove any rejected material or assembly from the site of the 
work, unless otherwise instructed by the Owner. 
 
No rejected material or assembly, the defects of which have been corrected by the Contractor, 
shall be returned to the site of the work until such time as the Owner has approved its use in 
the work. 
 
60-08 OWNER-FURNISHED MATERIALS.  The Contractor shall furnish all materials required to 
complete the work, except those specified herein (if any) to be furnished by the Owner.  
Owner-furnished materials shall be made available to the Contractor at the location specified 
herein. 
 
 



 GP-31 

Control of Material continued… 
 
 

All costs of handling, transportation from the specified location to the site of work, storage, and 
installing owner-furnished materials shall be included in the unit price bid for the contract item 
in which such owner-furnished material is used. 
 
After any owner-furnished material has been delivered to the location specified, the Contractor 
shall be responsible for any demurrage, damage, loss, or other deficiencies that may occur 
during the Contractor's handling, storage, or use of such owner-furnished material.  The Owner 
will deduct from any monies due or to become due the Contractor any cost incurred by the 
Owner in making good such loss due to the Contractor's handling, storage, or use of owner-
furnished materials. 



 GP-32 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 70 
 
 LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITY TO PUBLIC 
 
70-01 LAWS TO BE OBSERVED.  The Contractor shall keep fully informed of all Federal and State 
laws, all local laws, ordinances, and regulations and all orders and decrees of bodies or tribunals 
having any jurisdiction or authority, which in any manner affect those engaged or employed on 
the work, or which in any way affect the conduct of the work.  He shall at all times observe and 
comply with all such laws, ordinances, regulations, orders, and decrees; and shall protect and 
indemnify the Owner and all his officers, agents, or servants against any claim or liability arising 
from or based on the violation of any such law, ordinance, regulation, order, or decree, 
whether by himself or his employees. 
 
Laws and Ordinances:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws of the State of Arizona 
and Gila County.  The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State and Local 
licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the Contractor.  
The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable federal regulations under the 
Act. 
 
70-02 PERMITS, LICENSES, AND TAXES.  The Contractor shall procure all permits and licenses, 
pay all charges, fees, and taxes, and give all notices necessary and incidental to the due and 
lawful prosecution of the work.  All costs for any permits, licenses, fees, taxes, or other charges 
shall be included in the contract price bid. 
 
70-03 PATENTED DEVICES, MATERIALS, AND PROCESSES.  If the Contractor is required or 
desires to use any design, device, material, or process covered by letters of patent or copyright, 
he shall provide for such use by suitable legal agreement with the patentee or owner.  The 
Contractor and the surety shall indemnify and save harmless the Owner, any third party, or 
political subdivision from any and all claims for infringement by reason of the use of any 
patented design, device, material or process, or any trademark or copyright, and shall 
indemnify the Owner for any costs, expenses, and damages which it may be obliged to pay by 
reason of an infringement, at any time during the prosecution or after the completion of the 
work. 
 
70-04 RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS.  The Owner reserves the right to 
authorize the construction, reconstruction, or maintenance of any public or private utility 
service, or a utility service of another government agency at any time during the progress of the 
work.  To the extent that such construction, reconstruction, or maintenance has been 
coordinated with the Owner, such authorized work (by others) is indicated as follows: 
 

A. Preparatory work on the subgrade by the Owner. 
 

Except as provided above, the Contractor shall not permit any individual, firm, or corporation to 
excavate or otherwise disturb such utility services or facilities located within the limits of the 
work without the written permission of the Owner's Engineer. 



 GP-33 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

Should the owner of public or private utility service, or a utility service of another government 
agency be authorized to construct, reconstruct, or maintain such utility service or facility during 
the progress of the work, the Contractor shall cooperate with such owners by arranging and 
performing the work in this contract so as to facilitate such construction, reconstruction or 
maintenance by others whether or not such work by others is listed above.  When ordered as 
extra work by the Owner's Engineer, the Contractor shall make all necessary repairs to the work 
which are due to such authorized work by others, unless otherwise provided for in the contract, 
plans or specifications.  It is understood and agreed that the Contractor shall not be entitled to 
make any claim for damages due to such authorized work by others or for any delay to the 
work resulting from such authorized work. 
 
70-05 SANITARY, HEALTH, AND SAFETY PROVISIONS.  The Contractor shall provide and 
maintain in a neat, sanitary condition such accommodations for the use of his employees as 
required to comply with the requirements of the State and local boards of health, or of other 
bodies or tribunals having jurisdiction.  Contractor is responsible for supplying toilet and hand 
washing facilities at work site. 
 
Attention is directed to Federal, State and local laws, rules and regulations concerning 
construction safety and health standards.  The Contractor shall not require any worker to work 
in surroundings or under conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to his 
health or safety as determined under the Arizona Occupational Safety and Health Standards for 
Construction, adopted by the Industrial Commission of Arizona pursuant to the Authority in 
A.R.S. §23-410. 
 
Contractor Safety Tailgate Meetings:  Contractor shall conduct tailgate safety meetings 
regularly to ensure that safety on the job is given priority. Gila County will be represented at 
each of those informal meetings. Notification shall be given to the County QA/QC Safety 
Compliance Officer at (928) 402-8506 at least twenty-four (24) hours in advance of the next 
meeting. Each employee of the Contractor and Sub-Contractor shall read the County Safety & 
Loss Control Procedures book and sign an acknowledgement.  
 
Accident/Injury Procedure:  Contractor shall contact the Owner and the Gila County Risk 
Management Division within twenty-four (24) hours of the occurrence of an accident or injury 
arising out of the Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Unsafe Acts:  Contractor employees are encouraged to abate or remedy any unsafe act or 
condition which may arise in the course of Contractor’s work under this contract. 
 
Safety Audits:  The County reserves the right to conduct safety audits at the job site and stop 
unsafe acts at any time.  In addition, the County shall be notified should any OSHA inspection 
occur at a County job site. 
 
 
 
 
 



 GP-34 

 
Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

70-06 PUBLIC CONVENIENCE AND SAFETY.  The Contractor shall control his operations and 
those of his subcontractors and all suppliers, to assure the least inconvenience to the traveling 
public.  Under all circumstances, safety shall be the most important consideration. 
 
The Contractor shall maintain the free and unobstructed movement of aircraft and/or vehicular 
traffic with respect to his own operations and those of his subcontractor and all suppliers in 
accordance with the subsection titled MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC of Section 40-05 hereinbefore 
specified. 
 
70-07 BARRICADES, WARNING SIGNS AND HAZARD MARKINGS.  The Contractor shall furnish, 
erect and maintain all barricades, warning signs, and markings for hazards necessary to protect 
the public and the work.  When used during periods of darkness, such barricades, warning signs 
and hazard markings shall be suitably illuminated. 
 
For vehicular and pedestrian traffic, the Contractor shall furnish, erect, and maintain barricades, 
warning signs, lights and other traffic control devices in reasonable conformity with the Manual 
of Uniform Traffic Control Devices for Streets and Highways (MUTCD Part VI), published by the 
United States Government Printing Office. 
 
The Contractor shall furnish and erect all barricades, warning signs and markings for hazards 
prior to commencing work which required such erection and shall maintain the barricades, 
warning signs, and markings for hazards until their dismantling is directed by the Owner's 
Engineer. 
 
70-08 PROTECTION AND RESTORATION OF PROPERTY AND LANDSCAPE.  The Contractor shall 
be responsible for the preservation of all public and private property, and shall protect carefully 
from disturbance or damage all land monuments and property marks until the Contractor's 
Engineer and the Owner's Engineer has witnessed or otherwise referenced their location and 
shall not move them until directed. 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for all damage or injury to property of any character, during 
the prosecution of the work, resulting from any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in his 
manner or method of executing the work, or at any time due to defective work or materials, 
and said responsibility will not be released until the project shall have been completed and 
accepted. 
 
When or where any direct or indirect damage or injury is done to public or private property by 
or on account of any act, omission, neglect, or misconduct in the execution of the work, or in 
consequence of the non-execution thereof by the Contractor, he shall restore, at his own 
expense, such property to a condition similar or equal to that existing before such damage or 
injury was done, by repairing, rebuilding, or otherwise restoring as may be directed, or he shall 
make good such damage or injury in an acceptable manner. 
 
 
 



 GP-35 

 
Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

70-09 RESPONSIBILITY FOR DAMAGE CLAIMS.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, 
Contractor shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless Gila County, and the Pinal Creek Group 
and their respective agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials, and employees from 
and against any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, damages, or losses relating 
to, arising out of, resulting from or alleged to have resulted from the performance of the Work.  
Contractor’s duty to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the indemnitee and their respective 
agents, representatives, officers, directors, officials and employees shall arise in connection 
with any and all demands, proceedings, suits, actions, claims, workers compensation claims, 
unemployment claims, damages, losses or expenses (including but not limited to attorneys 
fees, court costs and the cost of appellate proceedings) that are attributable to personal or 
bodily injury, sickness, disease, death, or injury to, impairment or destruction of property 
including the loss of use resulting thereon, caused by any act or omission of the Contractor, a 
subcontractor, anyone directly or indirectly employed by them or for whose acts they may be 
liable.  The amount and type of insurance coverage requirements set forth in the Contract shall 
in no way be construed as limiting the scope of this indemnity. 
 
70-10 CONTRACTOR'S INSURANCE.  Prior to the execution of the contract, the Contractor shall 
file with the Owner's Engineer a certificate or certificates of insurance executed by an insurance 
company doing business in the State of Arizona and acceptable to the Owner's Engineer.  The 
certificate of insurance shall state that, with respect to the contract awarded the Contractor; 
the Contractor carries insurance in accordance with the requirements of this subsection. 
 
On all policies Gila County shall be named as an additional insured. 
 
All insurance policies or certificates shall include an endorsement providing for thirty (30) days 
prior written notice to the Owner's Engineer of any cancellation or reduction of coverage.  The 
Contractor shall cease operations on the occurrence of any such cancellation or reduction and 
shall not resume operations until the required insurance is in force and new certificates of 
insurance have been filed with the Owner's Engineer.  The insurance policy or policies provided 
by the Contractor may contain deductibles not to exceed $500 for any one accident or 
occurrence excluding bodily injury. 
 
In addition to statutory Worker's Compensation insurance, the Contractor, with respect to all 
operations performed by himself or his subcontractors, shall have in force regular public liability 
insurance in not less than the following amount:  $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability 
per Occurrence. 
 
Such insurance shall include, but not be limited to, coverage for underground damage to 
facilities because of drilling and excavating with mechanical equipment, and for collapse of or 
structural injury to structures or utilities because of blasting or explosion, excavation, tunneling, 
pile driving, cofferdam work or demolition. 
 
 
 
 



 GP-36 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

With respect to the operation of all motor vehicles, including those hired or borrowed, used in 
connection with the contract, the Contractor shall have in force automobile liability insurance 
in not less than the following amount:  $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit of Liability per 
Occurrence. 
 
70-11 THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARY CLAUSE.  It is specifically agreed between the parties 
executing the contract that it is not intended by any of the provisions of any part of the 
contract to create to the public or any member thereof a third party beneficiary or to authorize 
anyone not a party to the contract to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage 
pursuant to the terms or provisions of the contract. 
 
70-12 OPENING SECTIONS OF THE WORK TO TRAFFIC.  Should it be necessary for the 
Contractor to complete portions of the contract work for the beneficial occupancy of the 
Owner prior to completion of the entire contract, such "phasing" of the work shall be specified 
herein and indicated on the plans.  When so specified, the Contractor shall complete such 
portions of the work on or before the date specified or as otherwise specified.  The Contractor 
shall make his own estimate of the difficulties involved in arranging his work to permit such 
beneficial occupancy by the Owner as described below: 
 
Upon completion of any portion of the work listed above, with certification of the work by the 
Contractor's Engineer, such portion shall be accepted by the Owner in accordance with the 
subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-14. 
 
No portion of the work may be opened by the Contractor for public use until ordered by the 
Owner's Engineer in writing.  Should it become necessary to open a portion of the work to 
public traffic on a temporary or intermittent basis, such openings shall be made when, in the 
opinion of the Owner's Engineer, such portion of the work is in an acceptable condition to 
support the intended traffic.  Temporary or intermittent openings are considered to be 
inherent in the work and shall not constitute either acceptance of the portion of the work so 
opened or a waiver of any provision of the contract.  Any damage to the portion of the work so 
opened that is not attributable to traffic which is permitted by the Owner shall be repaired by 
the Contractor at his expense. 
 
The Contractor shall make his own estimate of the inherent difficulties involved in completing 
the work under the conditions herein described and shall not claim any added compensation by 
reason of delay or increased cost due to opening a portion of the contract work. 
 
70-13 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR WORK.  Until the Owner's Engineer's final written 
acceptance of the entire completed work, excepting only those portions of the work accepted 
in accordance with the subsection titled PARTIAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-14, the Contractor 
shall have the charge and care thereof and shall take every precaution against injury or damage 
to any part due to the action of the elements or from any other cause, whether arising from the 
execution or from the non-execution of the work.  The Contractor shall rebuild, repair, restore, 
and make good all injuries or damages to any portion of the work occasioned by any of the 
above causes before final acceptance and shall bear the expense thereof except damage to the  
 



 GP-37 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

work due to unforeseeable causes beyond the control of and without the fault or negligence of 
the Contractor, including but not restricted to acts of God such as earthquake, tidal wave, 
tornado, hurricane or other cataclysmic phenomenon of nature, or acts of the public enemy or 
of governmental authorities. 
 
If the work is suspended for any cause whatever, the Contractor shall be responsible for the 
work and shall take such precautions necessary to prevent damage to the work.  The Contractor 
shall provide for normal drainage and shall erect necessary temporary structures, signs, or 
other facilities at his expense.  During such period of suspension of work, the Contractor shall 
properly and continuously maintain in an acceptable growing condition all living material in 
newly established plantings, seedings, and soddings furnished under his contract, and shall take 
adequate precautions to protect new tree growth and other important vegetative growth 
against injury. 
 
70-14 CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR UTILITY SERVICE AND FACILITIES OF OTHERS.  As 
provided in the subsection titled RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS of Section 
70-04, the Contractor shall cooperate with the owner of any public or private utility service, or 
a utility service of another government agency that may be authorized by the Owner to 
construct, reconstruct or maintain such utility services or facilities during the progress of the 
work.  In addition, the Contractor shall control his operations to prevent the unscheduled 
interruption of such utility services and facilities and shall notify Blue Stake in accordance with 
applicable State laws or regulations prior to commencing any work. 
 
It is understood and agreed that the Owner does not guarantee the accuracy or the 
completeness of the location information relating to existing utility services, facilities, or 
structures that may be shown on the plans or encountered in the work.  Any inaccuracy or 
omission in such information shall not relieve the Contractor of his responsibility to protect 
such existing features from damage or unscheduled interruption of service.  It is further 
understood and agreed that the Contractor shall, upon execution of the contract, notify the 
owners of all utility services or other facilities of his plans of operations.  Such notification shall 
be in writing and addressed to Blue Stake and the respective utility as provided hereinbefore in 
this subsection and the subsection titled RESTORATION OF SURFACES DISTURBED BY OTHERS of 
Section 70-04.  A copy of each notification shall be given to the Owner's Engineer. 
 
In addition to the general written notification hereinbefore provided, it shall be the 
responsibility of the Contractor to keep Blue Stake and such individual owners advised of 
changes in his plan of operations that would affect such owners. 
 
Prior to commencing the work in the general vicinity of an existing utility service or facility, the 
Contractor shall again notify each such owner of his plan of operation.  If, in the Contractor's 
opinion, the Owner's assistance is needed to locate the utility service or facility or the presence 
of a representative of the Owner is desirable to observe the work, such advice should be 
included in the notification.  Such notification shall be given by the most expeditious means to 
reach the utility owner's PERSON TO CONTACT no later than two normal business days prior to 
the Contractor's commencement of operations in such general vicinity.   
 



 GP-38 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 
 
 

The Contractor shall furnish a written summary of the notification to the Owner's Engineer.  
The Contractor's failure to give the two day's notice hereinabove provided shall be cause for 
the Owner's Engineer to suspend the Contractor's operations in the general vicinity of a utility 
service or facility.   
 
Where the outside limits of an underground utility service have been located and staked on the 
ground, the Contractor shall be required to use excavation methods acceptable to the Owner's 
Engineer within 3 feet of such outside limits at such points as may be required to insure 
protection from damage due to the Contractor's operations.   
 
Should the Contractor damage or interrupt the operation of a utility service or facility by 
accident or otherwise, he shall immediately notify the proper authority and the Owner's 
Engineer and shall take all reasonable measures to prevent further damage or interruption of 
service.  The Contractor, in such events, shall cooperate with the utility service or facility owner 
and the Owner's Engineer continuously until such damage has been repaired and service 
restored to the satisfaction of the utility or facility owner. 
 
The Contractor shall bear all costs of damage and restoration of service to any utility service or 
facility due to his operations whether or not due to negligence or accident.  The contract owner 
reserves the right to deduct such costs from any monies due or which may become due the 
Contractor, or his surety. 
 
70-15 FURNISHING RIGHTS-OF-WAY.  The Owner will be responsible for furnishing all rights-of-
way, permanent easements and temporary construction easements upon which the work is to 
be constructed in advance of the Contractor's operations. 
 
70-16 PERSONAL LIABILITY OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS.  In carrying out any of the contractor 
provisions or in exercising any power or authority granted to him by this contract, there shall be 
no liability upon the Owner's Engineer, his authorized representatives, or any official of the 
Owner either personally or as an official of the Owner.  It is understood that in such matters 
they act solely as agents and representatives of the Owner. 
 
70-17 NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS.  Upon completion of the work, the Owner will 
expeditiously make final inspection and notify the Contractor of final acceptance.  Such final 
acceptance, however, shall not preclude or stop the Owner from correcting any measurement, 
estimate, or certificate made before or after completion of the work, nor shall the Owner be 
precluded or stopped from recovering from the Contractor or his surety, or both, such 
overpayment as may be sustained, or by failure on the part of the Contractor to fulfill his 
obligations under the contract.  A waiver on the part of the Owner of any breach of any part of 
the contract shall not be held to be a waiver of any other or subsequent breach. 
 
The Contractor, without prejudice to the terms of the contract, shall be liable to the Owner for 
latent defects, fraud, or such gross mistakes as may amount to fraud, or as regards the Owner's 
rights under any warranty or guaranty. 
 
 



 GP-39 

Legal Relations & Responsibility to Public continued… 

 
 
70-18 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION.  The Contractor shall comply with all Federal, State, and 
local laws and regulations controlling pollution of the environment.  He shall take necessary 
precautions to prevent pollution of streams, lakes, ponds and reservoirs with fuels, oils, 
bitumen’s, chemicals, or other harmful materials and to prevent pollution of the atmosphere 
from particulate and gaseous matter. 



 GP-40 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 80 
 
 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS 
 
80-01 SUBLETTING OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall not sublet, sell, transfer, assign or 
otherwise dispose of the contract or contracts or any portion thereof or of his right, title or 
interest therein without written consent of the Owner's Engineer.  In case such consent is 
given, the Contractor will be permitted to sublet a portion thereof, but shall perform with his 
own organization work amounting to not less than 50 percent of the total contract amount, 
except that any items designated in the contract as "Specialty Items" may be performed by 
subcontract and the cost of any such specialty items so performed by subcontract may be 
deducted from the total cost before computing the amount of work required to be performed 
by the Contractor with his own organization.  No subcontracts or transfer of contract shall 
release the Contractor of his liability under the contract and bond. 
 
"His own organization" shall be construed to include only workmen employed and paid directly 
by the prime contractor and equipment owned or rented by him, with or without operators. 
 
"Specialty Items" shall be construed to be limited to work that requires highly specialized 
knowledge, craftsmanship or equipment not ordinarily available in contracting organizations 
qualified to bid on the contract as a whole and in general are to be limited to minor 
components of the overall contract. 
 
The contract amount upon which the 50 percent requirement is computed includes the cost of 
materials and manufactured products which are to be purchased or produced by the Contractor 
under the contract provisions. 
 
Any items that have been selected as "Specialty Items" for the contract will be listed as such in 
the special provisions, bidding schedule, or elsewhere in the contract documents. 
 
The Owner will not recognize any subcontractor on the work.  The Contractor shall at all times 
when work is in progress be represented either in person, by a qualified superintendent, or by 
other designated, qualified representative who is duly authorized to receive and execute the 
orders of the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Should the Contractor elect to assign his contract, said assignment shall be concurred in by the 
surety, shall be presented for the consideration and approval of the Owner, and shall be 
consummated only on the written approval of the Owner.  In case of approval, the Contractor 
shall file copies of all subcontracts with the Owner's Engineer. 
 
80-02 NOTICE TO PROCEED.  The notice to proceed shall state the date on which it is expected 
the Contractor will begin the construction and from which date contract time will be charged.  
The Contractor shall begin the work to be performed under the contract within ten (10) 
calendar days of the date set by the Owner's Engineer in the written notice to proceed, but in 
any event, the Contractor shall notify the Owner's Engineer at least two (2) work days in 
advance of the time actual construction operations will begin. 
 



 GP-41 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

80-03 PROSECUTION AND PROGRESS.  Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall submit 
his progress schedule for the Owner's Engineer's approval within 10 days after the effective 
date of the notice to proceed.  The Contractor's progress schedule, when approved by the 
Owner's Engineer, may be used to establish major construction operations and to check on the 
progress of the work.  The Contractor shall provide sufficient materials, equipment, and labor 
to guarantee the completion of the project in accordance with the plans and specifications 
within the time set forth in the proposal. 
 
If the Contractor falls significantly behind the submitted schedule, the Contractor shall, upon 
the Owner's Engineer's request, submit a revised schedule for completion of the work within 
the contract time and modify his operations to provide such additional materials, equipment, 
and labor necessary to meet the revised schedule.  Should the prosecution of the work be 
discontinued for any reason, the Contractor shall notify the Owner's Engineer at least twenty-
four (24) hours in advance of resuming operations. 
 
The Contractor shall not commence any actual construction prior to the date on which the 
notice to proceed is issued by the Owner. 
 
80-04 CONSTRUCTION LIMITS.  Construction limits shall be defined as that area of the public 
right-of-way, easement or area shown on the construction plans to be disturbed as a part of 
this contract for this project. 
 
80-05 CHARACTER OF WORKERS, METHODS AND EQUIPMENT.  The Contractor shall, at all 
times, employ sufficient labor and equipment for prosecuting the work to full completion in the 
manner and time required by the contract, plans and specifications. 
 
All workers shall have sufficient skill and experience to perform properly the work assigned to 
them. Workers engaged in special work or skilled work shall have sufficient experience in such 
work and in the operation of the equipment required to perform the work satisfactorily. 
 
Any person employed by the Contractor or by any subcontractor who, in the opinion of the 
Owner's Engineer, does not perform his work in a proper and skillful manner or is intemperate 
or disorderly shall, at the written request of the Owner's Engineer, be removed forthwith by the 
Contractor or subcontractor employing such person, and shall not be employed again in any 
portion of the work without the approval of the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Should the Contractor fail to remove such person or persons or fail to furnish suitable and 
sufficient personnel for the proper prosecution of the work, the Owner's Engineer may suspend 
the work by written notice until compliance with such orders. 
 
All equipment which is proposed to be used on the work shall be of sufficient size and in such 
mechanical condition as to meet requirements of the work and to produce a satisfactory quality 
of work.  Equipment used on any portion of the work shall be such that no injury to previously 
completed work, adjacent property, or existing facilities will result from its use. 
 
 
 



 GP-42 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

When the methods and equipment to be used by the Contractor in accomplishing the work are 
not prescribed in the contract, the Contractor is free to use any methods or equipment that will 
accomplish the work in conformity with the requirements of the contract, plans and 
specifications. When the contract specifies the use of certain methods and equipment, such 
methods and equipment shall be used unless others are authorized by the Owner's Engineer.  If 
the Contractor desires to use a method or type of equipment other than specified in the 
contract, he may request authority from the Owner's Engineer to do so.  The request shall be in 
writing and shall include a full description of the methods and equipment proposed and of the 
reasons for desiring to make the change.  If approval is given, it will be on the condition that the 
Contractor will be fully responsible for producing work in conformity with contract 
requirements.  If, after trial use of the substituted methods or equipment, the Owner's 
Engineer determines that the work produced does not meet contract requirements, the 
Contractor shall discontinue the use of the substitute method or equipment and shall complete 
the remaining work with the specified methods and equipment.  The Contractor shall remove 
any deficient work and replace it with work of specified quality, or take such other corrective 
action as the Owner's Engineer may direct.  No change will be made in basis of payment for the 
contract items involved nor in contract time as a result of authorizing a change in methods or 
equipment under this subsection. 
 
80-06 TEMPORARY SUSPENSION OF THE WORK.  The Owner's Engineer shall have the 
authority to suspend the work wholly, or in part, for such period or periods as he may deem 
necessary, due to unsuitable weather, or such other conditions as are considered unfavorable 
for the prosecution of the work, or for such time as is necessary due to the failure on the part of 
the Contractor to carry out orders given or perform any or all provisions of the contract. 
 
In the event that the Contractor is ordered by the Owner's Engineer, in writing, to suspend 
work for some unforeseen cause not otherwise provided for in the contract and over which the 
Contractor has no control, the Contractor may be reimbursed for actual money expended on 
the work during the period of shutdown.  No allowance will be made for anticipated profits.  
The period of shutdown shall be computed from the effective date of the Owner's Engineer's 
order to suspend work to the effective date of the Owner's Engineer's order to resume the 
work.  Claims for such compensation shall be filed with the Owner's Engineer within the time 
period stated in the Owner's Engineer's order to resume work.  The Contractor shall submit 
with his claim information substantiating the amount shown on the claim.  The Owner's 
Engineer will forward the Contractor's claim to the Owner for consideration in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances.  No provision of this article shall be construed as entitling the 
Contractor to compensation for delays due to inclement weather, for suspensions made at the 
request of the Contractor, or for any other delay provided for in the contract, plans or 
specifications. 
 
If it should become necessary to suspend work for an indefinite period, the Contractor shall 
store all materials in such manner that they will not become an obstruction nor become 
damaged in any way. He shall take every precaution to prevent damage or deterioration of the 
work performed and provide for normal drainage of the work.  The Contractor shall erect 
temporary structures where necessary to provide for the continuous flow of traffic. 
 



 GP-43 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

80-07 DETERMINATION AND EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME.  The number of calendar or 
working days allowed for completion of the work shall be stated in the proposal and contract 
and shall be known as the CONTRACT TIME. 
 
Should the contract time require extension for reasons beyond the Contractor's control, it shall 
be adjusted as follows: 
 

(a) CONTRACT TIME (10-13) based on WORKING DAYS (10-41) shall be calculated weekly 
by the Owner's Engineer.  The Owner's Engineer will furnish the Contractor a copy of 
his weekly statement of the number of working days charged against the contract 
time during the week and the number of working days currently specified for 
completion of the contract (the original contract time plus the number of working 
days, if any, that have been included in approved CHANGE ORDERS (10-10) or 
SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENTS (10-38) covering EXTRA WORK (40-04). 

 
The Owner's Engineer shall base his weekly statement of contract time charged on the 
following considerations: 

 
(1) No time shall be charged for days on which the Contractor is unable to proceed 

with the principal item of work under construction at the time for at least 6 
hours with the normal work force employed on such principal item.  Should the 
normal work force be on a double-shift, 12 hours shall be used.  Should the 
normal work force be on a triple-shift, 18 hours shall apply.  Conditions beyond 
the Contractor's control such as strikes, lockouts, unusual delays in 
transportation, temporary suspension of the principal items of work under 
construction or temporary suspension of the entire work which have been 
ordered by the Owner's Engineer for reasons not the fault of the Contractor, 
shall not be charged against the contract time. 

(2) The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against the contract time prior to 
the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(3) The Owner's Engineer will begin charges against the contract time on the first 
working day after the effective date of the notice to proceed. 

(4) The Owner's Engineer will not make charges against the contract time after the 
date of final acceptance as defined in the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of 
Section 50-15. 

(5) The Contractor will be allowed one week in which to file a written protest setting 
forth his objections to the Owner's Engineer's weekly statement.  If no objection 
is filed within such specified time, the weekly statement shall be considered as 
acceptable to the Contractor. 

 
The contract time (stated in the proposal) is based on the originally estimated 
quantities as described in the subsection titled INTERPRETATION OF ESTIMATED 
PROPOSAL QUANTITIES of Section 20-05. 

 
 

 



 GP-44 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

Should the satisfactory completion of the contract require performance of work in 
greater quantities than those estimated in the proposal, the contract time shall be 
increased in the same proportion as the cost of the actually completed quantities 
bears to the cost of the originally estimated quantities in the proposal.  Such increase 
in contract time shall not consider either the cost of work or the extension of contract 
time that has been covered by change order or supplemental agreement and shall be 
made at the time of final payment. 

 
(b) CONTRACT TIME (10-13) based on CALENDAR DAYS (10-09) shall consist of the number 

of calendar days stated in the contract counting from the effective date of the notice 
to proceed and including all Saturdays, Sundays, holidays, and non-work days.  All 
calendar days elapsing between the effective dates of the Owner's Engineer's orders 
to suspend and resume all work, due to causes not the fault of the Contractor, shall be 
excluded. 

 
At the time of final payment, the contract time shall be increased in the same 
proportion as the final cost bears to the estimated cost in the proposal.  Such increase 
in the contract time shall not consider either the cost of work or the extension of 
contract time that has been covered by a change order or supplemental agreement.  
Charges against the contract time will cease as of the date of final acceptance.   

 
(c) When the contract time is a specified completion date, it shall be the date on which all 

contract work shall be substantially completed. 
 

If the Contractor finds it impossible for reasons beyond his control to complete the 
work within the contract time as specified, or as extended in accordance with the 
provisions of this subsection, he may, at any time prior to the expiration of the 
contract time as extended, make a written request to the Owner's Engineer for an 
extension of time setting forth the reasons which he believes will justify the granting 
of his request.  The Contractor's plea that insufficient time was specified is not a valid 
reason for extension of time.  If the Owner's Engineer finds that the work was delayed 
because of conditions beyond the control and without the fault of the Contractor, he 
may extend the time for completion in such amount as the conditions justify.  The 
extended time for completion shall then be in full force and effect, the same as though 
it were the original time for completion. 

 
 
80-08 FAILURE TO COMPLETE ON TIME.  For each calendar day or working day, as specified in 
the contract, that any work remains uncompleted after the contract time (including all 
extensions and adjustments as provided in the subsection titled DETERMINATION AND 
EXTENSION OF CONTRACT TIME of Section 80-07) the sum specified in the contract and 
proposal as liquidated damages will be deducted from any money due or to become due the 
Contractor or his surety.  Such deducted sums shall not be deducted as a penalty but shall be 
considered as liquidation of a reasonable portion of damages that will be incurred by the 
Owner should the Contractor fail to complete the work in the time provided in his contract. 
 



 GP-45 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

Permitting the Contractor to continue and finish the work or any part of it after the time fixed 
for its completion, or after the date to which the time for completion may have been extended, 
will in no way operate as a waiver on the part of the Owner of any of its rights under the 
contract. 
 
80-09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT.  The Contractor shall be considered in 
default of his contract and such default will be considered as cause for the Owner to terminate 
the contract for any of the following reasons if the Contractor: 
 

(a) Fails to begin the work under the contract within the time specified in the "Notice to 
Proceed (80-02)"; or 

(b) Fails to perform the work or fails to provide sufficient workers, equipment or materials 
to assure completion of work in accordance with the terms of the contract; or 

(c) Performs the work unsuitably or neglects or refuses to remove materials or to perform 
anew such work as may be rejected as unacceptable and unsuitable; or  

(d) Discontinues the prosecution of the work; or 
(e) Fails to resume work which has been discontinued within a reasonable time after 

notice to do so; or 
(f) Becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of bankruptcy or 

insolvency; or 
(g) Allows any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied for a period of 10 days; or 
(h) Makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or  
(i) For any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable manner. 

 
Should the Owner's Engineer consider the Contractor in default of the contract for any reason 
hereinbefore, he shall immediately give written notice to the Contractor and the Contractor's 
surety as to the reasons for considering the Contractor in default and the Owner's intentions to 
terminate the contract. 
 
If the Contractor or surety, within a period of 10 calendar days after such notice, does not 
proceed in accordance therewith, then the Owner will, upon written notification from the 
Owner's Engineer of the facts of such delay, neglect, or default and the Contractor's failure to 
comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating the contract, to take 
the prosecution of the work out of the hands of the Contractor.  The Owner may appropriate or 
use any or all materials and equipment that have been mobilized for use in the work and are 
acceptable and may enter into an agreement for the completion of said contract according to 
the terms and provisions thereof, or use such other methods as in the opinion of the Owner's 
Engineer will be required for the completion of said contract in an acceptable manner. 
 
All costs and charges incurred by the Owner, together with the cost of completing the work 
under contract, will be deducted from any monies due or which may become due the 
Contractor.  If such expense exceeds the sum which would have been payable under the 
contract, then the Contractor and the surety shall be liable and shall pay to the Owner the 
amount of such excess. 
 



 GP-46 

Prosecution & Progress continued… 
 
 

80-10 TERMINATION FOR NATIONAL EMERGENCIES.  The Owner shall terminate the contract 
or portion thereof by written notice when the Contractor is prevented from proceeding with 
the construction contract as a direct result of an Executive Order of the President with respect 
to the prosecution of war or in the interest of national defense. 
 
When the contract, or any portion thereof, is terminated before completion of all items of work 
in the contract, payment will be made for the actual number of units or items of work 
completed at the contract price or as mutually agreed for items of work partially completed or 
not started.  No claims or loss of anticipated profits shall be considered. 
 
Reimbursement for organization of the work, and other overhead expenses, (when not 
otherwise included in the contract) and moving equipment and materials to and from the job 
will be considered, the intent being that an equitable settlement will be made with the 
Contractor. 
 
Acceptable materials, obtained or ordered by the Contractor for the work and that are not 
incorporated in the work shall, at the option of the Contractor, be purchased from the 
Contractor at actual cost as shown by receipted bills and actual cost records at such points of 
delivery as may be designated by the Owner's Engineer. 
 
Termination of the contract or a portion thereof shall neither relieve the Contractor of his 
responsibilities for the completed work nor shall it relieve his surety of its obligation for and 
concerning any just claim arising out of the work performed. 



 GP-47 

 GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 

 SECTION 90 
 
 MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 
 
90-01 MEASUREMENT OF QUANTITIES.  All work completed under the contract will be 
measured by the Contractor's Engineer, certified and furnished to the Owner's Engineer and 
verified by the Owner or his authorized representatives, using United States Customary Units of 
Measurement. 
 
The method of measurement and computations to be used in determination of quantities of 
material furnished and of work performed under the contract will be those methods generally 
recognized as conforming to good engineering practice. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, longitudinal measurements for area computations will be made 
horizontally, and no deductions will be made for individual fixtures (or leave-outs) having an 
area of 9 square feet or less.  Unless otherwise specified, transverse measurements for area 
computations will be the neat dimensions shown on the plans or ordered in writing by the 
Owner's Engineer. 
 
Structures will be measured according to neat lines shown on the plans or as altered to fit field 
conditions. 
 
Unless otherwise specified, all contract items which are measured by the linear foot such as 
pipe culverts, and similar items shall be measured parallel to the base or foundation upon 
which such items are placed. 
 
In computing volumes of excavation the average end area method or other methods acceptable 
to the Owner's Engineer, will be used. 
 
Areas of materials paid for by area shall be measured using the centerline length of the facility 
multiplied by the lesser of the average actual or plan dimensions perpendicular to centerline.  
Actual width shall be measured at random locations along the length of the project, with an 
average of two measurements per station.  Volumes of materials in place shall be determined 
by multiplying the area by the lesser of the plan or actual average thickness of the material.  
Materials in a structural section such as aggregate base shall be not less than the specified 
thickness. 
 
The thickness of plates and galvanized sheet used in the manufacture of corrugated metal pipe, 
metal plate pipe culverts and arches, and metal cribbing will be specified and measured in 
decimal fraction of inches. 
 
The term "ton" will mean the short ton consisting of 2,000 pound avoirdupois.  All materials 
which are measured or proportioned by weights shall be weighed on accurate, approved scales 
by competent, qualified personnel at locations designated by the Owner's Engineer.   
 
 



 GP-48 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 

If material is shipped by rail, the car weight may be accepted provided that only the actual 
weight of material be paid for.  However, car weights will not be acceptable for material to be 
passed through mixing plants.  
 
Trucks used to haul material being paid for by weight shall be weighed empty at least twice 
daily at such times as the Owner's Engineer directs, and each truck shall bear a plainly legible 
identification mark.  Such empty weights shall be recorded with the time and truck 
identification on a Tare Sheet. Copies of each days Tare Sheets and the current scale 
certification shall be furnished to the Owner’s Engineer with the pay request. 
 
Materials SHALL NOT be measured by volume in the hauling vehicle unless approved in writing 
in advance by the Owner's Engineer. 
 
When requested by the Contractor and approved by the Owner's Engineer in writing, material 
specified to be measured by the cubic yard may be weighed and such weights will be converted 
to cubic yards for payment purposes.  Factors for conversion from weight measurement to 
volume measurement will be determined by the Owner's Engineer and shall be agreed to by 
the Contractor before such method of measurement of pay quantities is used. 
 
Bituminous materials will be measured by the gallon or ton.  When measured by volume, such 
volumes will be measured at 60 degrees F. or will be corrected to the volume at 60 degrees F. 
using ASTM D 1250 for asphalts or ASTM D 633 for tars. 
 
Net certified scale weights or weights based on certified volumes in the case of rail shipments 
will be used as a basis of measurement, subject to correction when bituminous material has 
been lost from the car or the distributor, wasted, or otherwise not incorporated in the work. 
 
When bituminous materials are shipped by truck or transport, net certified weights by volume, 
subject to correction for loss or foaming, may be used for computing quantities. 
 
Portland cement, fly ash and lime will be measured by the ton or hundredweight. 
 
Timber will be measured by the thousand feet board measure (M.F.B.M.) actually incorporated 
in the structure.  Measurement will be based on nominal widths and thickness and the extreme 
length of each piece. 
 
The term "lump sum" when used as an item of payment will mean complete payment for the 
work described in the contract.  Contractor shall furnish a fee schedule to the Owner’s Engineer 
at the preconstruction conference for all professional service lump sum items such as 
construction surveying and materials testing. 
 
When a complete structure or structural unit (in effect, "lump sum" work) is specified as the 
unit of measurement, the unit will be construed to include all necessary fittings and 
accessories. 
 
 



 GP-49 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 

Rental of equipment will be measured by time in hours of actual working time and necessary 
traveling time of the equipment within the limits of the work.  Special equipment ordered by 
the Owner's Engineer in connection with force account work will be measured as agreed in the 
change order or supplemental agreement authorizing such force account work as provided in 
the subsection titled PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK of Section 90-05. 
 
When standard manufactured items are specified such as fence, wire, plates, rolled shapes, 
pipe conduit, etc., and these items are identified by gauge, unit weight, section dimensions, 
etc., such identification will be considered to be nominal weights or dimensions.  Unless more 
stringently controlled by tolerances in cited specifications, manufacturing tolerances 
established by the industries involved will be accepted. 
 
Scales for weighing materials which are required to be proportioned or measured and paid for 
by weight shall be furnished, erected, and maintained by the Contractor, or by certified 
permanently installed commercial scales.  Scales shall be accurate within one-half per cent of 
the correct weight throughout the range of use.  The Contractor shall have the scales checked 
under the observation of the inspector before beginning work and at such other times as 
requested.  The intervals shall be uniform in spacing throughout the graduated or marked 
length of the beam or dial and shall not exceed one-tenth of one per cent of the nominal rated 
capacity of the scale, but not less than one pound.  The use of spring balances will not be 
permitted. 
 
Beams, dials, platforms, and other scale equipment shall be so arranged that the operator and 
inspector can safely and conveniently view them. 
 
Scale installations shall have available, ten standard fifty-pound weights for testing the 
weighing equipment or suitable weights and devices for other approved equipment. 
 
Scales must be tested for accuracy and serviced before use at a new site.  Platform scales shall 
be installed and maintained with the platform level and rigid bulkheads at each end. 
 
Scales "overweighing" (indicating more than correct weight) will not be permitted to operate 
and all materials received subsequent to the last previous correct weighing-accuracy-test will 
be reduced by the percentage of error in excess of one-half of one per cent. 
 
In the event inspection reveals the scales have been "under-weighing" (indicating less than 
correct weight) they shall be adjusted and no additional payment to the Contractor will be 
allowed for materials previously weighed and recorded. 
 
All costs in connection with furnishing, installing, certifying, testing, and maintaining scales:  for 
furnishing check weights and scale house; and for all other items specified in this subsection, 
for the weighing of materials for proportioning or payment, shall be included in the unit 
contract prices for the various items of the project. 
 
 
 



 GP-50 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 

When the estimated quantities for a specific portion of the work are designated as pay 
quantities in the contract, they shall be the final quantities for which payment for such specific 
portion of the work will be made, unless the dimensions of said portions of the work shown on 
the plans are revised by the Owner's Engineer.  If revised dimensions result in an increase or 
decrease in the quantities of such work, the final quantities for payment will be revised in the 
amount represented by the authorized changes in the dimensions. 
 
90-02 SCOPE OF PAYMENT.  The Contractor shall receive and accept compensation provided 
for in the contract as full payment for furnishing all materials, for performing all work under the 
contract in a complete and acceptable manner, and for all risk, loss, damage, or expense of 
whatever character arising out of the nature of the work or the prosecution thereof, subject to 
the provisions of the subsection titled NO WAIVER OF LEGAL RIGHTS of Section 70-17. 
 
When the "basis of payment" subsection of a technical specification requires that the contract 
price (price bid) include compensation for certain work or material essential to the item, this 
same work or material will not also be measured for payment under any other contract item 
which may appear elsewhere in the contract, plans or specifications. 
 
Periodic progress payments shall be in accordance with A.R.S. §34-221. 
 
90-03 COMPENSATION FOR ALTERED QUANTITIES.  When the accepted quantities of work vary 
from the quantities in the proposal, the Contractor shall accept as payment in full, so far as 
contract items are concerned, payment at the original contract price for the accepted 
quantities of work actually completed and accepted.  No allowance, except as provided for in 
the subsection titled ALTERATION OF WORK AND QUANTITIES of Section 40-02 will be made for 
any increased expense, loss of expected reimbursement, or loss of anticipated profits suffered 
or claimed by the Contractor which results directly from such alterations or indirectly from his 
unbalanced allocation of overhead and profit among the contract items, or from any other 
cause. 
 
90-04 PAYMENT FOR OMITTED ITEMS.  As specified in the subsection titled OMITTED ITEMS of 
Section 40-03, the Owner's Engineer shall have the right to omit from the work (order 
nonperformance) any contract item, except major contract items, in the best interest of the 
Owner. 
 
Should the Owner's Engineer omit to order nonperformance of a contract item or portion of 
such item from the work, the Contractor shall accept payment in full at the contract prices for 
any work actually completed and acceptable prior to the Owner's Engineer's order to omit or 
non-perform such contract item. 
 
Acceptable materials ordered by the contract or delivered on the work prior to the date of the 
Owner's Engineer's order will be paid for at the actual cost to the Contractor and shall 
thereupon become the property of the Owner. 
 
 
 



 GP-51 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 
 

In addition to the reimbursement hereinbefore provided, the Contractor shall be reimbursed 
for all actual costs incurred for the purpose of performing the omitted contract item prior to 
the date of the Owner's Engineer's order.  Such additional costs incurred by the Contractor 
must be directly related to the deleted contract item and shall be supported by certified 
statements by the Contractor as to the nature and amount of such costs. 
 
90-05 PAYMENT FOR EXTRA AND FORCE ACCOUNT WORK.  Extra work, performed in 
accordance with the subsection titled EXTRA WORK of Section 40-04, will be paid for at the 
contract prices or agreed prices specified in the change order or supplemental agreement 
authorizing the extra work requiring that it be done by force account, such force account shall 
be measured and paid for as follows: 
 

(a) Labor.  For all labor (skilled and unskilled) and foremen in direct charge of a specific 
force account item, the Contractor shall receive the rate of wage (or scale) for every 
hour that such labor or foreman is actually engaged in the specified force account 
work.  Such wage (or scale) shall be agreed upon in writing before beginning the work. 

 
The Contractor shall receive the actual costs paid to, or in behalf of, workers by reason 
of subsistence and travel allowances, health and welfare benefits, pension fund 
benefits or other benefits, when such amounts are required by collective bargaining 
agreement or other employment contract generally applicable to the classes of labor 
employed on the work.  An amount equal to 15 percent of the sum of the above items 
will also be paid the Contractor. 

 
(b) Insurance and Taxes.  For property damage, liability and workmen's compensation 

insurance premiums, unemployment insurance contributions, and social security taxes 
on the force account work the Contractor shall receive the actual cost, to which cost 
(sum) 5 percent will be added.  The Contractor shall furnish satisfactory evidence of 
the rate or rates paid for such insurance and taxes. 

 
(c) Materials.  For materials accepted by the Owner's Engineer and used, the Contractor 

shall receive the actual cost of such materials delivered on the work, including 
transportation charges paid by him (exclusive of machinery rentals as hereinafter set 
forth), to which cost (sum) 15 percent will be added. 

 
(d) Equipment.  For any machinery or special equipment (other than small tools) including 

fuel and lubricants, plus transportation costs, the use of which has been authorized by 
the Owner's Engineer, the Contractor shall receive the rental rates in the current "Blue 
Book for Construction Equipment". 

 
(e) Miscellaneous.  No additional allowance will be made for general superintendence, 

the use of small tools, or other costs for which no specific allowance is herein 
provided. 

 



 GP-52 

(f) Comparison of Records.  The Contractor and the Owner's Engineer shall compare 
records of the cost of force account work at the end of each day.  Agreement shall be 
indicated by signature of the Contractor and Owner's Engineer or their duly authorized 
representatives. 

 
(g) Statements.  No payment will be made for work performed on a force account basis 

until the Contractor has furnished the Owner's Engineer with duplicate itemized 
statements of the cost of such force account work detailed as follows: 

 
(1)   Name, classification, date, daily hours, total hours, rate and extension for each 

laborer and foreman. 
(2)   Designation, dates, daily hours, total hours, rental rate and extension for each 

unit of machinery and equipment. 
(3)   Quantities of material, prices, and extensions. 
(4)   Transportation of materials. 
(5)   Cost of property damage, liability and workmen's compensation insurance 

premiums, unemployment insurance contribution and social security tax. 
 

Statements shall be accompanied and supported by receipted invoice for all materials 
used and transportation charges.  However, if materials used on the force account 
work are not specifically purchased for such work but are taken from the Contractor's 
stock, then in lieu of the invoices the Contractor shall furnish an affidavit certifying 
that such materials were taken from his stock, that the quantity claimed, was actually 
used, and that the price and transportation claimed represent the actual cost to the 
Contractor. 
 
The additional payment, based on the percentages specified above, shall constitute 
full compensation for all items of expense not specifically provided for in the force 
account work.  The total payment made as provided above shall constitute full 
compensation for such work. 

 
90-06 ACCEPTANCE AND FINAL PAYMENT.  When the contract work has been accepted in 
accordance with the requirements of the subsection titled FINAL ACCEPTANCE of Section 50-15, 
the Owner's Engineer will prepare the final estimate of the items of work actually performed.  
The Contractor shall approve the Owner's Engineer's final estimate or advise the Owner's 
Engineer of his objections to the final estimate which are based on disputes in measurements 
or computations of the final quantities to be paid under the contract as amended by change 
order or supplemental agreement. The Contractor and Owner's Engineer shall resolve all 
disputes (if any) in the measurement and computation of final quantities to be paid within 30 
calendar days of the Contractor's receipt of the Owner's Engineer's final estimate.  If, after such 
30-day period, a dispute still exists, the Contractor may approve the Owner's Engineer's 
estimate under protest of the quantities in dispute and such disputed quantities shall be 
considered by the Owner as a claim in accordance with the subsection titled CLAIMS FOR 
ADJUSTMENT AND DISPUTES of Section 50-16. 
 
 
 



 GP-53 

Measurement & Payment continued… 
 

After the Contractor has approved, or approved under protest, the Owner's Engineer's final 
estimate, final payment will be processed based on the entire sum, or the undisputed sum in 
case of approval under protest, determined to be due the Contractor less all previous payments 
and all amounts to be deducted under the provisions of the contract.  All prior partial estimates 
and payments shall be subject to correction in the final estimate and payment. 
 
Contractor shall provide an executed Affidavit of Release of Liens and an Affidavit of Payment 
to the Owners Engineer prior to the release of the final payment. 
 
If the Contractor has filed a claim for additional compensation under the provisions of the 
subsection titled CLAIMS FOR ADJUSTMENTS AND DISPUTES of Section 50-16 or under the 
provisions of this subsection, such claims will be considered by the Owner in accordance with 
local laws or ordinances.  Upon final adjudication of such claims, any additional payment 
determined to be due the Contractor will be paid pursuant to a supplemental, final estimate. 
 



  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS 
 
 
 

SP-1 TO SP-6 



SP-1 

 SPECIAL PROVISIONS  
 
 GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
  
 
1. PROPOSED WORK 
 

The work consists of clearing and grubbing, removal of existing structures (e.g., asphaltic 
pavement, concrete curb, concrete planter wall, misc. concrete items…etc.) interfering 
with the work, installation of concrete sidewalks, concrete curbs and curb and gutter, 
Keystone block wall, masonry wall, metal handrails, asphaltic concrete pavement and 
other work as shown within the plans. 

 
2. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 
 

The project has been designed utilizing the Arizona Department of Transportation 
(ADOT) Construction Standard Drawings (Latest Series), and 2008 Standard 
Specifications, with appropriate current revisions along with Uniform Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction (Latest Edition and Revisions), Maricopa 
Association of Governments.  Wherever reference in the Standard Specifications is 
made to MAG, ADOT, the Owner, or the Department: it shall refer to Gila County. 

 
In the event of any conflict between the plans and Standard Specifications, the plans 
shall prevail.  In the event of any conflict between these Special Provisions and the plans 
or Standard Specifications, these Special Provisions shall prevail. 

 
The following STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS and/or details are considered a part of these 
Contract Documents and are considered as binding as if actually attached hereto: 

 
 Arizona Department of Transportation, Highways Division, Standard 

Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction, Edition of 2008, 
 

 Arizona Department of Transportation, Highways Division, Standard Drawings, 
listed in the project plans and defined hereinafter, 

 
 Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, Millennium Edition, and 

Amendments. 
 

 Uniform Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Latest Edition 
and Revisions).  Maricopa Association of Governments. 
 

3. POINTS AND INSTRUCTION AND AS-BUILTS 
 

The Contractor will furnish and set control stakes and points for line and grade and will 
furnish the Engineer with the necessary information relating to such stakes and points.   



SP-2 

Special Provisions continued… 

 
The Contractor will provide such intermediate stakes as he may need to set to comply 
with these Specifications.   

 

The Contractor shall carefully preserve benchmarks, reference points and stakes, and in 
case of willful or careless destruction, he shall be charged with the resulting expense of 
replacement, and shall be responsible for any mistakes that may be caused by their 
unnecessary loss or disturbance. 

 
In the event that it is necessary for the OWNER to duplicate his work because of acts of 
omission or negligence on the part of the Contractor, or because of the removal of 
defective work, such additional cost of engineering shall be borne by the Contractor. 

 
When the work is completed, the Contractor shall provide the OWNER with a set of as-
built drawings on clean prints of the original drawings.  The as-built drawings shall 
indicate in a neat and accurate manner all changes and revisions in the original design 
which affect the permanent structures and which exist in the completed work.  All 
underground utilities relocated under this contract shall be referenced to semi-
permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 
The alterations and references shall be made with colored ink and shall be sufficiently 
clear and complete to enable reproducing these changes on the original tracings.  The 
Engineer will document these changes on the original tracings and forward the tracings 
to the Contractor for review and signature.  The registered Professional Land Surveyor 
who performed the Final Survey shall certify the As-Built information by signing and 
sealing the tracings for the Contractor.  Final payment of this contract will not be made 
to the Contractor until the As-Built drawings are satisfactorily produced and certified. 

 
As-Built conditions shall be kept current.  They shall be inspected for accuracy and 
completeness monthly.  The Contractor shall certify on his monthly payment requisition 
that the drawings are accurate and complete before the monthly payment estimate will 
be prepared and approved. 
 

4.  CONSTRUCTION LIMITS 
 

The Contractor shall not disturb any vegetation or operate any equipment outside the 
approved clearing limits as defined in ADOT Standard Specifications, Section 201 - 
Clearing and Grubbing and as specified in the Technical Specifications.  These limits shall 
be known as the Construction Limits.  Deviation outside these limits is not authorized. 

 
The Owner shall provide land, right-of-way, and easements for all work specified in this 
contract, except that the Contractor shall provide additional land if required for the 
erection of temporary construction facilities for storage of his material, together with 
right of access to same.  The Contractor shall not enter or occupy with men, tools, 
equipment or materials, any private property without written consent of the Owner 
thereof. 



SP-3 

Special Provisions continued… 
 

The Contractor shall submit at the preconstruction conference a map showing the 
proposed location of his Contractor's yard.  The location of the yard is subject to the 
approval of the Owner.  The Contractor is responsible for the security of his yard and the 
equipment and materials stored at the yard or construction site.  Damage, theft, 
vandalism, or loss of such equipment or materials is the responsibility of the Contractor.  
The Contractor will not be compensated for replacement, repair, or refusal of materials 
by the Engineer damaged by vandalism or theft.  The Contractor will take whatever 
measures are necessary to secure his yard, equipment, and materials.  Security 
measures such as yard fences, security guards, locks, chains, etc. are incidental to the 
work for this project. 

 
5. OPERATION AND TRAFFIC CONTROL PLANS 
 

The Contractor shall prepare and submit to the Owner a traffic control plan(s) including 
detailed information with regard to insuring safe pedestrian access into the building. 
One of the entrances, either the main entrance (north side) or the Board Chamber 
entrance (northwest corner); must remain open at all times during construction. A plan 
including the sequence of operations including safe pedestrian access management shall 
be prepared by the Contractor and presented to the Owner during the Preconstruction 
Conference. 

 
6. QUALITY CONTROL PLAN  
 

The Owner shall be responsible for Quality Control. The Contractor shall provide access 
to all parts of the work and material sources for the Owner obtain all necessary 
sampling and testing and shall schedule all required testing with the Owner. The Owner 
shall have the right, at any stage of the operations, to reject any and all work and 
material that, in his/her opinion, do not meet the requirements of the specifications. 
 

7. SAMPLING AND TESTING 
 

All testing and sampling as specified herein shall be performed by a geotechnical 
laboratory. Unless otherwise specified, the cost of the laboratory testing, heavy 
equipment rental and labor incident to practical tests specified shall be at the 
Contractor's expense.   
 
The Contractor shall notify, during the preconstruction conference, the Owner of the 
proposed sources of all materials required by the Specifications to be tested.  Before 
work starts sufficient time shall be allowed for the taking of samples and completing 
tests required. The Contractor should furnish a full and current set of test results from 
the proposed source before the preconstruction conference. 
 
 
 



SP-4 

Special Provisions continued.. 
 

For the verification of weights and character of materials, the Owner shall have access 
at all reasonable times to all parts of the work, plants, and assembly yards connected 
with the work. The Contractor shall facilitate and assist in the verification of all scales, 
measures and other devices, which he operates.  Reference to ASTM and other 
Standard Specifications shall be considered to mean current standards.  If it is found 
that sources of supply that have been approved do not furnish a uniform product, or if 
the product from any source proves unacceptable at any time, the Contractor shall 
furnish approved material from other approved sources.  No material which, after 
approval, has in any way become unfit for use shall be used in the work.  The approval 
of any material represented by any sample or samples shall not be taken as a guarantee 
of all materials from the source; and it shall be understood that all materials delivered 
to the site are subject to test at any time and will be rejected if they do not meet the 
requirement of the Specifications. 

 
8. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT 

Measurement will be in place for the completed work, with no allowance for waste, and 
as may be more particularly described in the description of the various items set forth in 
the Standard Specifications and as shown on the plans.  All earthwork, fill and 
excavation, submitted for payment shall be certified by an Arizona registered 
Professional Land Surveyor in support of the work performed by the Contractor. 

 
No additional payments will be made for work related to any item unless specifically 
noted and called for in the Proposal.  Payment will be made at the unit price or lump 
sum price bid in the Proposal. 

 
In addition to the requirements set forth in the ADOT Standard Specifications, no 
measurement or direct payment will be made for the following work.  The cost for such 
work shall be considered as included in the price of other contract items. 

 
A. Removal and salvage items as called for on the plans, in the Standard 

Specifications, or these Special Provisions. 
B. Removal, salvage and/or re-installation of existing fence lines. 
C. Sampling, testing, certification, and other quality control actions. 
D. Disposal of surplus, waste or non-salvageable materials. 
E. Grading of drainage ditches and drainage excavation not called out on the plans. 
F. Preparation and submittal of operation, traffic control, and storm water 

pollution prevention plans, whether specified herein or required by the other 
agencies. 

G. Obtaining and maintaining any required environmental and/or other permits and 
licenses. 

 
 
 



SP-5 

Special Provisions continued… 

 

The quantities set forth in the Proposal are used for the purpose of determining the 
basis of the award of the Contract, and may be increased or decreased 10% or less by 
the Owner to conform to the requirements of the work as set forth on the plans, and 
the Contractor shall agree to perform the work on the basis of the prices bid for the 
items contained in the Proposal regardless of whether or not the items or units are 
decreased or increased. 
 
The Engineer or the Owner shall have the right to order omitted from the Contract any 
minor item found unnecessary to the work without violating the Contract or 
Performance Bond, and without any compensation to the Contractor. 

 
To ensure the Contractor's satisfactory performance of the Contract, progress payments 
shall be subject to retainage pursuant to A.R.S. §34-221 in the amount of 10% of the 
approved estimate of the Work performed in the preceding calendar month.  When the 
Work is 50% complete, the retainage shall be reduced to 5% so long as the Contractor is 
making satisfactory progress.  If the Owner determines in writing that the Contractor is 
not making satisfactory progress at any time, the 10% retainage may be reinstated.  In 
lieu of retainage, the Contractor may post substitute security meeting the requirements 
of A.R.S. §34-221. 

 
9. HAUL ROUTE 
 

The Contractor is to submit haul routes to the Owner for approval.  
 
10. DUST CONTROL 
 

The Contractor shall use all methods in the control of dust as set forth by A.R.S. §49-401 
and the ADOT Standard Specifications Section 207.  The cost thereof is to be included in 
the unit construction cost. 

 
11. TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS 
 

Temporary construction easements are not required for this project.  
 
12. OWNER’S FIELD OFFICE 
 

The Owner’s field office, as called for under Section 60-05 of the General Provisions, 
shall not be required of the Contractor for this project. 

 
 
 



SP-6 

Special Provisions continued… 

 

13. BLASTING NOTIFICATION 
 

Blasting shall not be permitted within any portion of the project at any time. 
 

14. UTILITY SYSTEMS 
 

The Contractor shall be aware of each utility system owner’s 
requirements/specifications/standard details/permitting prior to the commencement of 
any utility system installation or system elements that interfere with construction. The 
Contractor shall also be aware of several utility systems existing within and around the 
project limits. The Contractor shall be responsible for any damage to the utilities. The 
Contractor shall be aware of overhead utility lines along and near roadways within 
and/or adjacent to the project limits. The Contractor shall be responsible for any 
damage to any overhead utilities or their support structures.   
 

15. UTILITY RELOCATION/REMOVAL 
 

The Contractor shall not be responsible for the relocation and/or removal of any existing 
utility system(s) in conflict with the project unless noted on the plans. The Contractor 
shall coordinate project activities with each respective utility system. Prior to 
construction to minimize utility service disruption, relocations and/or removals shall be 
in accordance with each respective utility system owner. The Contractor shall be 
responsible for any damage to said utility system(s) during construction. 

 
16. DISPOSAL OF REMOVED VEGETATION OR UNSUITABLE MATERIALS 
 

The Contractor shall dispose all removed vegetation and/or any unsuitable materials in 
a location as designated by the Public Works Director. Disposal of said material in 
another location(s) shall be submitted to the OWNER for approval prior to disposal 
activities. 

 
17. KEYSTONE WALLS 

 
The Contractor shall be responsible for the design of all Keystone Wall systems shown 
within the project. The Contractor shall submit all necessary documentation to the Gila 
County Public Works Director for review and approval prior to construction. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 
 
 
 

T-1 TO T-5 
 



T - 1 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 
 

GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT  
GLOBE, ARIZONA 

 
 
201 CLEARING AND GRUBBING 
 
Clearing and Grubbing shall be in accordance with Section 201 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein.  
 

201-1  Description: the first paragraph is revised to read: 
 

The work under this section shall consist of removing and disposing of all vegetation, 
rubbish, trees, debris and other objectionable matter only from those areas required to 
install the proposed work unless otherwise shown on the plans or specified in the 
Special Provisions.   

 
201-2 Removal of Disposal Materials: the first paragraph is revised to read: 

 
All materials removed in clearing and grubbing shall be disposed of in locations subject 
to the OWNER’s approval prior to said disposal. Disposal of materials within the project 
right-of-way or within the project limits is not permitted. 

 
201-4 Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 
 
No measurement shall be made for Clearing and Grubbing. 
 
201-5 Method of Payment: first paragraph is revised to read: 

 
The accepted quantities of clearing and grubbing, including all necessary trees, the cost 
thereof shall be as shown within the bid proposal.  

 
202 REMOVAL OF STRUCTURES AND OBSTRUCTIONS 
 
Removal of Structures and Obstructions shall be in accordance with Section 202 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
203 EARTHWORK 
 
Earthwork shall be in accordance with the specifications and requirements unless otherwise 
noted within the plans.  
 
 



T - 2 

Technical Specifications continued… 

 
206 STRUCTURE EXCAVATION AND BACKFILL 
 
Structure Excavation and Backfill shall be in accordance with Section 206 of the MAG Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
206 FURNISH WATER SUPPLY:   
 
Furnish Water Supply shall be done in accordance with Section 206 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
  
 206-1 Description: add the following paragraph. 
 

Water shall be free of contaminants that in the opinion of the Engineer constitute a 
health hazard. 

 
206-4 Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 

 
No measurement or payment will be made for furnish water supply, the cost being 
considered as included in the cost of other contract items. 

 
206-5 Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 

 
No measurement or payment will be made for furnish water supply, the cost being 
considered as included in the cost of other contract items. 

 
301 SUBGRADE PREPARATION 
 
Subgrade Preparation shall be in accordance with Section 301 of the MAG Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein or stated within the plans. 
 
303  AGGREGATE SUBBASES AND AGGREGATE BASES 
 
Aggregate Base Course shall Class II in accordance with Section 303 of the ADOT Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
321 ASPHALT CONCRETE PAVEMENT 
 
Asphaltic Concrete Pavement shall be in accordance with Section 321 of the MAG Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein.  
 



T - 3 

Technical Specifications continued… 

 
340 CONCRETE CURB, GUTTER, SIDEWALK, SIDEWALK RAMPS, DRIVEWAY AND ALLEY 

ENTRANCE 
 
Concrete curb, gutter, sidewalk, sidewalk ramps, driveway and alley entrances shall be in 
accordance with Section 340 of the MAG Standard Specifications unless modified herein. 
  

340-2 Materials:  of the Standard Specifications add the following: 
 
All concrete shall be color tinted using Davis-Color /mix ready/ dry/ color group 
standard/ San Diego Buff # 5237 mixed at 4 lbs per yard.  

 
520 STEEL AND ALUMINUM HANDRAILS: 
 
Steel and Aluminum Handrails shall be in accordance with Section 520 of the MAG Standard 
Specifications unless modified herein. 
 
 520-3 Erection: Add the following paragraph: 
 

Maximum spacing of pipe sleeves shall be 28 feet. All handrails shall be primed with one 
coat primer that is compatible with enamel. Two final coats shall be applied to match 
Federal Standard Number 595A Colors, Chip Number 20252, Light Brown (Sandstone). 

 
701 MAINTENANCE AND PROTECTION OF TRAFFIC: 
 
Maintenance and Protection of Traffic shall be in accordance with Section 701 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications, except as modified herein. 
 

701-1 Description:  of the Standard Specifications add the following paragraphs: 
 
The Contractor shall be responsible for closure of the main entrance driveway during 
construction and all related signage including the protection of pedestrian traffic. 
 
701-5   Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 
 
Maintenance and Protection of Traffic will not be measured.  The contract unit of 
measurement shall be lump sum. 
 
701-6  Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 
   
The contractor will be compensated for all Maintenance and Protection of Traffic in 
accordance with the procedures described herein the contract lump sum price for this 
item of work. 

 
 



T - 4 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 
810 EROSION CONTROL AND POLLUTION PREVENTION (SWPPP) 
 
An Erosion Control and Pollution Prevention Plan and an associated permit will not be required 
for this project.  

 
901 MOBILIZATION 
 
Mobilization shall be in accordance with Section 901 of the ADOT Standard Specifications. 
 
909 SURVEY MARKER 
 
Survey Markers shall not be required to be installed for this project.  
 
925  CONSTRUCTION SURVEYING AND LAYOUT AND AS-BUILT DRAWINGS: 
 
Construction Surveying and Layout shall be in accordance with Section 925 of the ADOT 
Standard Specifications, except as modified herein.  
 

925-1.01 As-Builts: add the following section: 
 

Upon completion of the work, the Contractor shall perform an as-built survey of the 
alignment and elevation of all concrete footings for wall(s); beginning of top of wall, all 
changes in the footer and/or top of wall elevation change, changes in horizontal 
direction of the wall (i.e., angle points) and all points necessary to locate all concrete 
and other related work as shown within the plans (e.g., sidewalk, ramps including but 
not limited to changes in elevation, curbing, gutter flowline, concrete stairs,  pavement, 
handrails…etc.). The survey work shall be performed and certified by an Arizona 
registered Professional Land Surveyor.  Datum of the survey shall be based on the 
benchmark information as shown on the Project Plans.  Three (3) sets of the signed and 
sealed survey document shall be submitted to the Engineer for review and approval.  As-
built drawings shall also contain the following. 
 
A. The as-built drawings shall indicate in a neat and accurate manner all changes and 

revisions in the original design which affect the permanent structures and which 
exist in the completed work.  All underground utilities relocated under this 
contract shall be referenced to semi-permanent or permanent physical objects. 

 



T - 5 

Technical Specifications continued… 
 
B. The alterations and references shall be made with colored ink and shall be 

sufficiently clear and complete to enable reproducing these changes on the 
original tracings.  The Engineer will document these changes on the original 
tracings and forward the tracings to the Contractor for review and signature.  The 
registered Professional Land Surveyor who performed the Final Survey shall certify 
the As-Built information by signing and sealing the tracings for the Contractor.   

 
Final payment of this contract will not be made to the Contractor until the As-Built 
drawings are satisfactorily produced and certified. 

 

C. As-Built conditions shall be kept current.  They shall be inspected for accuracy and 
completeness monthly.  The Contractor shall certify on his monthly payment 
requisition that the drawings are accurate and complete before the monthly 
payment estimate will be prepared and approved. 

 
  925-4      Method of Measurement: is revised to read: 
 

No measurement shall be made for Construction Survey and Layout and As-Builts.  The 
contract unit of measurement shall be lump sum. 

 
 925-5 Basis of Payment: is revised to read: 
 

Payment for Construction Survey and Layout and As-Builts shall be lump sum and shall 
be full compensation for all work necessary to complete said Construction Survey and 
Layout and As-builts.  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONTRACT FORMS 
    

  Proposal      P-1 to P-3 
  Bidding Schedule     BS-1 to BS-3 

  Bid Bond      BB-1 

  Qualification & Certification   QC-1 to QC-2 

  Reference List     RL-1 

  Affidavit of Non-Collusion   ANC-1 

  Subcontractor Certification   SC-1 

  Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment CK-1 

  Contract      C-1 to C-7 

  Contract Performance Bond   CPB-1 

  Labor and Materials Bond   LMB-1 

  Contract Performance Warranty  CPW-1 

    

 

 

 

 



P - 1 

 

PROPOSAL 
 
TO THE GILA COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS DIVISION: 
 
Gentlemen: 
 
The following Proposal is made for the BID NO. 040108-1, GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE 
ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE, in the County of Gila in the State of Arizona. 
 
The following Proposal is made on behalf of 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
_____________________________________________________________________________  
 
and no others.  The Proposal is in all respects fair and is made without collusion on the part of 
any person, firm or corporation mentioned above, and no member or employee of Gila County 
is personally or financially interested, directly or indirectly, in the Proposal, or in any purchase 
or sale of any materials or supplies for the work to which it relates, or in any portion of the 
profits thereof. 
 

The undersigned certifies that the approved Plans, Technical Specifications, General and 
Special Provisions and forms of Contract and Bond authorized by Gila County and constituting 
essential parts of this Proposal, have been carefully examined, and also that the site of the work 
has been personally inspected.  The undersigned declares that the amount and nature of the 
work to be done is understood and that at no time will misunderstanding of the Plans, 
Technical Specifications, General Provisions, Special Provisions, or conditions to be overcome, 
be plead.  On the basis of Plans, Technical Specifications, General and Special Provisions, each 
Addendum (if any) and the forms of Contract and Bond proposed for use, the undersigned 
proposes to furnish all the necessary equipment, materials, machinery, tools, apparatus, and 
other means of construction, and labor, to do all the work in the manner specified and to finish 
the entire project within the time hereinafter proposed, and to accept, as full compensation 
therefore, the sum of the various products obtained by multiplying each unit price, herein bid 
for the work or materials on the attached Bidding Schedule, by the quantity thereof actually 
incorporated in the complete project, as determined by the Public Works Director.  The 
undersigned understands that the quantities mentioned herein are approximate only and are 
subject to increase or decrease and hereby proposes to perform all quantities of work as either 
increased or decreased, in accordance with the provisions of the Specifications, at the unit price 
bid in the attached Bidding Schedule. 
 

The undersigned further proposes to perform all extra work that may be required on the 
basis provided in the Specifications and to give such work personal attention and to secure 
economical performance. 
 



P - 2 

 

Proposal continued… 
 

The undersigned further proposes to execute the Contract Agreement and furnish 
satisfactory Bonds within ten (10) calendar days from the date of Notice of Award, time being 
of the essence.  The undersigned further proposes to begin work as specified in the contract 
attached hereto, and to complete the work within sixty (60) Calendar Days of the Notice to 
Proceed, and maintain at all times a Payment Bond and Performance, Labor and Material 
Bonds, approved by the Public Works Director, in an amount equal to one hundred (100) 
percent of the total bid.  These bonds shall serve not only to guarantee the completion of the 
work on the part of the undersigned, but also to guarantee the excellence of both workmanship 
and material and the payment of all obligations incurred, until the work is finally accepted and 
the provisions of the Plans, Standard Specifications and Special Provisions fulfilled. 
 

A Proposal Guaranty in the amount and character named in the Call for Bids is enclosed 
amounting to not less than ten (10) percent of the total bid, which Proposal Guaranty is 
submitted as a guaranty of the good faith of the bidder and that the bidder will enter into 
written contract, as provided, to do the work, if successful in securing the award thereof, and it 
is hereby agreed that if at any time other than as provided in the Proposal requirements and 
conditions the undersigned should withdraw this Proposal, or if the Proposal is accepted and 
there should be failure on the part of the undersigned to execute the Contract and furnish 
satisfactory Bond as herein provided, Gila County, in either of such events, shall be entitled and 
is hereby given the right to retain the said Proposal Guaranty as liquidated damages. 
 
 
 
If by a Corporation: 
                                                                (SEAL)              
Corporate Name:__________________________________________________________  
 
Corporate Address:________________________________________________________  
 
Incorporated under the laws of the State of:____________________________________        
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
President:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Secretary:_________________________________________________________________  
 
Treasurer:_________________________________________________________________  
 
 
If by a Firm or Partnership: 
 
Firm or Partnership Name:__________________________________________________  
 



 

P - 3 

 

Proposal continued… 
 
 

Firm or Partnership Address:________________________________________________  
 
By (Signature):__________________________ Date:_____________________________  
 
Name and Address of Each Member:__________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
 
 
If by an Individual: 
 
 
Signature:_______________________________ Date:_____________________________      
 



 

BS-1 

 

 

BIDDING SCHEDULE 
 

GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
GILA COUNTY, ARIZONA 

 
 
We agree to provide all work and material necessary to complete the project as shown on the 
plans and specifications for the following Contract Price: 
   
 
Firm Name:   _____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE, for the sum of $ _____________________________________ 
 
 
WRITTEN TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE 
 
_______________________________________________________________________Dollars  
 
and __________________________ Cents. 
 
 
This Contract Price is based upon the Bidder’s quantities and unit prices tabulated on Pages BS-
2 of the Proposal. The Bidder agrees that the Contract Price will be payment in full for all work 
shown on the plans and described in the Contract Documents. 
 
Any authorized increases or decreases to the work shall be authorized by Change Order. The 
Contract Price shall be increased or decreased by the amount of work or material increased or 
decreased at the following Bid Unit Prices. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

BS-2 

 

BIDDING SCHEDULE 
 
 

Firm Name:   _____________________________________________________________ 
 
COST SUMMARY BREAK DOWN 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 
AMOUNT 

201.1 
Clearing and Grubbing, excluding trees 
and bushes 

L.S. 1   

201.2 Removal of existing trees and bushes L.S. 1   

202.1 
Remove Misc. Structures and 
Obstructions 

L.S. 1   

203 Earthwork L.S. 1   

301 Subgrade Preparation S.Y. 1,460   

310 
Aggregate Base Course - (6", ADOT 
Class II) 

C.Y. 175   

321 
Asphaltic Concrete - MAG 19mm (3/4") 
Mix 

Ton 181   

340.1 
Concrete Curb, MAG Dtl. 222, Type B, 
H=6" 

L.F. 202   

340.2 
Concrete Curb, MAG Dtl. 220, Type A, 
H=6" 

L.F. 233   

340.3 Concrete Sidewalk S.F. 1,614   

340.4 Concrete Ramp S.F. 930   

340.5 Concrete Stairs S.F. 380   

511 Keystone Wall, Compact II Block S.F. 630   

512 Masonry Wall S.F. 52   

520.1 ADA Handrail L.F. 249   

520.2 Stairway Handrail L.F. 76   

 



 

BS-3 

 

COST SUMMARY BREAK DOWN continued 
 

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT 
ESTIMATED 
QUANTITIES 

UNIT PRICE 
EXTENDED 
AMOUNT 

607.1 New Sign Panel, R7-8, 12"x18" EA. 2   

607.2 
New Sign Panel, R7-8P, VAN 
ACCESSIBLE, 18"x9" 

EA. 3   

607.3 New U-Channel Post EA. 1   

708.1 
Permanent Pavement Marking 
(Painted)(White)(4" Equiv) 

L.F. 490   

708.2 
Permanent Pavement Marking 
(Painted)(Red) 

L.F. 233   

708.3 
Permanent Pavement Marking (ADA 
Sym)(Painted)(White) 

L.S. 1   

708.4 
Incidental Signing and Pavement 
Markings (TBD by Owner) 

L.S. 1 $2,000 $2,000 

708.5 Concrete Parking Block EA. 10   

708.9 Maintenance and Protection of Traffic L.S. 1   

901 Mobilization L.S. 1   

925 
Construction Survey and Layout and As-
builts 

L.S. 1   

   TOTAL BASE BID  



 

BB - 1 

 

 

 GILA COUNTY 

 

 SURETY (BID) BOND 
 (Penalty of this bond must not be less than 10% of the bid amount) 

 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that we, the undersigned  , 

 

as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and     _____________________________________________, 

            

a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of  , 

 

as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in this State 

issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County as Obligee, 

hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of ten percent (10%) of the amount bid, submitted by Principal to Gila 

County for the work described below, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal 

and the said Surety bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jointly and 

severally, firmly by these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal is herewith submitting its proposal for: 

 

 BID NO. 040108-1, GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE 

 

NOW THEREFORE, if the Obligee, acting by and through its Public Works Director, accepts the proposal of the 

Principal and the Principal shall enter into contract with the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such proposal, 

and give such bonds and certificates of insurance as may be specified in the contract documents with good and 

sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such contract and for the prompt payment of labor and material 

furnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter into such contract and give 

such bonds and certificates of insurance, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the 

penalty of the bond between the amount specified in the proposal and such larger amount for which the Obligee may 

in good faith contract with another party to perform the work covered by the proposal then this obligation is void.  

Otherwise, it remains in full force and effect provided, however, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions 

of ARS '34-201, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of the section 

to the extent as if it were copied at length herein. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, we hereunto set our hands and seals: 

 

 

 

Principal Surety 
 

 

By By Attorney-in-Fact 

 

 

Title Address, Attorney-in-Fact 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this ____ day of __________, 20____ 

 

My commission expires: __________ 

 

 

Notary Public 

 



 

QC - 1 

 

GILA COUNTY 

QUALIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION FORMS 
 
 
Purpose 
 
This exhibit shall serve as a requirement to enable the evaluation team to assess the 
qualifications of Contractors under consideration for final award. 
 
The information may or may not be a determining factor in award. 
 
 
Contract Number 040108-1 GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 
The applicant submitting this Bid warrants the following: 
 
1. Name, Address, and Telephone Number of Principal Contractor: 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 

 _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
2. Had Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever failed to complete a 

contract? 
________Yes    ________No.   If “Yes, give details, including the date, the contracting 
agency, and the reasons Contractor failed to perform in the narrative part of this 
Contract. 

 
3. Has Contractor (under its present or any previous name) ever been disbarred or 

prohibited from competing for a contract?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give 
details, including the date, the contracting agency, the reasons for the Contractors 
disqualification, and whether this disqualification remains in effect in the narrative part of 
this Contract. 

 
4. Has a contracting agency ever terminated a contract for cause with Contractor (under 

your firm’s present or any previous name)?  ________Yes   ________No.   If “Yes”, give 
details including the date, the contracting agency, and the reasons Contractor was 
terminated in the narrative part of this Contract.  

 
5. Contractor must also provide at least the following information:   

a. A brief history of the Contractors Firm. 
b. A Cost Proposal shall be submitted on the Price Sheet, attached hereon and made 

a full part of this contract by this reference. 
c. A list of previous and current customers, which are considered identical or similar 

to the Scope of Work described herein; shall be submitted on the Reference List, 
attached hereon and made a full part of this contract by this reference. 



 

QC - 2 

 

d. List of any subcontractors (if applicable) to be used in performing the service must 

accompany the Proposal.  The subcontractors Arizona ROC, contact name and phone # 

must be included. 

e. List the specific qualifications the Contractor has in supplying the specified 
services. 

f. Gila County reserves the right to request additional information. 
 
6.  Contractor Experience Modifier (e-mod) Rating in Arizona: ________________________ 

A method the National Council on Compensation Insurance (NCCI) uses to measure a 
business’ computed loss ratio and determine a factor, which when multiplied by 
premium, can reward policyholders with lower losses.  E-mod rate may be a determining 
factor in bid award. 
 

7. Current Arizona Contractor License Number:  __________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
      Signature of Authorized Representative 
 
 
      _______________________________________________ 
      Printed Name 
 
 

     _______________________________________________ 
      Title 
 



 

RL - 1 

GILA COUNTY 

REFERENCE LIST 
 
These references are required to enable the evaluation team to assess the qualifications of the Contractor 
under consideration for final award.  The information may be a determining factor in award. 
 
References 
Please list a minimum of four (4) references for projects of similar size and scope as this Invitation for Bids 
during the past twelve (12) months, in or as close to Gila County as possible. 

 

 
1. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ___________________________________________________ 

Phone: ___________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 

2. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ___________________________________________________ 

Phone: ___________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 

3. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ___________________________________________________ 

Phone: ___________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________ 
 

4. Company: ________________________________________________ 

Contact: ___________________________________________________ 

Phone: ___________________________________________________ 

Address: ___________________________________________________ 

 
 

________________________________________ 
           Name of Business 
 

________________________________________ 
           Signature of Authorized Representative 
 

________________________________________ 
           Title 



 

ANC - 1 

AFFIDAVIT BY CONTRACTOR 
CERTIFYING THAT THERE WAS NO COLLUSION 

IN BIDDING FOR CONTRACT 
 
STATE OF ARIZONA  ) 

)ss 
COUNTY OF:   ) 
 
____________________________________________________________________________________                                          
(Name of Individual) 
being first duly sworn, deposes and says: 
 
That he is ____________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                  (Title)  
of_______________________________________________________________________________  and 
                                           (Name of Business) 
 
That he is properly prequalified by Gila County for bidding on BID NO. 040108-1 GILA COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE and, 
 

That pursuant to Section 112 (C) of Title 23 USC, he certifies as follows: 
 

That neither he nor anyone associated with the said ___________________________________  
 
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
                                                 (Name of Business) 
 
has, directly or indirectly entered into any agreement, participated in any collusion or otherwise taken any 
action in restraint of free competitive bidding in connection with the above mentioned project. 
 
 
 
       ____________________________________________ 

Name of Business 
 

____________________________________________  
By 

 
____________________________________________ 
Title 

 
 
 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ___________ day of ________________________, 20_______. 
 
______________________________________               My Commission expires: 
Notary Public 

      



 

SC - 1 

GILA COUNTY 
CERTIFICATION:  INTENTIONS CONCERNING SUBCONTRACTING 

 
 
At the time of the submission of Request for Proposals No. 040108-1 GILA COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, my intention concerning subcontracting a 
portion of the work is as indicated below.   
 
In indicating that it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work, this will acknowledge 
that such subcontractors will be identified and approved by the County prior to award of 
contract; and that documentation, such as copies of letters, requests for quotations, etc., 
substantiating the actions taken and the responses to such actions is on file and available for 
review. 
 

 

 

 Yes     it is my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 

 No       it is not my intention to subcontract a portion of the work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

_________________________________________ 

       Name of Business 

 

_________________________________________ 

       Signature of Authorized Representative 

 

_________________________________________ 

       Title 

 

 



 

CK - 1 

BIDDERS CHECKLIST 
 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that all Bid Documents shall be completed and/or executed and 
submitted with this bid. If bidder fails to complete and/or execute any portion of the Bid 
Documents, this bid will be determined to be "non-responsive" and rejected. 
 
    CHECKLIST: 
 

REQUIRED DOCUMENT COMPLETED/EXECUTED 

   Proposal ____________ 

   Bidding Schedule ____________ 

   Surety (Bid) Bond ____________  

   Qualification & Certification Form ____________ 

   Reference List ____________ 

   Affidavit of Non-Collusion ____________ 

   Subcontractor Certification ____________ 

   Contract ____________ 

   Bidders Checklist & Addenda Acknowledgment ____________   

      

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
    ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF RECEIPT OF ADDENDA: 
 

              #1    #2    #3    #4    #5  
          Initials/ 
                  Date                          
 
 
          Signed and dated this ____________ day of____________________, 2010. 
 

                                       
___________________________________________ 

                                       CONTRACTOR: 
                                       
___________________________________________ 

                                       BY: 
 
Each proposal shall be sealed in an envelope addressed to Gila County Engineering Services and bearing 
the following statement on the outside of the envelope: Proposal to Construct: GILA COUNTY 
COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, Gila County Arizona, Bid No. 040108-1. All 
proposals shall be filed at Gila County Engineering Services, Guerrero Complex, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, 
AZ 85501, on or before 11:00 A.M. Arizona time, Monday, December 6th, 2010. 

 



 

C - 1 

GILA COUNTY 
CONTRACT NO. 040108-1 

 
 

THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into this _______ day of _________________, 
2010, by and between Gila County, a political subdivision of the State of Arizona, party of the first 
part, hereinafter designated the OWNER, and ______________________ of the City of 
________________, County of _________________, State of Arizona, party of the second part, 
hereinafter designated the CONTRACTOR.   
 
 

WITNESSETH:  That the said Contractor, for and in consideration of the sum to be paid 
him by the said Owner, in the manner and at the time hereinafter provided, and of the other 
covenants and agreements herein contained, and under the penalties expressed in the bond 
hereto attached, hereby agrees, for himself, his heirs, administrators, successors, and assigns as 
follows: 
 
 

ARTICLE I - SCOPE OF WORK:  The Contractor shall furnish any and all plant materials, 
labor, construction equipment, and services, required for performing all work for construction 
for Bid No. 040108-1 GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, 
GLOBE in accordance with the plans and these specifications, and to completely and totally 
construct the same and install the material herein for the Owner, in a good and workmanlike and 
substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the Owner through its Engineers and under the 
direction and supervision of the Engineer, or his properly authorized agents and strictly pursuant 
to and in conformity with the Specifications prepared by the Engineers for the Owner, and with 
such modifications of the same and other documents that may be made by the Owner through 
the Engineer, or his properly authorized agents, as provided herein. Once the Bid has been 
awarded the bid number 032204-1 will become the Contract Number. 
 
 

ARTICLE II - CONTRACT DOCUMENTS: The attached “Call for Bids”, “Technical 
Specifications”, “General Provisions”, “Special Provisions”, “Proposal”, “Bidding Schedule”, “Bid 
Bond”, “Qualification & Certification Forms”, “Reference List”, “Affidavit of Non-Collusion”, 
“Subcontractor Certification”, “Employment Laws Acknowledgment”, “Checklist & Addenda 
Acknowledgment”, “Performance Bond”, “Labor and Materials Bond”, “Contract Performance 
Bond”, and Plans thereto, if any, are by this reference made a part of this Contract to the same 
extent as if set forth herein in full.  In the event of any conflict or any inconsistency in the 
documents, controlling weight shall be assigned in the following order: the Contract; the 
Technical Specifications; the Special Provisions; the General Provisions; all other documents.  
Contract is considered invalid unless signed by the Gila County Board of Supervisors. 

 
 
ARTICLE III – SAFETY AND LOSS CONTROL:  The Gila County Safety and Loss Control 

booklet must be read and signed by all working at the job site.   
 



 

C - 2 

During the pre-construction meeting a time will be set for the Gila County QA/QC Safety 
Compliance Officer for a safety meeting.  For every safety meeting the Contractor shall invite the 
QA/QC Safety Compliance Officer and shall give at least a twenty-four (24) hour notice. 
 
 

ARTICLE IV – INDEMNIFICATION CLAUSE:  The Contractor agrees to indemnify and save 
harmless the County of Gila, its officers, agents and employees, and any jurisdiction or agency 
issuing permits for any work included in the project, their officers, agents and employees, 
hereinafter referred to as indemnitee, from all suits and claims, including attorney's fees and cost 
of litigation, actions, loss, damage, expense, cost or claims of any character or any nature arising 
out of the work done in fulfillment of the terms of this Contract or on account of any act, claim or 
amount arising or recovered under workers' compensation law or arising out of the failure of the 
Contractor to conform to any statutes, ordinances, regulation, law or court decree.  It is agreed 
that the Contractor will be responsible for primary loss investigation, defense and judgment 
costs where this contract of indemnity applies.  In consideration of the award of this contract, 
the Contractor agrees to waive all rights of subrogation against the County, its officers, officials, 
agents and employees for losses arising from the work performed by the Contractor for the 
County. 

 
 
ARTICLE V – INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Contractor and subcontractors shall procure 

and maintain until all of their obligations have been discharged, including any warranty periods 
under this Contract are satisfied, insurance against claims for injury to persons or damage to 
property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work hereunder by 
the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees or subcontractors.   
 
The insurance requirements herein are minimum requirements for this Contract and in no way 
limit the indemnity covenants contained in this Contract. 
 
The County in no way warrants that the minimum limits contained herein are sufficient to 
protect the Contractor from liabilities that might arise out of the performance of the work under 
this Contract by the Contractor, his agents, representatives, employees, or subcontractors.  
Contractor is free to purchase such additional insurance as may be determined necessary. 

 
A. MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMITS OF INSURANCE - Contractor shall provide coverage with 

limits of liability not less than those stated below: 
 

 1. Commercial General Liability – Occurrence Form 
Policy shall include bodily injury, property damage, broad form contractual liability and 
XCU coverage. 

 General Aggregate $2,000,000 

 Products – Completed Operations Aggregate $1,000,000 

 Personal and Advertising Injury $1,000,000 

 Each Occurrence $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 
"The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to 



 

C - 3 

liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the 
Contractor". 

 
2. Automobile Liability 

  Bodily injury and property damage for any owned, hired, and non-owned vehicles used 
in the performance of this Contract. 

  Combined Single Limit (CSL) $1,000,000 

a. The policy shall be endorsed to include the following additional insured language: 
"The County of Gila shall be named as an additional insured with respect to 
liability arising out of the activities performed by, or on behalf of the Contractor, 
including automobiles owned, leased, hired or borrowed by the Contractor". 

 
3. Worker's Compensation and Employers' Liability 

 Workers' Compensation Statutory 
 Employers' Liability  

 Each Accident $100,000 
 Disease – Each Employee $100,000 
 Disease – Policy Limit $500,000 

a. Policy shall contain a waiver of subrogation against the County of Gila. 
 
B. ADDITIONAL INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The policies shall include, or be endorsed to 

include, the following provisions: 

1. On insurance policies where the County of Gila is named as an additional insured, the 
County of Gila shall be an additional insured to the full limits of liability purchased by 
the Contractor even if those limits of liability are in excess of those required by this 
Contract. 

2. The Contractor's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance and non-contributory 
with respect to all other available sources. 

3. Coverage provided by the Contractor shall not be limited to the liability assumed under 
the indemnification provisions of this Contract. 

 
C. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION:  Each insurance policy required by the insurance provisions of 

this Contract shall provide the required coverage and shall not be suspended, voided, 
canceled, reduced in coverage or endorsed to lower limits except after thirty (30) days prior 
written notice has been given to the County.  Such notice shall be sent directly to Birdie 
DeNiro, Risk Management, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501 and shall be sent by certified 
mail, return receipt requested. 

 
D. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS:  Insurance is to be placed with insurers duly licensed or 

approved unlicensed companies in the state of Arizona and with an “A.M. Best” rating of 
not less than B+ VI.  The County in no way warrants that the above-required minimum 
insurer rating is sufficient to protect the Contractor from potential insurer insolvency. 

 
E. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE:  Contractor shall furnish the County with certificates of 

insurance (ACORD form or equivalent approved by the County) as required by this Contract.  



 

C - 4 

The certificates for each insurance policy are to be signed by a person authorized by that 
insurer to bind coverage on its behalf. 

 
 All certificates and endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before 

work commences.  Each insurance policy required by this Contract must be in effect at or 
prior to commencement of work under this Contract and remain in effect for the duration 
of the project.  Failure to maintain the insurance policies as required by this Contract or to 
provide evidence of renewal is a material breach of contract. 

 
 All certificates required by this Contract shall be sent directly to Birdie DeNiro, Risk 

Management, 1400 E. Ash St., Globe, AZ 85501.  The County project/contract number and 
project description shall be noted on the certificate of insurance.  The County reserves the 
right to require complete, certified copies of all insurance policies required by this Contract 
at any time.  

 
F. SUBCONTRACTORS:  Contractors’ certificate(s) shall include all subcontractors as additional 

insureds under its policies or Contractor shall furnish to the County separate certificates 
and endorsements for each subcontractor.  All coverage’s for subcontractors shall be 
subject to the minimum requirements identified above. 

 
G. APPROVAL:  Any modification or variation from the insurance requirements in this Contract 

shall be made by the County Attorney, whose decision shall be final.  Such action will not 
require a formal Contract amendment, but may be made by administrative action. 

 
 
ARTICLE VI - TIME OF COMPLETION:  The Contractor further covenants and agrees, at his 

own proper cost and expense, to do all work and furnish all materials, labor, construction 
equipment, and services for performing all of the work for construction of said improvements 
and to completely construct the same and install the material therein, as called for by this 
agreement free and clear of all claims, liens, and charges whatsoever, in the manner and under 
the conditions specified within the time, or times, stated in the Proposal. 
 
Work on this project shall start within no later than ten (10) Days of the Notice To Proceed, and 
shall be completed within the following limits: 
 

SCHEDULE: 

For construction in the contract documents, the project shall be completed within Sixty (60) Days 
of the Notice To Proceed. 
 
It is expressly understood and agreed that in case of failure on the part of the Contractor, for any 
reason, except with the written consent of the Engineer, to complete the work to the satisfaction 
of the Engineer and within the aforesaid time limits, the Owner may deduct from any money 
due, or which may become due the Contractor, as liquidated damages, an amount as fixed by the 
following schedule: 
 



 

C - 5 

  WORK ITEM                DAILY CHARGE PER CALENDAR DAY 

All work not complete within the                            $350.00 
above specified time after start of 
work. 
 

If no money shall be due the Contractor, the Owner shall have a cause of action to recover 
against the Contractor in a court of competent jurisdiction, liquidated damages as fixed by the 
above schedule; said deduction to be made, or said sum to be recovered, not as a penalty, but as 
liquidated damages; provided, however, that upon receipt of written notice from the Contractor, 
of the existence of causes, as herein provided, over which said Contractor has no control and 
which must delay the completion of the said work or any delay occasioned by the Owner, the 
Engineer may extend the period hereinafter specified for the completion of said work in 
accordance with the specifications and in such case, the Contractor shall become liable for said 
liquidated damages for delays commencing from date said extension period shall expire.   
 
 

ARTICLE VII - CANCELLATION:  This agreement is subject to cancellation pursuant to 
A.R.S. §38-511 and GENERAL PROVISION 80-09 DEFAULT AND TERMINATION OF CONTRACT. 
 
 

ARTICLE VIII - PAYMENTS:  The Contractor shall make an estimate of the work performed 
during the preceding month and submit the same to the Engineer for checking.  On or before 
thirty (30) days after the certified and approved estimate of the work is received by the Owner, 
the Owner shall pay to the Contractor ninety percent (90%) of the value of said work in place, as 
approved by the Engineer.  The balance of ten percent (10%) of the estimate shall be retained by 
the Owner until the time of final payment and acceptance of said work, as per A.R.S. §34-
221(A)(2). 
 
 
 ARTICLE IX – LAWS AND ORDINANCES:  This agreement shall be enforced under the laws 
of the State of Arizona.  The Contractor shall maintain in current status all Federal, State, and 
Local licenses and permits required for the operation of the business conducted by the 
Contractor.   
 
The Contractor shall comply with the applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act 
(Public Law 101-336, 42 U.S.C. 12101-12213) and applicable Federal regulations under the Act. 
 
 

ARTICLE X – LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE:  Contractor hereby warrants 
that it will at all times during the term of this Contract  comply with all federal immigration laws 
applicable to Contractor’s employment of its employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 
23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal Immigration Laws”).  Contractor shall further ensure 
that each subcontractor who performs any work for Contractor under this contract likewise 
complies with the State and Federal Immigration Laws. 
  



 

C - 6 

County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of Contractor and any 
subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal Immigration 
Laws.   
  
Any breach of Contractor’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State and 
Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to be a 
material breach of this Contract subjecting Contractor to penalties up to and including 
suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, Contractor shall be required to take such 
steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided 
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor, (subject to County approval if 
MWBE preferences apply) as soon as possible so as not to delay project completion.   
  
Contractor shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s 
obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in the 
following form: 
  
“Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this contract comply 
with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s employees, and with the 
requirements of A.R.S. §23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees that County may inspect the 
Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor is in compliance with these 
requirements.  Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor will be deemed to be a material 
breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties up to and including suspension or 
termination of this contract.”  
  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article shall 
be the responsibility of Contractor.  In the event that remedial action under this Article results in 
delay to one or more tasks on the critical path of Contractor’s approved construction or critical 
milestones schedule, such period of delay shall be deemed excusable delay for which Contractor 
shall be entitled to an extension of time, but not costs. 
 
 

ANTI-TERRORISM WARRANTY:  Pursuant to A.R.S. §35-397 the Supplier certifies that it 
does not have scrutinized business operations in Iran or Sudan and that they are in compliance 
with the Export Administration Act and not on the Excluded Parties List. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

C - 7 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, three (3) identical counterparts of this contract, each of which 
shall for all purposes be deemed an original thereof, have been duly executed by the parties 
hereinabove named, on the date and year first above written.  
 
In return for the performance of this Contract by the Contractor, the Owner agrees to pay the 
amount of _$______________________ INCLUDING ALL APPLICABLE TAXES through a payment 
schedule as described in the Contract documents and as may be modified and executed by 
change orders and by final quantities. 

The Contractor agrees that this contract, as awarded, is for the following work, and understands 
that payment for the total work will be made on the basis of the indicated amount(s), as bid in 
the Proposal and attached Bidding Schedule for:  
 
 
 GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 BID NO. 040108-1 
 
OWNER:  CONTRACTOR: 
 
GILA COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 
 
__________________________________________           _______________________________________ 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman, Board of Supervisors            Contractor Signature 
 
     _______________________________________ 
        Print Name 

                                 
ATTEST:                                                                                           ______________________________________ 
                                                                               Witness (If Contractor is Individual) 
 
_____________________________________ 
Marian Sheppard, Chief Deputy Clerk of the Board  
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Bryan B. Chambers, Chief Deputy County Attorney 
for Daisy Flores, County Attorney 

 



 

 
 

CPB - 1 

 

 

STATUTORY PERFORMANCE BOND 

PURSUANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 

 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

That, ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

  

and ______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of ___________________________ 

holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the Director of the Department of Insurance, as 

Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the Obligee) in the amount of (100% OF CONTRACT 

AMOUNT)____________________________________________ dollars ($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said 

Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by 

these presents. 

 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: GILA COUNTY 

COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE, which contract is hereby referred to and made a part 

hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal shall faithfully 

perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract during the original term of said 

contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the life of any guaranty required under the 

contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly 

authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby 

waived; then the above obligation shall be void, otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, Article 2, of the 

Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the provisions of said Title, Chapter 

and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' fees as may be 

fixed by a judge of the court. 

 

Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______. 
 

______________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

______________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

______________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

______________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

______________________________________________________________ 

Address 

_________________________________ 

Phone Number 
 

 

 

 

___________________________________ 

By: 

___________________________________ 

By: 

___________________________________ 

Agency Address 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 
LMB - 1 

 

 

 

STATUTORY LABOR AND MATERIALS BOND 

PURSANT TO TITLE 34, CHAPTER 2, ARTICLE 2 OF 

THE ARIZONA REVISED STATUTES 
(PENALTY OF THIS BOND MUST BE 100% OF CONTRACT AMOUNT) 

 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
 

That, 

___________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

______________________________________________________,  (hereinafter called the Principal), as Principal,  

 and 

______________________________________________________________________________________________ 

(hereinafter called Surety), a corporation duly organized and existing the laws of the State of  

 

_____________________________________________ with its principal office in the city of 

___________________________ holding a certificate of authority to transact surety business in Arizona issued by the 

Director of the Department of Insurance, as Surety, are held and firmly bound unto Gila County (hereinafter called the 

Obligee) in the amount of (100% of Contract Amount)______________________________________ dollars 

($_________________), for the payment whereof, the said Principal and Surety bind themselves, and their heirs, 

administrator, executors, successors, and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents. 

WHEREAS, the Principal has agreed to enter into a certain contract with the Obligee for: GILA COUNTY 

COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE, which contract is hereby referred to and 

made a part hereof as fully and to the same extent as if copied at length herein. 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION IS SUCH, that if the said Principal 

shall faithfully perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, terms, conditions and agreements of said contract 

during the original term of said contract and any extension thereof, with or without notice to the Surety, and during the 

life of any guaranty required under the contract, and shall also perform and fulfill all the undertakings, covenants, 

terms, conditions, and agreements of any and all duly authorized modifications of said contract that may hereafter be 

made, notice of which modifications to the Surety being hereby waived; then the above obligation shall be void, 

otherwise to remain in full force and effect; 

PROVIDED, HOWEVER, that this bond is executed pursuant to the provisions of Title 34, Chapter 2, 

Article 2, of the Arizona Revised Statutes, and all liabilities on this bond shall be determined in accordance with the 

provisions of said Title, Chapter and Article, so the extent as if they were copied at length herein. 

The prevailing party in a suit on this bond shall recover as a part of the judgment such reasonable attorneys' 

fees as may be fixed by a judge of the court. 

 

Witness our hands this __________ day of _____________, 20 ______ 
 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Principal                                    Seal   

_____________________________________________________________ 

Surety                                       Seal 

______________________________________________________________ 

Agency of Record 

______________________________________________________________ 

Arizona Countersignature 

__________________________

By: 

__________________________ 

By: 

__________________________

Agency Address 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Address 

 

_____________________________________________________________ 

Phone Number 



 

 

CPW - 1 
 

GILA COUNTY 
 CONTRACT PERFORMANCE WARRANTY 
 
 
 
 
I, _______________________________________________________, representing 
 
_____________________________________________________ (company name) 
 
do hereby warranty the work performed for the:  
 
 
 
GILA COUNTY COURTHOUSE ADA/ACCESS IMPROVEMENT PROJECT, GLOBE,  
 
for a period of two (2) years from completion of said work.   
 
Said work shall be free from defects which would cause the work not to perform in 
it's intended manner. 
 
 
 
 
 
___________________________________________________________________ 
(Officer, Partner, Owner)                          Date 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

       



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SECTION VI 
 

NOTED STANDARD DETAIL DRAWINGS 
 

 

 

 

 

 





    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: On Time Project 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to advertise Bid Call 092210-1 - Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project, Globe, Arizona

Background Information

The auditorium remodeled office space would allow for the relocation of the Elections and Public

Fiduciary Departments.  

In order to comply with Federal/State laws concerning viewing and streaming during elections, and to

facilitate storage of election material and training needs of the department a new Elections facility is

needed.  This facility would also provide for a more logical flow of work area and a much more secure

ballot area.

The Public Fiduciary's Office is currenty leasing office space.  Relcoating that office to the remodeled

auditorium office in a currently owned County facility would be cost effective for the County.

 

Evaluation

Over a period of time the new office space for Elections and Public Fiduciary will save the

County money and will meet elections laws.

Conclusion

To relocate the Elections and Public Fiduciary Deparments to the new location would not only meet

current Federal/State laws concerning elections but would also be cost beneficial in saving the County

over $42,000 per year in lease payments.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board of Supervisors approve the advertisement of Bid Call

092210-1 to be published in the newspaper on November 17 and 24, 2010.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to authorize the advertisement of Request for Sealed Bids No. 092210-1

for the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project, Globe, Arizona.

(Steve Stratton)



Attachments

Link: Request to Advertise

Link: Bid 092210-1



GILA COUNTY DEPARTMENTAL REQUEST TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS 
SEE GC2-7-111 (ART.1) FOR INSTRUCTIONS TO PREPARE THIS FORM 

All departments procuring purchases in excess of $50,000.00 that requires advertising for bids must follow the Purchasing Procedure and 
must complete item “I” of this form prior to such a purchase.  The requesting Department is responsible for writing the necessary 
specifications and routing them, including this form, accompanied by a completed Purchase Requisition to the Public Works 
(Guerrero Complex) Department.  THIS FORM MUST BE COMPLETE, ACCURATE, AND HAVE A COPY OF THE SPECIFICATIONS ATTACHED BEFORE 
ROUTING BEGINS.  ALL CALLS FOR BID/PROPOSALS AND SPECIFICATIONS WILL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE AZ. REVISED STATUTES AND THE GILA 
COUNTY PURCHASING CODE AND PROCEDURES. 
 

I.  IS THIS A CALL FOR  BID:  ___092210  __           PROPOSAL:  ___01___           DEPARTMENT NAME:  ______Public  Works Division    ____      

FUNDING SOURCE:  FUND NO.:  _1114_  DEPT NO.: _341_  PROGRAM NO.: _970_  LOCATION NO.: _000_   ACCOUNT NO.: _4500.19_   PJCT: ____  
 
I.  DESCRIPTION:  List item(s) to be purchased, Purpose, Spec. Summary, Estimated Cost and Funding Source.  It is the intent of this solicitation to 
establish a Contract with a qualified Contractor to complete the construction of office space of the Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project in 
Globe, Arizona. 
 
 
Signed:  _____________________________________   Date:  _____________   Signature indicates material specifications are approved as written. 
              Elected Officials or Department Head 
 

 

II.  DEPARTMENTAL INFORMATION ONLY   BID NO.: ___________092210-1_______________ 
 

Action Dates: 

Department Receipt:  ______/______/______   Placed on Agenda:  ______/______/______ 

Presented to Board:    ______/______/______   Approved to Call:    ______/______/______ 

Delivered to Paper:    ______/______/______   Paper Name:     Arizona Silver Belt           .  

Advertised Dates:      From:  __11__/__17__/__10___   To:  _11___/__24__/__10__ 

Closing Date:             __12__/__06__/__10__   Bid Award Date:     ______/______/______ 

Awarded to:  __________________________________  P.O. No.:  ___________________________ 

Proposed Delivery Date:  ______/______/______ 
 

 

III.  OTHER APPROVAL   (only as necessary) 
 

Public Works:                     Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______                                

Community Action:           Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______                 

MIS Department:            Dept. Head Sign:  ______________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
               

 

IV.  APPROVED FUNDING 
 

Finance Director Signature:  ___________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 

 

V.  LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE APPROVAL        (Specifications must be completed and attached) 
  

Signed:  ____________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 Bryan B. Chambers,  Chief Deputy County Attorney (Approved as to form)  for Daisy Flores County Attorney 

 
Signed:  _____________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
 Don E. McDaniel Jr., County Manager   (Approved as to specifications and information) 
 

 

VI.  AWARD APPROVAL 
 

Signed:  _________________________________________________________________________ Date:  ______/______/______ 
(Declaration that the Board of Supervisors approved the award as stated in Section V. of this page) 
Michael A. Pastor, Chairman of the Board of Supervisors, Gila County 

 
Form No. F011696. Rev. a; add section VI., Rev. b; add Proposal 5-20-98, Rev. c; chg. Bid amt., Rev. d chg. Top instructions 5-7-02, Rev. e. chg. Bid amt. to $50,000,  
and Add sig. indicates Spec approval., Rev. department separation of duties 2-12-07 





























































































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Robert Hickman,

Facilities Manager

Submitted By: Valrie Bejarano, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division Division: Facilities

Fiscal Year: FY 2010-2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: Nov. 16, 2010 to Nov. 16, 2011 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name: John Nelson 

Information

Request/Subject

Request to award a contract pertaining to Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 for County janitorial services in

Globe, AZ

Background Information

Facilities & Land Management Department requested sealed bids for janitorial services for some of the

County buildings in the Globe area. Currently the majority of the custodial duties in Globe are hired out

to a local company at an average of $10,905 a month for 3 buildings; Courthouse, Guerrero and

Michaelson. The County employs 2 full-time and 1 part-time custodians for day service at the

Courthouse and the Health and Community Services buildings. These buildings total 90,377 square feet.

It was time to rebid the custodial contract for the Globe area and we did so with the prospect of adding

more buildings to service. We bid at a square foot price for all of the Courthouse, Guerrero, Michaelson,

Health and Community Services, WIC. The new Administration Building, Facilities & Sign Shop

offices, and Roads & Auto Equipment Shop offices will be added after they are occupied and an

agreement can be reached on price. An approximate square footage after adding the other 3 buildings is

106,377 square feet.

Our plan is to retain the current County employed custodial staff to be available during the daytime at the

Courthouse and the Health and Community Services buildings. The custodial company will clean after

business hours. 

At this time we are paying another custodial company $1,000/month for cleaning the Payson

Administration Building and have 2 part time County employees and 2 of the Facilities Maintenance

staff cleaning the Payson Courthouse, Health Dept, Assessor/Recorder Bldg. and the small courtroom at

the Payson Jail. We may look at bidding these buildings for custodial services later. 

Evaluation

The 2 bids we received vary greatly in price per building. The amount for carpet cleaning and floor

stripping and waxing are close. An interview with the #1 ranked company was positive and very

informative. They also understand why the County prefers to use “green” chemicals. The phone calls we

made to their references didn’t reveal any negative or suspicious information. The Facilities Manager,

Administrative Assistant and the Fiscal Services Manager met with the Owner/General Manager and

Administrative Manager of that company and our questions and concerns were answered satisfactorily.

Conclusion

We believe a positive effect will come about with the Board’s decision.



Recommendation

The Public Works Facilites and Land Managment Department recommends the Board approve the award

of Request for Seaeld Bids No. 060110-1 to the number 1 ranked company.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to review all bids submitted for Request for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 to

provide janitorial services at the Globe County facilities; award to the lowest, responsible, and qualified

bidder; and authorize the Chairman's signature on the Award Contract for the winning bidder.  (John

Nelson)

Attachments

Link: Bid 060110-1

Link: Bid Tab Sheet























































































       GILA COUNTY                       BID NO.:       060110-1           DATE:    9-8-2010     
      BID TAB FORM    

                             BID TITLE:         Janitorial Service, Globe     

R
an

k
in

g 

 
 

Contractor  /  Vendor  /  Firm 

 
 

Bid Amount 

 
 

Comments 

 
2 

                                                       

G.R.’s Buff & Shine                                  

 

 

$ 5,200.00 

$ 500.00 

 
Courthouse 
Guerrero Bldg 

 
 

 

 

 

 

$ 1,500.00 

$ 3,375.00 

 
Michaelson Bldg 
Central Heights Complex 

 
 

 

 

 

Total = $ 10,575.00  
Carpet      .12 
Waxing    .25 

 
1 

 

IWC Supplies & Maintenance (IWC LLC) 

 

 

$ 2,500.00 

$ 700.00 

 
Courthouse 
Guerrero Bldg 

 
 

 

 

 

 

$ 800.00 

$ 1,900.00 

 
Michaelson Bldg 
Central Heights Complex 

 
 

 

 

 

Total = $5,900.00  
Carpet      .16 
Waxing     .25 

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

  

 



    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- M     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Daisy Flores,

County Attorney

Submitted By: Debra Holmes, County Attorney

Department: County Attorney

Fiscal Year: FFY 2011-2015  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: October 1, 2010-September 20,2015 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: Yes  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

IGA with the Arizona Department of Economic Security for Title IV-D child support services in Gila

County. 

Background Information

Since 1992, Gila County has contracted with the Arizona Department of Economic Security to provide

Title IV-D child support services in Gila County through the Office of the Gila County Attorney. In state

fiscal year 2010 (July, 2009-June, 2010), the office collected $5,560,607 in child support. The title IV-D

child support program is a federal program that reimburses states for providing child support services. In

Arizona, the Arizona Department of Economic Security contracts with Pinal, Navajo, La Paz and Gila

counties to provide these services within each of those counties. Program costs are reimbursed by federal

funds on the basis of sixty-six cents for each dollar spent on the program. Additionally, because the

program also helps reimburse the federal government for monies expended for welfare for needy

families (TANF), the program receives a share of the money it saves in federal welfare (SSRE). Finally,

the program receives federal incentive payments based upon paternity establishment, support order

establishment, collection of current support, arrears collection, and cost effectiveness. Through

reimbursement, SSRE, federal incentives, and indirect costs, Gila County receives in federal funds

approximately what the program costs.

In federal fiscal year 2009, the Gila County program’s combined federal incentive measures were higher

than any state combined incentive measure. 

Evaluation

Approving this IGA will allow the Child Support Division of the Gila County Attorney’s Office to

continue providing child support services to Gila County residents. Not approving this IGA would

transfer responsibility for providing these services to the state. This would likely result in Gila County

residents not having a local child support office. Also, given that the state’s scores on incentive measures

are significantly lower than Gila County’s incentive scores, not approving this IGA would likely result in

decreased child support enforcement in Gila County.

Conclusion

Approving the IGA will allow the Gila County Attorney to continue to provide superior child support

enforcement services to the people of Gila County.

Recommendation



The Gila County Attorney recommends that the Board of Supervisors approve the IGA with Arizona

Department of Economic Security for the provision of Title IV-D services in Gila County.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No.

DE111165001) with the Arizona Department of Economic Security to provide Title IV-D child support

services in Gila County for federal fiscal years 2011-2015.

(Bryan Chambers)

Attachments

Link: Title IV-D 























































    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- N     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name: Marian Sheppard 

Information

Request/Subject

A sealed bid submitted for the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number 206-09-123

Background Information

On July 8, 2003, the Board of Supervisors adopted Resolution No. 03-06-07, which established a policy regarding

sales of real property tax deeded to the State of Arizona.  Any parcels of land not sold at the Supervisors' annual

tax sale for the year in which the property was deeded to the State of Arizona is added to the County's "Back Tax

Land List."  This list of available properties is advertised on the County's website for purchase through

the County's sealed bid process.  Anyone may submit a sealed bid to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Department.  The parcel information will be reviewed by the Chief Deputy Clerk, Assessor and Treasurer and

ultimately placed on a Board of Supervisors' meeting agenda at which time the sealed bid envelope will be opened

during a public meeting.  The Board will then accept or deny the bid.  If the bid is accepted, the successful bidder

must submit payment to the Clerk of the Board of Supervisors Department within 48 hours of being notified of the

winning bid.  A quit claim deed will then be issued to the successful bidder transferring ownership of the property.  

Evaluation

It is in the County's best interest to make every attempt to sell these parcels of land which have been deeded to the

State of Arizona in order to get the parcels back on the County tax rolls and to relieve the County of the

administrative oversight for each parcel of land. 

The total lien amount owed on this particular parcel of land located in Claypool is $314.95 and it appears to be

located on an unusable vacant hillside.

Conclusion

It is in the County's best interest for the Board of Supervisors to review this sealed bid for the purchase of

Assessor's tax parcel number 206-09-123.

Recommendation

The County Treasurer and Assessor have no objection to selling this parcel of land; therefore, it is recommended

that the Board of Supervisors consider the offer for the purchase of this property.  

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to consider a sealed bid for the purchase of Assessor's tax parcel number

206-09-123.  (Marian Sheppard)

Attachments

Link: Tax Parcel 206-09-123 Sealed Bid Information











    Regular Agenda Item   Item #:  4- O     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Barbara Valencia, WIB Program

Manager

Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Presenter's Name: Barbara Valencia 

Information

Request/Subject

Approval of the Gila County members serving on the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board to be submitted for

recertification to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy.

Background Information

Under the Workforce Investment Act of 1998 (Section 117) it is a requirement that Local Workforce Investment Boards

(LWIBs) be recertified every two years by the Governor of each state in accordance with criteria established in the Act and

with state policy.

Evaluation

The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board approves membership and recertification and then membership is forwarded to

the chief elected officials within their respective jurisdictions for approval.

Conclusion

The Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board approved membership and recertification at its October 1, 2010, meeting.

Recertification of the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board is then forwarded to the Gila County Board of Supervisors for

approval and then forwarded to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy for final approval.

Membership list is attached.

Recommendation

Recommendation to approve Gila County members on the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board to be submitted for

recertification to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy for final approval.

Suggested Motion

Information/Discussion/Action to approve Gila County members serving on the Gila/Pinal Workforce Investment Board to be

submitted for recertification to the Governor's Council on Workforce Policy.  (Barbara Valencia)

Attachments

Link: Gila/Pinal WIB Membership Appointments for Gila County





    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- A     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Steve Stratton, Public Works Division Director

Submitted By: Diana Jones, Public Works Division

Department: Public Works Division

Presenter's Name: Steve Stratton 

Information

Request/Subject

Resource Advisory Committee (RAC) Grant Agreement Award from the United States Department of

Agriculture (USDA) Forest Service.  Made under the authority of Title II of the Secure Rural Schools

and Community Self-determination Act of 2000.

Background Information

The Board approved the submission of a grant application on March 23, 2010.  Gila County was

awarded a grant from the United States  Department of Agriculture, Forest Service in the amount of

$631,118 of which $30,053 or 5% is for Forest Service administration and the remaining $601,065 is for

maintenance/paving of Forest Development Road 512.  This is a reimbursable grant with no County

match required.  At the October 5, 2010, Board of Supervisors' meeting, the Board approved the

submission of additional forms required by the USDA Forest Service for this grant application.

Evaluation

The award agreement includes all the necessary information for Gila County to be able to recieve

reimbursement of funds for the Forest Development Road (FDR) 512 maintenance/paving.  The funds in

the amount of $601,065. are currently available for performance of this instrument throught December

30, 2010.  There is no County cash-match requirement in order to required under this agreement.

Conclusion

The USDA Forest Service requires signatures on this agreement for the completion of the grant award. 

The County will also use funds awarded from Public Lands Highways Discretionary (PLHD) to provide

sufficent funds to complete this project.  

This award agreement is executed as of the date of the last signature and is effective through December

30, 2010, at which time it will expire, unless extended by an executed modification, signed and dated by

all properly authorized, signatory officials.

Recommendation

The Public Works Division recommends the Board sign the award agreement in the amount of

$601,065.00.

Suggested Motion

Authorization of the Chairman's signature on Federal Financial Assistance Award of Domestic Grant

11-DG-11030121-005 between Gila County Public Works Division and the USDA, Forest Service,

Apache-Sitgreaves National Forest in the amount of $601,065 to pave the FDR 512, Young Road.

Attachments

Link: Agreement





































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- B     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Vicki DeAnda, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 10/1/2010 - 9/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-01 for FFY2010 Arizona Department of Homeland Security Grant

Program Award

Background Information

Gila County Emergency Management has stockpiled emergency equipment ready for use

during emergency incidents. Grant funding to support storage of these stockpiles was awarded by the

Arizona Department of Homeland Security in the amount of $14,000.00 for the purchase of 2

mobile storage units with supporting generators. 

Evaluation

By stockpiling emergency response supplies in communities vulnerable to isolation, Gila County

responders and registered volunteers will have the earliest possible access to items such as sandbags,

personal protective equipment, all weather gear, and emergency communications and sheltering supplies.

Providing generator power will allow for the units to be set up for resource management or emergency

assistance centers as determined by event circumstances.   

Conclusion

Mobile storage units allow flexibility of location and emergency resource management for field

responders and registered volunteers.

Recommendation

Emergency Management respectfully recommends the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the

FFY2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award - Agreement No. 777304-01. 

Suggested Motion

Approval of Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-01 between

the Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona Department of Homeland

Security in the amount of $14,000 to purchase 2 mobile storage units with supporting generators for the

period October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011.

Attachments

Link: Award Letter No. 777304-01

Link: Subgrantee Agreement No. 777304-01































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- C     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Vicki DeAnda, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2010-2011  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 10/1/2010 - 9/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: New

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-02 for FFY2010 Arizona Department of Homeland Security Grant

Program Award

Background Information

This year's Citizen Corp Program grant will be used to support training and exercises for the Northern

and Southern Gila County Community Emergency Response Teams (CERTs).

Evaluation

Both County CERT's are active in volunteer recruitment and training. One of the components of

completing training is to exercise skills learned. In order to support these activities Emergency

Management will use funds to assist the teams to develop and participate in 2 tabletop and 2 full scale

exercises utilizing CERT members, and to provide equipment for those exercises.

Conclusion

The goal of this grant is to assist CERT members to develop skills and knowledge that will promote

volunteerism and strengthen community relationships for future response to emergency events.

Recommendation

Emergency Management respectfully recommends the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve the

FFY2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award - No. 777304-02.

Suggested Motion

Approval of a Homeland Security Grant Program Award SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-02

between the Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona Department of

Homeland Security in the amount of $5,484 to provide training and exercises for the Gila County

Community Emergency Response Team members under the Citizen Corp Program for the period

October 1, 2010, through September 30, 2011. 

Attachments

Link: Award Letter 777304-02

Link: Subgrantee Agreement No. 777304-02





























    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- D     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Matthew Bolinger, Epidemiologist/Emergency Mgt & Health Preparedness Div Dir

Submitted By: Vicki DeAnda, Emergency Management

Department: Emergency Management Division: Emergency Services

Fiscal Year: 2009-2010  Budgeted?: No

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 10-1-09 to 12-31-10 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Replacement

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment #1 to SubGrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP-555300-01 for FFY09 Homeland

Security Grant Program Award.

Background Information

The Subgrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP-555300-01 (Gila County Citizen Corp

Council Community Preparedness) between the Arizona Department of Homeland Security and the Gila

County Division of Emergency Management was originally approved by the Gila County Board of

Supervisors on January 12, 2010.

Evaluation

This Homeland Security Grant Award supports Citizen Corp Programs in Gila County, specifically, the

Northern and Southern Gila County Community Emergency Response Teams.  The Northern Gila

County Community Emergeny Response Team is active in recruiting, training, support of community

events and emergency activities, such as completing training for a team in Pine-Strawberry, supporting

the Payson 4th of July Fireworks event and the recent Thunder Mountain Ride sponsored by the Town

of Payson. The Southern Gila County Community Response Team is actively recruiting and training

volunteers. Members are building community relationships by participating in community events such as

the Gila County Fair.

Conclusion

This amendment provides additional time to fully expend this grant award for the purpose of furthering

CERT (Community Emergency Response Team) volunteer recruitment, training and exercise activities.

Recommendation

The Division of Emergency Management recommends the Gila County Board of Supervisors approve

this Amendment No. 1 - to SubGrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP-555300-01 for FFY09

Homeland Security Grant Program Award.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 1 - Subgrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP- 555300-01 between the

Gila County Division of Emergency Management and the Arizona Department of Homeland Security for

FFY09 Homeland Security Grant Program Award for the period October 1, 2009 through December 31,

2010.



Attachments

Link: Amendment #1 to Subgrantee Agreement

Link: Original Subgrantee Agreement































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- E     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Malissa Buzan, Housing Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Chris Kell, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Community Services Department

Fiscal Year: 2010/2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 08-14-2009 to 06/30/2011 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name: Malissa Buzan 

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment No. 2 to Contract No. C051-09-02 with the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office

for weatherization services.

Background Information

The United States Department of Energy developed the Weatherization Assistance Program in 1976 as the federal

government's cost-effective, permanent solution for reducing the heavy burden of utitlies on low-income

Americans.

Evaluation

Low-income households in Gila County and throughout the nation spend a large percentage of their income on

home energy bills. The Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Department provides services through

its Weatherization Assistance Program to eligible clients.  This program not only saves energy through advanced

technologies, but also saves lives and improves the health and safety of families by identifying carbon monoxide

hazards, poor indoor air quality, mold and other health threats.

This amendment will increase the original contract by $27,039. The contract terms allows us to spend a maximum

of $6500 per unit weatherized. These additional funds will allow us to weatherize approximately 4 additional

dwellings.

Conclusion

Continuing to provide weatherization services is beneficial to the income-eligible citizens of Gila County.

Recommendation

The Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Department recommends the Board's approval of the

contract amendment.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment No. 2 to existing Contract No. C051-09-02 between the State of Arizona, Department of

Commerce Energy Office and the Gila County Community Action/Housing Services Department to provide

additional funding in the amount of $27,039 for the period of July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2011, to continue

providing weatherization services to income-eligible residents of Gila County.

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.C051-09-02 



































































































































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- F     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health Services Program Manager

Submitted By: Lorraine Dalrymple, Health & Community Services Division

Department: Health & Community Services Division

Division: Health Department

Fiscal Year: 2011-2012  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: January 1, 2011 - December 31, 2012 

Grant?: Yes

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Amendment #3 to IGA Contract No. HG854246 with the Arizona Department of Health Services

Background Information

This renews our IGA HG854246 Amendment No 2 which was signed by the Board of Supervisors on December 1, 2009 for

an additional year.  The total of the grant is for $30,000.

Evaluation

This program provides family planning/reproductive health services to low-income individuals.  With the departure of Planned

Parenthood in Gila County and the number of teen pregnancies, this program provides an important service to the residents.

Conclusion

Without this funding low-income families would need to travel to Phoenix to receive reproductive health/family planning

services.

Recommendation

The Office of Health recommends that Amendment #3 to IGA #HG854246 be approved to continue to provide these services. 

Suggested Motion

Approval of Amendment  No. 3 to an Intergovernmental Agreement (Contract No. HG854246) between the Gila County Office

of Health and the Arizona Department of Health Services in the amount of $30,000 to provide Reproductive Health/Family

Planning Services under Title V for the period of January 1, 2011, through December 31, 2012.

Attachments

Link: Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HG854246

Link: ADHS IGA HG854246













































    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- G     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Department: Clerk of the Superior Court

Fiscal Year: 2010/2011  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 7-1-10 through 6-30-13 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Agreement No. 634280 with Great America Leasing for a Konica-Minolta BizHub C522 & a 423 copier

to be used by the Clerk of the Superior Court Offices.

Background Information

The Clerk of the Superior Court's Office leases copiers for the Payson and Globe offices.

Evaluation

Due to the age of the copiers the Clerk of the Superior Court is trying to avoid downtime in the office by

upgrading to new copiers.

Conclusion

The Clerk of the Superior Court's office lease copiers for Payson and Globe offices.  Mr. Bryan

Chambers has approved Agreement # 634280 as to form subject to an Amendment, Governmental

Entities Addendum and letter of Tom J. Jaquiz of September 9, 2010 (see attachments).

Recommendation

The Clerk of the Superior Court is requesting that the Board of Supervisors approve Agreement #

634280 with Great America Leasing Corporation.

Suggested Motion

Approval of Agreement #634280 between Gila County and Great America Leasing Corporation to lease

a Konica Minolta Bizhub C552 copier system and a Bizhub 423 copier system for a period of 36 months

at a cost of $571.11 per month for use at the Globe and Payson Clerk of the Superior Court Offices. 

Attachments

Link: Agreement with Great American Leasing Corporation

Link: Letter from Tom Jaquis re Great America Leasing Corp. Agreement











    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- H     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Marilyn Brewer, Deputy Clerk,

BOS

Submitted By: Marilyn Brewer, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Fiscal Year: 2010-11  Budgeted?: Yes

Contract Dates - Begin & End: 09-15-10 through 09-14-11 

Grant?: No

Matching Requirement?: No  Fund?: Renewal

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Document Conversion Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.

Background Information

This is an ongoing renewal of a Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc. because Arizona Revised Statutes require that all

official minutes of the Board of Supervisors be scanned and microfilmed to rollfilm for archival purposes at an

off-County site.  A CD of the official minutes is also prepared and retained in the County vault for future reference. 

Evaluation

The archival of the Board of Supervisors' minutes is required by Arizona State statute and must be done.

Conclusion

In the past, both the minutes and the Board agenda packets were scanned and microfilmed to rollfilm for archival

purposes.  With the implementation of AgendaQuick, the Clerk of the Board's Department will now only be

microfilming the minutes because AgendaQuick has the ability to store the Board Agenda packets and I will be

able to archive them on a CD at a savings to the County. 

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Document Conversion Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc. be renewed for another

year. 

Suggested Motion

Approval of a Document Conversion Services Contract between the Gila County Board of Supervisors and

Lin-Cum, Inc. to meet Arizona Revised Statutes' requirement that all official minutes of the Board of Supervisors

be scanned and microfilmed to rollfilm for archival purposes at an off-County site for the period September 15,

2010, through September 14, 2011. 

Attachments

Link: Lin-Cum, Inc. Document Conversion Services Contract 11-16-10



Confidential 
LIN-CUM, INC. 
3020 W. Windsor 

Phoenix, AZ 85009 
(602)233-1230 
(800)224-1230 

Fax (602)233-1393 
e-mail clientservicing@lincum.com   

Hi-speed download: chuckc1@cox.net 
 
 

DOCUMENT CONVERSION SERVICES CONTRACT 
 

LIN-CUM, INC., an Arizona Corporation with Federal Tax I.D. #86-0458048 located at 3020 W. 
Windsor Ave. in Phoenix, Arizona, herein agrees to perform the document services described in the 
paragraphs below. 
 
This agreement is made between LIN-CUM, INC. (hereinafter referred to as LIN-CUM) and Gila 
County Board of Supervisors; 1400 E. Ash Street, Globe, Arizona 85501, (hereinafter referred to as 
"the County.")  The terms, conditions, and pricing stated herein may be applied to the same or 
similar projects.  However, any dissimilarities in document sizes or procedures to be employed may 
require additional evaluation and/or altered pricing for those projects.  
 
Terms and conditions of this agreement shall remain in effect for a period of twelve (12) months.  
The agreement may be extended for additional twelve (12) month periods, or until terminated by 
either party by written notice 30 days prior to such termination.   However, pricing is subject to 
change at the end of each twelve (12) month period.   
 
Charges shown shall remain in effect for a twelve (12) month period.  Unit pricing shown shall 
prevail, regardless of volumes serviced. 
 
I. APPLICATIONS:       EST. VOLUME 
 Based upon 2009 file conversions:       
 Agenda & Items & Board Minutes     
                           7,361 pgs;  95 indexes  
II. PROPOSED PROCEDURES: 

Film and process to archival microfilm, and scan to electronic format.   
Pick up and prepare records for filming and scanning; documents are usually pre-prepared; 
staples removed, etc.   Archival microfilm to rollfilm for archival purposes; digitize and 
index to CD-R, for administrative and research purposes, with one backup set for 
disaster planning. 
 
The records are microfilmed to rollfilm and archivally processed; boxed, titled and indexed.  
The images are then scanned to TIFF image format and QC verified.  The records will be 
indexed by Classification and Date or Number.  All images will be verified by the scanning 

mailto:clientservicing@lincum.com
mailto:chuckc1@cox.net


 2

technician as properly aligned, clearly readable, with no streaks or smudges.  For any 
document/page which is illegible or of such quality that correction requires replacement or 
alteration, to prevent alteration of the document, all attempts will be made to obtain a 
replacement copy of the page or document.  If a better copy is not available, the illegible or 
poor quality document/page will be identified with a stamp (“Poor Quality Original”), in the 
upper right corner of the page/image.”    
 
The files will then be compiled and burned to a “master” CD-R, for each year as requested, 
and a duplicate set will be produced for the County’s research files.  The “master” set is 
preserved in the vaults at LIN-CUM for backup and disaster recovery or other equivalent 
facility of the County’s choosing.   A copy of the software for installing and/or reviewing 
the documents on the CD-R/DVD, will be included on each CD-R/DVD provided to the 
County.  
 
At the time LIN-CUM picks up the records, it will have the authorized County 
representative sign a Certificate of Authenticity certifying that the records being picked up 
are original documents or facsimiles thereof.  Likewise, when LIN-CUM converts the files 
to TIFF or PDF image files and records them on the CD-R, a LIN-CUM technician will sign 
the Certificate of Authenticity and include same on the County’s CD-R.  However, this 
certification is only valid for the records as they reside on the CD-R.  Once the files are 
uploaded or moved to another storage medium, LIN-CUM can no longer vouch for the 
authenticity of THOSE files.   

 
An Arizona DLAPR Certificate of Compliance shall also be completed by LIN-CUM and 
submitted to the County for completion and forwarding to AZ DLAPR.  

 
The original source document files shall be retained at LIN-CUM for up to 90 days from 
date of receipt by the County, free, for the County representative to verify and accept the 
CD-R files.  At that time, at the discretion of the County representative, the paper documents 
shall be shredded and certified-destroyed by LIN-CUM at the fee listed or returned to the 
County at the standard transport charge or whenever the next pickup is scheduled at no 
charge.   

 
III. CONVERSION - UNIT PRICING:   Roll film & CD-R   

Pickup and delivery, maximum per trip*    $  55.00  
Set up and step testing, per appl.                9.00        
Document Sort/Preparation if required; per hour         15.50      
Archival Microfilming- letter/legal size; per image             .029 
Archival Microfilming- maps, drawings to 35mm film; per sheet         .35 
Scanning - standard size (letter/legal); per image                   .062 
Scanning- maps, drawings to standard formats; per sheet        1.10       
Microfilmed image scanning to electronic images           .068 
Microfiche jacket image scanning to electronic images          .068 
Electronic indexing (per field)             .07 
Compiling & producing CD-1st CD         60.00      
      - add’l. CDs         40.00      



 3

Duplicating (incl. CD and labeling); per disk        25.00      
Shredding and certified destruction, per box            5.00 
Vault storage: Masters-Annual charge**;  
 Original Microfilm jackets; per thousand       64.00 
 Original Rollfilm; per roll           4.20 
 CD/DVD; per disk          12.50      
Unit prices shall prevail, when actual volumes are not as estimated 
*    Maximum to be charged per trip; may be less, as trip charges are apportioned to all 

clients serviced on the same trip. 
**  Minimum charge of $2.00 per month will apply 
 

IV. UNIT PRICING, EXTENDED TO 7,361 PAGES, 95 INDEXES PER YEAR: 
Procedure Unit Charge Qty. Extended* 
  Microfilm & CD-R 
Set up and step testing     9.00 2 $  18.00
Document Sort/Preparation, per hour   15.50 14.3 221.65
Filming   .029 7,361 213.47
Scanning   .062 7,361 456.38
Electronic indexing (per field; 2)       .07 95 6.65
Compiling & producing CD-1st CD   60.00 3 180.00
                                           - add’l. CDs   40.00 0
Duplicating (incl. labeling); per disk   25.00 3 75.00
Shredding and certified destruction; per box     5.00 3 15.00
Total annual $1,186.15
  
Vault storage: Masters-Annual charge** 
Microfiche; per thousand 
Roll film; per roll 
CD-R/DVD; per disk 

            
64.00
4.20

12.50

632
4+3
2+1

$    40.45
29.40
37.50

               $  107.35
*    Plus applicable sales taxes and shipping charges      
**  Minimum charge of $2.00 per month 

V. TURNAROUND PROPOSED 
Standard scheduled turnaround for microfilming averages 8 hours per 3,000 images; for 
scanning averages 8 hours per 1,500 images.   Therefore, the entire job could be done at one 
time, in approximately one week.  Shorter turnarounds may be arranged as required.  Access 
to records while in production is available upon customer-authorized request, with copies 
faxed to the requestor as needed.  Records are stored for up to 90 days after filming/scanning, 
(free), to allow time for media approval.  Records are then returned or destroyed at the 
County’s request. 
 

VI. QUALITY ASSURANCE 
All jobs are quality checked at each stage; prep., filming/scanning, processing, titling and 
indexing, duplicating, and final.  Film chemicals and film are tested at the beginning of every 
job and each roll.  Only deep bath, five-stage processing is used, to assure longevity of the 



 4

film.  Any workmanship or material discrepancies are re-filmed/scanned at no charge. 
 
VII. DATA PROTECTION/LIABILITY ASSUMPTION 

LIN-CUM is liability-insured for coverage amounts in compliance with the requirements of 
the State of Arizona agencies.  All LIN-CUM employees are bonded by Employee Agreement 
against dissemination or disclosure of confidential information. 

 
VIII. ARCHIVAL CERTIFICATION 

Methylene Blue testing (residual thiosulphate) is done routinely to insure archival quality.  
This testing is in compliance with Federal Regulations 1230, Sec. 36, ANSI/NAPM IT9.1-
1992, and PH4.8-1985, (archival for >100 years minimum).  This periodic assurance testing is 
normal procedure for which there is no additional charge.  
 
LIN-CUM cannot certify archival quality of optical/laser disk-stored data, beyond that 
of the media manufacturers, which vary from 30-100 years.  LIN-CUM suggests re-
copying laser disk recorded data every five (5) years or less, thereby "restarting the 
clock" for another such period.   This will ensure long-term preservation, until such 
time as archivability can be properly tested and assured throughout the industry.  The 
Florida State Legislature, in 1997, accepted laser/optical disk as an archival solution, as 
long as they are recopied every 10 years.*  Arizona State Supreme Court has also 
approved procedural use of CD/OD for archiving their court files with periodic 
recopying procedure, or recopied during technology migration, whichever comes 
first.** 

 
*  Florida State Legislature ruling as reported in Imaging Magazine, October 1997.   
 
** LIN-CUM participated in reviewing and inputting to the Arizona State Supreme 
Court standards and procedures, adopted in 1998; 
http://www.supreme.state.az.us/cot/Standards/Standards_default.htm 

 
IX.  TERMS 

Monthly invoices will be submitted for work completed during that period.  Each invoice 
will bear the Contract Number or Purchase Order Number, and will itemize the work that 
was performed, for accounting purposes.  Payment of the invoice is due within 30 days from 
the invoice date, provided the work has been completed in a satisfactory manner, unless 
official notification has been provided by the County that the work as listed on the invoice 
has not been completed in a satisfactory manner.  

 
X. GOVERNING LAW 

Both parties agree that this contract shall be governed by the laws of the state of Arizona. 
The parties further agree that the jurisdiction for any legal disputes arising out of this 
contract shall be the Superior Court of the State of Arizona. The parties agree that even if 
this contract does not specifically reference any provision required by state or federal law, 
those state and federally required provisions are incorporated into this contract by this 
reference as though they were specifically listed herein. 
 

http://www.supreme.state.az.us/cot/Standards/Standards_default.htm


 5

XI. CANCELLATION 
Cancellation pursuant to A.R.S. §38-511. This contract is subject to the cancellation  
provisions of A.R.S. §38-511. 

 
XII. LEGAL ARIZONA WORKERS ACT COMPLIANCE 

LIN-CUM hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term of this Contract comply 
with all federal immigration laws applicable to LIN-CUM’s employment of its employees, 
and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A) (together the “State and Federal 
Immigration Laws”). LIN-CUM shall further ensure that each subcontractor who performs 
any work for LIN-CUM under this contract likewise complies with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws. 
 
County shall have the right at any time to inspect the books and records of LIN-CUM and 
any subcontractor in order to verify such party’s compliance with the State and Federal 
Immigration Laws.  
 
Any breach of LIN-CUM’s or any subcontractor’s warranty of compliance with the State 
and Federal Immigration Laws, or of any other provision of this section, shall be deemed to 
be a material breach of this Contract subjecting LIN-CUM to penalties up to and including 
suspension or termination of this Contract. If the breach is by a subcontractor, and the 
subcontract is suspended or terminated as a result, LIN-CUM shall be required to take such 
steps as may be necessary to either self-perform the services that would have been provided 
under the subcontract or retain a replacement subcontractor as soon as possible so as not to 
delay project completion.  
 
LIN-CUM shall advise each subcontractor of County’s rights, and the subcontractor’s 
obligations, under this Article by including a provision in each subcontract substantially in 
the following form: “Subcontractor hereby warrants that it will at all times during the term 
of this contract comply with all federal immigration laws applicable to Subcontractor’s 
employees, and with the requirements of A.R.S. § 23-214 (A). Subcontractor further agrees 
that County may inspect the Subcontractor’s books and records to insure that Subcontractor 
is in compliance with these requirements. Any breach of this paragraph by Subcontractor 
will be deemed to be a material breach of this contract subjecting Subcontractor to penalties 
up to and including suspension or termination of this contract.”  
Any additional costs attributable directly or indirectly to remedial action under this Article 
shall be the responsibility of LIN-CUM.  

 
This agreement will become effective on September 15, 2010, and shall remain in force for a period 
of twelve (12) months.  The agreement may be extended for up to twelve (12) months by mutual 
agreement of LIN-CUM and the County.  However, either party may terminate this Agreement by 
providing the other party at least thirty (30) days prior written notice.  Either party may terminate 
this Agreement immediately in the event of a material breach of the terms of this Agreement by 
providing written notice to the party in breach.  This agreement is subject to the cancellation 
provisions of A.R.S. §38-511.   
 



 6

This agreement supersedes any prior proposals, agreements, commitments, or representations of any 
kind, whether oral or written, with respect to LIN-CUM's document conversion services.   The 
County hereby affirms that this agreement is not entered into in reliance upon any representations at 
variance with the terms of this agreement as set forth herein.  This agreement may be executed on 
behalf of LIN-CUM only by an authorized officer/representative of LIN-CUM. 
 
Any attachments hereto are incorporated as though fully set forth herein, and become a part of this 
agreement.   
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby execute and approve this agreement as to form and 
content in its entirety: 
 
LIN-CUM, INC. ACCEPTANCE:   GILA COUNTY ACCEPTANCE: 
 
By                                                                       By_______________________________ 
        Charles C. Cummins, Jr.                         Michael A. Pastor, 
Title Vice President–Client Servicing            Title   Chairman, Board of Supervisors    
 
Date ______________________________                Date_____________________________ 
 
       APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
       By______________________________ 
                 Bryan B. Chambers 
       Title  Chief Deputy County Attorney__ 
 
       Date ____________________________ 



    Consent Agenda Item   Item #:  5- I     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Submitted For: Board of Supervisors Submitted By: Marian Sheppard, Clerk of the Board of

Supervisors

Department: Clerk of the Board of Supervisors

Presenter's Name:

Information

Request/Subject

Board of Supervisors' appointment of a Gila County representative to the County Supervisors Association (CSA)

Legislative Policy Committee (LPC).

Background Information

County supervisors provide regional leadership over critical policy areas, including policies necessary to ensure

safe communities, protect public health, promote economic development, and plan and manage land use for

sustainable development. Supervisors also provide important oversight of county operations, including overseeing

strategies to promote sound fiscal management and to develop a high-quality county government workforce.

For more than 30 years, the CSA has served as a non-partisan forum for county officials to address important

issues facing local constituents, providing a mechanism to share information and to develop a proactive state and

federal policy agenda.

CSA membership includes the 55 elected supervisors from Arizona's 15 counties. The association's efforts are

strengthened by the involvement of top-level county professional staff, who provide technical expertise necessary

to inform policy discussions.

All supervisors serve on the CSA Board of Directors and provide input into organizational strategy and the

evaluation of operational performance. Annually, the Board elects six members to serve in CSA leadership

positions. Each county appoints a representative to the Legislative Policy Committee (LPC). The LPC meets as

often as necessary to evaluate legislative measures and make policy recommendations to the full Board. 

Evaluation

Each year the Board of Supervisors appoints a Gila County representative to serve on the CSA Legislative Policy

Committee to serve for one calendar year.  District II Supervisor Mike Pastor's term of office will end on

December 31, 2010; therefore, it is now the time to elect a new CSA LPC Gila County representative for 2011. 

District I Supervisor Tommie Martin has volunteered to represent Gila County on this committee for 2011.

Conclusion

It is appropriate to place this issue before the Board of Supervisors at this time to appoint a CSA LPC Gila County

representative for calendar year 2011.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Board of Supervisors appoint a Gila County representative to serve on the CSA LPC for

calendar year 2011.

Suggested Motion

Approval to appoint Supervisor Tommie Martin to serve as a representative of Gila County on the County

Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee for calendar year 2011.

Attachments

Link: CSA LPC Membership List & Overview



Link: CSA LPC Membership List & Overview







    Item #:  5- J     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Reporting Period: Clerk of Superior Court's Report for the Months of August and September 2010

Submitted For: Anita Escobedo, Clerk of the Superior Court

Submitted By: Vicki Aguilar, Clerk of the Superior Court

Information

Subject

Clerk of Superior Court Report for the months of August and September 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the August and September 2010 monthly departmental activity reports submitted by the

Clerk of the Superior Court.

Attachments

Link: Clerk of Court Financial report for August 2010 

Link: Clerk of Court Financial report for September 2010 































    Item #:  5- K     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for August 2010

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera,

Recorder's Office

Information

Subject

Recorder's Office monthly report for August 2010.

Suggested Motion

Approval of the August 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's Office.

Attachments

Link: Recorder's August 2010 Monthly Report

























    Item #:  5- L     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Reporting Period: Recorder's Office Monthly Report for September 2010

Submitted For: Dawn Caldera, Chief

Deputy Recorder

Submitted By: Dawn Caldera,

Recorder's Office

Information

Subject

Recorder's Office Monthly Report for September 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Recorder's

Office.

Attachments

Link: Recorder's September 2010 Monthly Report

























    Item #:  5- M     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Reporting Period: Payson Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for September 2010

Submitted For: Dorothy Little, Justice of the Peace-Payson Region

Submitted By: Dorothy Little, Superior Court

Information

Subject

Payson Regional Justice Court monthly report for September 2010

Suggested Motion

Approval of the September 2010 monthly departmental activity report submitted by the Payson Regional

Justice of the Peace.

Attachments

Link: Payson Regional Justice Court Report for September 2010



Page 1 Processing

LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT September 2010

TOTAL

     (d)

All Other
Violations
     (c)

Serious*
Violations
      (b)

D.U.I.
  (a)

CRIMINAL TRAFFIC

Report Month/Year:County:

Court ID: 404

2607

000

000

1575

27112

71Pending 1st of Month

Filed

Transferred In

Pending End of Month

Transferred Out

SUBTOTAL

Other Terminations

Statistical Correction 0

TOTAL TERMINATIONS

233

40

676 158 240

83

7

0

6 184 273

0

33

0 26 33

0 0 0

*A.R.S.  28-661 (if misdemeanor),  -662,-663,-664,-665,-693,-708.   See Instructions.

0 0

6

CIVIL TRAFFIC
Pending
1st of
Month

Filed Trans
 In

SUB-
TOTAL

Trans
Out

Other
Term.

TOTAL
TERM.

Default
Judg-
ment

Stat.
Corr.

Pending
End of
Month

1,239 335 0 904302 0937 210 314

Civil Traffic Hearings Held:

Criminal Traffic/FTA Court Trials Held: Criminal Traffic/FTA Jury Trials Held:

TRAFFIC FAILURE TO APPEAR**

Pending
1st of
Month

Filed Trans
 In

SUB-
TOTAL

Trans
 Out

Other
Term.

TOTAL
TERM.

Stat.
Corr.

Pending
End of
Month

**READ:     These are FORMAL FTA FILINGS AND DISPOSITIONS CHARGING ANOTHER CRIMINAL
OFFENSE, not bench warrants for failure to appear.  FTA filings should also have original traffic complaint
recorded in the CRIMINAL TRAFFIC SECTION above until that traffic filing has been terminated.  Issuing a bench
warrant or an FTA does not terminate the traffic filing.

260 3 0 263 0 3 3 0 260

VIOLATIONS OF A.R.S.  28-702.01 AND  28-702.04
(Part of Civil Traffic Above)

Filed 125 Trans  In 0 TOTAL 125

10/16/10Printed: 08:50:58AMLJ Page 1, Ver. 02.15.05



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 2 Processing
County:

MISDEMEANOR

Pending
1st of

Month
(a)

Filed

(b)

Trans
In

(c)

SUB
TOTAL

(d)

Tran
Out

(e)

Other
Term

(f)

TOTAL
TERM

(g)

Stat.
Corr.

(h)

Pending
End of

Month (j)

PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT September 2010Report Month/Year:

Court ID: 404

Misdemeanor
(Non-Traffic) 0615 87 52843572 0 0 87

1 0

0 139

Filed SUB-
TOTAL

Terminated Pending
End of
Month

Parking

Non-Parking

LOCAL NON-CRIMINAL ORDINANCES

TOTAL

Pending
 1st of
Month

Stat.
Corr.

0

0

0

0

0

0

0 0 0 0 0 0

0

0

0

0

0

0

Felony, Misdemeanor, Criminal Traffic Initial: Appearances:Felony Preliminary Hearings Held:

480149

Pending
End of

Month (j)

Stat.
Corr.

(h)

TOTAL
TERM

(g)

Other
Term

(f)

Trans
Out
(e)

SUB
TOTAL

(d)

Trans
In
(c)

Filed

(b)

Pending
1st of

Month (a)

FELONY

40 9 0 10

TRIALS HELD

Misdemeanor/FTA Jury Trials Held:Misdemeanor Court/FTA Trials Held:

Failure to Appear
(Non-Traffic) 084 2 8283 1 0 0 2

655 44 0 699 0 89 89 0 610TOTAL

10/16/10Printed: 09:14:50AMLJ - Page 2, Rev.01.27.04



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 3 Processing

County: Report Month/Year:

CIVIL COMPLAINTS

Small Claims

(a)

Other Civil

(c)

September 2010PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT
404Court ID:

Forcible Detainer/
Eviction Action

(b)

TOTAL

(d)

73 14 282 369

Statistical Correction 00 0 0

3752Other Terminations

TOTAL TERMINATIONS 2

44

5 37 44

238

000

4459

964Pending 1st of Month

Filed

Transferred In

SUBTOTAL

311

58

0

000Transferred Out 0

Pending End of Month 971 245 325

2

0

0

0

0

13 7

12

26

0

5

12

31

DOMESTIC VIOLENCE/HARASSMENT PETITIONS

Filed Order Issued Petition Denied
TOTAL
TERM.

Small Claims Hearings Held/Defaults: Civil Court Trials Held:

HEARINGS HELD TO REVOKE OR MODIFY ORDER OF PROTECTION
INJUNCTION AGAINST HARASSMENT

Domestic Violence

Harassment

Order of Protection:

SPECIAL PROCEEDINGS/ACTIVITIES

Peace Bond Complaints Filed:

Injunction Against:

Small Claims Hearings Held/Defaults
Before Volunteer Hearing Officer:

Civil Jury Trials Held:

Fugitive Complaints Filed:

Juvenile Hearings Held: Search Warrants Issued:

0 0

13

11

30

10/16/10Printed: 09:17:20AMLJ Page 3, Ver. 02.15.06



LIMITED JURISDICTION COURTS MONTHLY STATISTICAL REPORT

Page 4 Processing

County:
Report
Month/Year:

WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

TRAFFIC WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

September 2010PAYSON REGIONAL JUSTICE COURT

404Court ID:

839TRAFFIC TOTAL

647All Other Violations

10Serious Violations

182D.U.I.

960CRIMINAL TOTAL

829Misdemeanor

131Felony

CRIMINAL WARRANTS OUTSTANDING

MAIL BY THE 20TH WORKING DAY OF MONTH:

Arizona Supreme Court

ATTN: Research/Statistics Unit
(602) 542-9376

Signature of the Judge/Magistrate (or designee)

Name of Preparer

Date of Preparation

Administrative Office of the Courts
1501 W. Washington St., Suite 410
Phoenix, AZ 85007-3327

10/16/10Printed: 09:18:31AMLJ Page 4, Ver.02.15.05



PAYSON JUSTICE COURT TREASURER'S RECAP FY2011

SEPTEMBER, 2010 AZTEC ACCOUNT ACCOUNT TOTAL AMOUNT 5% FILL THE GAP ADJUSTED

FUND NAME CODE CODE CODE ALLOCATED SET ASIDE BALANCE

Alternative Dispute Resolution ZADR T848-2061 76.39$                      3.82$                        72.57$                      

Arson Detection Reward Fund 41-2167D ZADRF T901-2061 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Attorney Fee Reimbursement ZATT 1005.314-3350.00 X10501314004429 196.89$                    196.89$                    

Citizens Clean Elections ZCEF T888-2061 2,058.77$                 2,058.77$                 

Criminal Justice Enhancement 67% ZCJEF T812-2061 9,675.43$                 483.77$                    9,191.66$                 

Defensive Driving Diversion Fee ZDDS 1005.314-3400.90 X105-4609 3,360.00$                 168.00$                    3,192.00$                 

DNA State Surcharge 3% 12-116.01C ZDNAS T872-2061 1,306.62$                 65.33$                      1,241.29$                 

Elected Officials Retirement Fund 15.30% ZEORF T801-2061 570.98$                    28.55$                      542.43$                    

Base Fees (General Fund) ZFEE 1005.314-3400.15 X105-4615 1,825.39$                 91.27$                      1,734.12$                 

Base Fines (General Fund) ZFINE 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 18,851.35$               942.57$                    17,908.78$               

Fill the Gap Surcharge 7% ZFTGS T870-2061 1,441.23$                 72.06$                      1,369.17$                 

Failure To Pay Warrant Surcharge 10% ZFTPS 1005.314.3400.17 X10501314004861 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Extra DUI Assessment $500 ZGFDU T912-2061 2,722.84$                 136.14$                    2,586.70$                 

Judicial Collection Enhancement $7 ZJCL 4741.314-3400.15 X36001314004615 649.25$                    649.25$                    

Judicial Collection Enhancement Local % ZJCLF 4741.314-3400.15 X36001314004615 254.14$                    12.71$                      241.43$                    

Judicial Collection Enhancement $13 ZJCS T818-2061 1,205.75$                 1,205.75$                 

Judicial Collection Enhancement %PC ZJCSF T840-2061 581.46$                    29.07$                      552.39$                    

Jail (Incarceration) Fees ZJF 1005.300-3405.40 X10502340004651 1,027.25$                 1,027.25$                 

Local Costs ZLCL 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 -$                          -$                          -$                          

Administrative Costs ZMISC 1005.314-3400.99 X105-4886 446.14$                    22.31$                      423.83$                    

Medical Services Enhancement 13% ZMSEF T813-2061 2,676.33$                 133.82$                    2,542.51$                 

Overpayment Forfeited ZOVF 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 9.40$                        0.47$                        8.93$                        

Adult Probation Fee ZPBA 4042.335-3405.30 X25001335-4835 45.00$                      2.25$                        42.75$                      

Probation Surcharge 2006 ($10.00) ZPRS6 T871-2061 347.83$                    17.39$                      330.44$                    

Probation Surcharge 2009 ($20.00) ZPRS9 T871-2061 5,026.47$                 251.32$                    4,775.15$                 

Probation Surcharge $5.00 ZPRSU T871-2061 53.55$                      2.68$                        50.87$                      

Reimbursement to County Attorney 60% ZREIM 3544.301-3400.11 X18201301004620 2,121.77$                 2,121.77$                 

Reimbursement to Superior Court 40% ZREIM 4574.333-3400.16 X226333004864 1,414.51$                 1,414.51$                 

Warrant Fee ZWAR 1005.314-3510.10 X105-4831 248.02$                    12.40$                      235.62$                    

AZ Native Plant Fund ZANP STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Child Passenger Restraint ZCPRF STATE 25.65$                      1.28$                        24.37$                      

Drug and Gang Enforcement Fines ZDECJ STATE 1,146.92$                 57.35$                      1,089.57$                 

DUI Abatement ZDUIA STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

FARE Special Collection Fee 19% ZFAR1 STATE 2,152.59$                 2,152.59$                 

FARE Delinquency Fee $35.00 ZFAR2 STATE 1,337.86$                 1,337.86$                 

Game and Fish - Wildlife ZGF STATE 24.73$                      1.24$                        23.49$                      

HURF 1 28-5438, 2533C ZHRF1 STATE 85.61$                      4.28$                        81.33$                      

HURF 3 28-5433C, 4139 ZHRF3 STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

HURF - to DPS ZHRFD STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Prison Construction Fund ZPCOF STATE 2,858.17$                 142.91$                    2,715.26$                 

Registrar of Contractors ZRCA STATE 378.39$                    18.92$                      359.47$                    

State Highway Fund ZSHWY STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

State Highway Work Zone Fund ZSHWZ STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (DPS) ZSLPD STATE 73.52$                      3.68$                        69.84$                      

State Photo Enforcement Base Fine ZSPBF STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

State Photo Enforcement Clean Election Surcharge ZSPCE STATE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Bad Check Program - County Attorney ZBAD COUNTY ATTY 152.00$                    152.00$                    

HURF - to Sheriff's Office 28-5533G ZHRFS SHERIFF -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (Sheriff's Office) ZSLPS SHERIFF 5.05$                        0.25$                        4.80$                        

HURF - to City Police ZHRFC CITY POLICE -$                          -$                          -$                          

Display Suspended Plates (City Police) ZSLPC CITY POLICE -$                          -$                          -$                          

TOTALS 66,433.25$               2,705.84$                 63,727.41$               

63,727.41$               

DATE CHECK NO. AMOUNT MONTHLY REMITTANCE TO:

10/1/10 4217 58,422.67$              GILA COUNTY TREASURER

10/1/10 4218 7,853.78$                ARIZONA STATE TREASURER

10/1/10 4219 152.00$                   GILA COUNTY BAD CHECK PROGRAM

10/1/10 4220 4.80$                       SHERIFF SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

-$                         CITY POLICE SUSPENDED PLATES AND HURF

66,433.25$                  TOTAL DISTRIBUTIONS THIS MONTH

12,778.48$              CHECKBOOK BALANCE AFTER ALLOCATION

I, DOROTHY A. LITTLE, Gila County Justice of the Peace, do hereby certify this is a true and correct copy of the funds collected by Payson Justice Court for SEPTEMBER, 2010.

___________________________________

DOROTHY A. LITTLE

Gila County Justice of the Peace

TOTAL ADJUSTED BALANCE VERIFICATION



    Item #:  5- N     

Regular BOS Meeting

Date: 11/16/2010  

Reporting Period: Personnel Report for the weeks of 11/02/10, 11/9/10 and 11/16/10

Submitted For: Berthan DeNero,

Personnel Director

Submitted By: Erica Raymond, Deputy

County Manager

Information

Subject

Personnel Report for the weeks of 11/02/10, 11/9/10 and 11/16/10

Suggested Motion

Approval of personnel reports for the weeks of November 2, 2010, November 9, 2010, and November

16, 2010.

Attachments

Link: 11/2/10 Personnel Report

Link: 11-9-10 Personnel Report

Link: 11-16-10 Personnel Report



PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 2, 2010 

REVISED 
 

DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Sandra Bowling – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/29/10 – Juvenile 
Intensive Probation Supervisor Fund – DOH 07/11/05 – Retired 

2. Karen Eylicio – Probation Juvenile Detention – Juvenile Detention Officer Shift 
Supervisor – DOH 04/01/85 – Retired  

3. Veronica Gonzales – Probation – Administrative Clerk Senior – 10/29/10 – Adult 
Probation Service Fees Fund – DOH 08/18/08 – Resigned  

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

4. Jacob Delecki – From Probation – To Sheriff's Office – From Deputy Probation 
Officer 2 – To Deputy Sheriff Recruit – 10/29/10 – From State Aid Enhancement 
Fund – To General Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

5. Berthan DeNero – From Personnel – To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Director – To Human Resources Director - General Fund – 10/25/10 

6. Matthew Bolinger – From Emergency Management Operations and Health 
Preparedness – To Health and Emergency Services – From Director of 
Emergency Operations and Health Preparedness – To Director of Health and 
Emergency Services – 70% General Fund – 30% Bio Terrorism Program Fund 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

1. Health and Emergency Services – WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Supervisor 
– New Position  

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

7. Mark Highstreet II - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/18/10- General 
Fund – DOH 05/10/10 – Failure to complete probationary period 

8. Hazel Young - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 10/24/10 - General Fund – 
DOH 03/26/01 – Terminated 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

9. Earlene Ingram - Sheriff's Office – 911 Dispatcher – 11/08/10 - General Fund  - 
Replacing Anthony Waddell 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

10. Angelita Mendoza – Sheriff's Office - Administrative Clerk – 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 

11. Robert Chagolla - Sheriff's Office – Deputy Sheriff – 10/25/10 - General Fund 



 
 
 
 



PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 9, 2010 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Jim Weeks - Community Development – Part Time/As Needed Hearing Officer – 
09/01/10 - General Fund – Not replacing anyone 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

2. Richard Ruiz - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 

3. Manuel Rodriguez - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 

4. Billy Tarango - Board of Supervisors – Temporary Laborer – 10/26/10 – 
Constituent Services II Fund – Extending temporary employment to 12/10/10 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

5. Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – New Position 
6. Finance – Accounting Clerk Senior – New Position 

 
SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

7. Jennifer Stout - Sheriff's Office – Detention Officer Sergeant – 10/18/10 - General 
Fund – DOH 11/15/04 - Terminated  

 
 
 
 



PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
NOVEMBER 16, 2010 

 
DEPARTURES FROM COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

1. Daniel Alonzo – Globe Regional Justice Court – Collections Officer – 11/08/10 – 
General Fund – DOH 11/26/07 – Retired 

2. Joseph Eylicio – Probation – Juvenile Detention Facility Supervisor – 10/29/10 - 
General Fund – DOH 04/01/85 – Retired 

 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

3. Gary Goetteman – Globe Regional Justice Court – Justice of the Peace – 11/16/10 
- General Fund – Replacing Patty Nolan  

4. Amber Martinez – Health and Emergency Services – Animal Regulation 
Enforcement Officer – 11/15/2010 – Rabies Control Fund - Replacing Nicholas 
Campagna 

5. Virginia Mounce – Administrative Services – Administrative Clerk – 11/01/10 - 
General Fund – Replacing Bertha Gutierrez 

6. Amanda Roady - Community Services – Accountant – 11/08/10 – Various Fund 
Codes – Replacing Dan Mikaloy 

 
END PROBATIONARY PERIOD: 
 

7. William McDaniel – Public Works Facilities Management – Building 
Maintenance Technician Senior – 11/24/10 – Facilities Management Fund 

 
POSITION REVIEW: 
 

8. Juley Bocardo-Homan – From Personnel – To Human Resources – From Deputy 
Personnel Director  - To Deputy Human Resources Director – 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 

9. Angelo Cutter - From Personnel – To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Assistant Senior – To Human Resources Assistant Senior - 10/25/10 - General 
Fund 

10. Erica Raymond – From Personnel - To Human Resources – From Personnel 
Assistant – To Human Resources Assistant  – 10/25/10 - General Fund 

11. Carolyn Haro – From Health and Community Services – To Community Services 
– From Manager Public Health Services – To Manager Community Services – 
11/08/10 - Various Fund Codes 

12. Cecilia Bejarano – From Health and Community Services – To Community 
Services – 11/08/10 – Various Fund Codes 

 
REQUEST PERMISSION TO POST: 
 

13. Public Works Facilities Management – Building Maintenance Technician – 
Vacated by John Sanchez  

 
 
 
 
 



SHERIFF’S PERSONNEL ACTION ITEMS 
 
 
HIRES TO COUNTY SERVICE: 
 

14. Cynthia Claydon - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/22/10 - General Fund 
– Replacing Mark Highstreet 

15. Kace Loya - Sheriff's Office - Detention Officer – 11/22/10 - General Fund – 
Replacing Aaron Villegas 

 
DEPARTMENTAL TRANSFERS: 
 

16. Marcus Teague - Sheriff's Office – From Detention Officer – To Property and 
Evidence Custodian – 11/22/10 - General Fund 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 


	Agenda
	Item2.A.  Introduction of new Executive Director for Central Arizona Association of Governments
	Item2.B.  Presentation of Bose Public Affairs Group lobbying activities
	Item3.A.  Public Hearing-Gila County Order No. LL 10-07, a Liquor License Application
	Item3.A._Att1_Tall Pines Market Liq Lic App
	Item4.A.  Canvass of the November 2, 2010, General Election Results
	Item4.A._Att1_Nov 2010 Election Results Certification Letter
	Item4.B.  Professional Consulting Services Contract for Redistricting and DOJ Bailout
	Item4.B._Att1_Federal Compliance Consulting Services Contract No. 2010_100
	Item4.B._Att2_Consultant Background and Experience
	Item4.B._Att3_Exec Summary-Federal Compliance Consulting LLC
	Item4.C.  Intergovernmental Agreemen with Arizona Game and Fish Commission
	Item4.C._Att1_IGA Game and Fish
	Item4.D.  Hye Tech Network & Security Solutions, LLC General Support Agreement No. 1025-002
	Item4.D._Att1_Hye Tech Executive Summary Form
	Item4.D._Att2_Hye Teh General Support Agreement
	Item4.D._Att3_State of AZ Cooperative Purchasing Agreement
	Item4.E.  NPG Cable, Inc. Telecommunications Services Agreement
	Item4.E._Att1_NPG Cable Agreement
	Item4.F.  Cable One Commercial Service Agreement
	Item4.F._Att1_Cable One Commerical Service Agreement
	Item4.G.  Purchase of 3 New World Financial Software Modules
	Item4.G._Att1_software modules
	Item4.H.  Public Works Facilities Utilities Easements
	Item4.H._Att1_APS Admin Bldg Utility Easement
	Item4.H._Att2_APS Facilities & Sign Shop Bldg Utility Easement
	Item4.H._Att3_APS Roads_Shop Bldg Utility Easement
	Item4.H._Att4_AWC Admin Bldg Easement
	Item4.H._Att5_AWC Public Works Complex Bldgs Easement
	Item4.I.  Gila County Jail Utility Easement
	Item4.I._Att1_GC Jail Utility Easement
	Item4.J.  Request to Advertise Bid Call 040108-1 Gila County Courthouse ADA_Access Improvement Project
	Item4.J._Att1_Bid 040108-1
	Item4.J._Att2_Request to Advertise
	Item4.K.  Request to Advertise Bid Call 092210-1 Central Heights Auditorium Remodel Project
	Item4.K._Att1_Request to Advertise
	Item4.K._Att2_Bid 092210-1
	Item4.L.  Contract Award for Sealed Bids No. 060110-1 - County Janitorial Services in Globe, AZ
	Item4.L._Att1_Bid 060110-1
	Item4.L._Att2_Bid Tab Sheet
	Item4.M.  IGA with the Arizona Deprtment of Economic Security for Title IV-D child support services in Gila County.
	Item4.M._Att1_Title IV-D 
	Item4.N.  Sealed Bid for Tax Parcel No. 206-09-123
	Item4.N._Att1_Tax Parcel 206-09-123 Sealed Bid Information
	Item4.O.  Gila_Pinal Workforce Investment Board Membership Recertification
	Item4.O._Att1_Gila_Pinal WIB Membership Appointments for Gila County
	Item5.A.  Resource Advisory Committee (RAC) U.S. Forest Service Grant Agreement
	Item5.A._Att1_Agreement
	Item5.B.  SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-01 for FFY2010 Arizona Department of Homeland Security Grant Program Award 
	Item5.B._Att1_Award Letter No. 777304-01
	Item5.B._Att2_Subgrantee Agreement No. 777304-01
	Item5.C.  SubGrantee Agreement No. 777304-02 for FFY2010 Arizona Department of Homeland Security Grant Program Award
	Item5.C._Att1_Award Letter 777304-02
	Item5.C._Att2_Subgrantee Agreement No. 777304-02
	Item5.D.  Amendment _1 to SubGrantee Agreement No. 09-AZDOHS-CCP-555300-01 for FFY09 Homeland Security Grant Program Award.
	Item5.D._Att1_Amendment _1 to Subgrantee Agreement
	Item5.D._Att2_Original Subgrantee Agreement
	Item5.E.  Amendment No.2 to Contract No.C051-09-02 with the State of Arizona, Department of Commerce Energy Office for weatherization services. 
	Item5.E._Att1_Amendment No. 2 to Contract No.C051-09-02  
	Item5.F.  Amendment _3 to ADHS IGA No. HG854246 
	Item5.F._Att1_Amendment No. 3 to Contract No. HG854246
	Item5.F._Att2_ADHS IGA HG854246
	Item5.G.  Agreement No. 634280 with Great America Leasing for a Konica-Minolta BizHub C522 & a 423 copier
	Item5.G._Att1_Agreement with Great American Leasing Corporation
	Item5.G._Att2_Letter from Tom Jaquis re Great America Leasing Corp. Agreement
	Item5.H.  Document Conversion Services Contract with Lin-Cum, Inc.
	Item5.H._Att1_Lin-Cum, Inc. Document Conversion Services Contract 11-16-10
	V. TURNAROUND PROPOSED

	Item5.I.  County Supervisors Association Legislative Policy Committee Member Appointment
	Item5.I._Att1_CSA LPC Membership List & Overview
	Item5.J.  Clerk of Superior Court's Report for the Months of August  and September 2010
	Item5.J._Att1_Clerk of Court Financial report for August 2010 
	Item5.J._Att2_Clerk of Court Financial report for September 2010 
	Item5.K.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for August 2010
	Item5.K._Att1_Recorder's August 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.L.  Recorder's Office Monthly Report for September 2010
	Item5.L._Att1_Recorder's September 2010 Monthly Report
	Item5.M.  Payson Regional Justice Court Monthly Report for September 2010
	Item5.M._Att1_Payson Regional Justice Court Report for September 2010
	Seagate Crystal Reports - LJ1 Pa
	Seagate Crystal Reports - LJ 2- 
	Seagate Crystal Reports - LJ3 Pa
	Seagate Crystal Reports - LJ4 Pa
	PAYSON JP FY10-11 LedgerSEPT

	Item5.N.  Personnel Report for the weeks of 11_02_10, 11_9_10 and 11_16_10
	Item5.N._Att1_11_2_10 Personnel Report
	Item5.N._Att2_11-9-10 Personnel Report
	Item5.N._Att3_11-16-10 Personnel Report



